
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 30 January 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Thursday, 7 February 2019 at 2.00 pm
Shekinah Room - Jubilee Church Life Centre, 1-5 London 

Road, Grantham. NG31 6EY

Cabinet 
Members:

Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council (Chairman)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Nick Neilson, Cabinet Member for Housing
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Environment
Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Agenda
1.  Apologies

2.  Minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2019 (Pages 3 - 7)

3.  Disclosure of Interests (if any)

4.  Budget proposals 2019/20 (Budget Framework - recommendation to Council)
Report of the Cabinet Members for Finance and Housing. To approve the 
Cabinet’s budget proposals and recommend them to Council in respect of:

 Appendix A– Revenue summary – General Fund (GF) & Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) 

 Appendix B – Capacity Bids – GF
 Appendix C – Saving proposals - GF
 Appendix D – Capital Programme and financing – GF and HRA
 Appendix E – Reserves – GF and HRA
 Appendix F – Fees & Charges 
 Appendix G – Treasury Management Strategy 
 Appendix H – Capital Strategy

(Pages 9 - 110)

Cabinet

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 Appendix I – Property Investment Policy 
 Appendix J – Equality Impact Analysis 

5.  Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees
Report of the Leader of the Council.

(Pages 111 - 
122)

6.  Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key 
Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.
Report of the Leader of the Council.

(Pages 123 - 
141)

7.  Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members
The Cabinet notes that prior to the publication of this agenda, no representations 
or questions had been received from non-Cabinet Members since the last meeting 
of the Cabinet held on 17 January 2019. The Cabinet may consider any 
representations from non-Cabinet Members following publication of the agenda for 
this meeting.

8.  Cabinet Forward Plan
Report of the Leader of the Council.

(Pages 143 - 
152)

9.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



MINUTES
CABINET
THURSDAY, 17 JANUARY 2019

THE DEPUTY LEADER: Councillor Kelham Cooke (Chairman)

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Nick Neilson
Councillor Nick Robins
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Adam Stokes

NON-CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Bob Sampson
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS

Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Assistant Chief Executive, Transformation & Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Assistant Director Resources (Richard Wyles)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)
InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

CO68. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Lee, the Leader of the Council.

CO69. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 DECEMBER 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 December 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record.

3

Agenda Item 2



CO70. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)

No interests were disclosed.

CO71. DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS 2019/20

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented report number CFM485, which provided 
draft Budget estimates for 2019/20, revenue and capital, for both the General Fund 
and the Housing Revenue Account together with details of Budget proposals. 
Specific reference was made to the Council Tax proposals, on which consultation 
would be undertaken, and the cessation of the Business Rates pilot, which meant 
that the Council would fall back to the pooling arrangement of which it was previously 
part. The Cabinet Member highlighted that the projected balance position for 2019/20 
was a small surplus.

Cabinet Members’ attention was drawn to the savings that had been found by 
directorates to offset growth. Members also noted the proposal to continue with the 
Community Fund and the Ward Member Grant Scheme. Proposed fees and charges 
were set out within the report, together with a comment against each that indicated 
whether they were statutory or discretionary. 

The Cabinet Member for Finance also referred to the Housing Revenue Account and 
proposals for rent levels; dwelling rents would reduce by 1% as required by 
Government while it was proposed garage rents should increase in line with inflation.

Finally, the Cabinet Member for Finance drew Members’ attention to proposals 
relating to the Capital Programme, reserves and balances and capacity bids. He also 
made reference to a meeting of the Council’s Budget Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, which had met on 10 January 2019, and the comments and 
recommendations that had been made at that meeting.

One of the Cabinet members spoke about the business summits that had been held 
in the district and the Council’s growth ambitions, together with transformation work 
to make South Kesteven a more agile and modern organisation that could deliver the 
highest quality of services to residents across the district. This was put within the 
context of a financial backdrop that was considered increasingly challenging and a 
corporate strategy that focussed on the authority becoming financially self-sufficient. 

The Council had set up a working group to consider the Council’s governance 
arrangements. The working group had identified the need for a Scrutiny Officer to 
provide dedicated support to the Overview and Scrutiny function, and officers were 
asked to include this within the Budget proposals. This suggestion received support 
from other Cabinet and non-Cabinet members who had been involved in the working 
group and who had attended the Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

Several Cabinet Members expressed their support for the Budget proposals and how 
they recognised the Council’s growth priorities and investment in those, and the use 
of the commercial element of the organisation to replace government funding. 
Reference was made to the companies in which the Council was involved, 
specifically DeliverSK, which was focussed on development and Environment SK, 

4



which was the vehicle that had been created to deliver the Council’s grounds 
maintenance service. Members stated that they believed that the proposals 
conformed with the core commitments that were made at the beginning of the 
administration. They felt that it was a Budget that benefitted the whole of the district, 
rather than focussed on one town.

Expressions of thanks were made to the Communications Team, which had been 
preparing consultation on the Budget and Council Tax proposals. 

The Deputy Leader invited non-Cabinet Members to speak and ask questions.

One Member who spoke made reference to the Budget setting process. They stated 
that it would have been helpful to have contextual information about which of the 
savings identified in the 2018/19 Budget had been achieved. Some concern was 
expressed by non-Cabinet members in respect of the use of reserves and a request 
made for more information to help Members consider the prudence of using 
reserves, its appropriateness and sustainability. At the Budget Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting, Members had been advised that the intention was to regenerate 
reserve levels over three to five years with income from investments. The Deputy 
Leader stated that a report would be presented to the Growth Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 13 February 2019, which incorporated this information. It was noted 
that the reserves held by South Kesteven District Councils were at higher levels than 
the majority of other councils in the area and that the use of reserves meant that the 
Council was building its asset base without borrowing to fund its investments.

Clarification was sought about the references to negative Revenue Support Grant. 
Members were advised that the Government had agreed to stand the cost of 
negative Revenue Support Grant in 2019/20. There was no indication of whether this 
commitment would continue beyond the 2019/20 financial year and therefore 
provision for making this payment was included in indicative figures. It was hoped 
that there would be more certainty about this following completion of the fairer 
funding review.

A question was asked about whether the drainage board levies could be listed 
separately in the Council Tax bill. Members were advised that drainage levies were 
directly precepted to the authority and there was no discretion for the Council to show 
these separately.

In response to a question on the Council Tax consultation, the Cabinet Member for 
Finance stated that each of the three options in the report would be subject to 
consultation (an increase of £5 on a Band D property, an increase of 3% on a Band 
D property and no increase). The results of the consultation would feed into the 
report which would be presented to Cabinet at its meeting on 7 February 2019, when 
it considered its final Budget proposals for recommendation to Council.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that Cabinet:

1. Had considered the budget proposals for 2019/20 in respect of:

 General Fund – Revenue and Capital

5



 Housing Revenue Account – Revenue and Capital

2. Agreed to the inclusion of provision within the 2019/20 General Fund 
Revenue Budget for a Scrutiny Officer

3. Approved consultation in respect of proposed Council Tax levels for 
2019/20 for the period 21 January to 3 February 2019 (inclusive)

CO72. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE COUNCIL OR 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Report number LDS337 of the Leader of the Council informed Cabinet Members that 
no recommendations had been made to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees since it last met on 20 December 2018, except those made by 
the Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 12 January 2019.

The Chairman of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee stated that it would 
next meet on Wednesday 23 January 2019 and that a loneliness workshop had been 
scheduled for Wednesday 30 January 2019, which he encouraged Members to 
attend.

The Chairman of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
referred to a motion that had previously been passed by Council regarding modern 
day slavery. He stated that it would be considered at the next meeting of the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at which Chief 
Superintendent Davidson, who had experience of Lincolnshire Police’s work on the 
matter. He added that he was also due to attend a conference on the subject at 
Lincolnshire Police Headquarters on Monday 21 January 2019.

The Chairman of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
stated that it was next due to meet on Thursday 24 January 2019 when it had a full 
agenda. A visitor guide for the district had been produced by InvestSK and Members 
expressed their gratitude for the work that had been involved.

CO73. REPRESENTATIONS AND QUESTIONS FROM NON CABINET 
MEMBERS

Report number LDS339 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet that no 
non-Cabinet Members had submitted requests to make representations or ask 
questions prior to the publication of the agenda for this meeting. No Members had 
indicated that they wished to ask questions or make representations following the 
publication of the agenda.

CO74. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Report number LDS340 of the Leader of the Council and the Forward Plan attached 
as Appendix 1 to the report gave an indication of the items that would be presented 
to Cabinet over the following twelve-month period. The report also included items 
that were scheduled to be considered at Council meetings during that period. 

6



CO75. ITEMS RAISED BY CABINET MEMBERS INCLUDING REPORTS ON 
KEY AND NON KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS.

Report number LDS338 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet of 
decisions that had been taken by individual Members since the last meeting of the 
Cabinet was held on 20 December 2018.

 Appendix 1: Establishment of InvestSK, Memorandum of Understanding and 
Articles of Association

 Appendix 2: Confirmation and selection of the private sector partner for 
DeliverSK and commencement of legal processes to form new partnership

 Appendix 3: To enter into a 1-year lease of the second floor of The Maltings, 
Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH

CO76. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 14:31.

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet
7 February 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Councillor 
Nick Nielson, Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

        

Budget Proposals 2019/20
The Council is required to set a balanced budget and agree the level of Council Tax for 2019/20 
and this report contains a summary of the proposals that have been considered for inclusion.  The 
proposals were considered and scrutinised in detail by the Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 10 January 2019.  The draft proposals were considered at Cabinet on 17 January 
2019 and consultation for the options for Council Tax setting was approved.  

Report Author

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources

01476 406210

r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework

All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Financial Services 29 January 2019

Approved by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources 29 January 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 29 January 2019

9

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Recommendations to the decision makers

Recommendations to Council 
1. To set a General Fund budget requirement of £14.632m for 2019/20 detailed at 

section 3 of this report and shown in detail at Appendix A (inclusive of special 
expenses). 

2. To propose a Council Tax level for 2019/20 (Band D property) 
3. To note the indicative base estimates for 2020/21 and 2021/22 as detailed in 

the summary at Appendix A.
4. To approve dwelling rent decreases of 1% in accordance with Government 

guideline rent providing an average rent of £77.62 (an average rental decrease 
of £0.81 per a week)

5. To approve an increase in garage rents of 2.5%
6. To approve an average increase of 2.5% in service charges for communal 

facilities and communal rooms
7. To approve an increase in shared ownership rents by CPI +1% (4%) 
8. To approve the Housing Revenue Account for the year 2019/20 and indicative 

years 2020/21 and 2021/22 detailed at section 5 of this report and shown at 
Appendix A 

9. Approve the General Fund Capital programme for 2019/20 to 2021/22 detailed 
at section 6 of this report and shown at Appendix D 

10.  Approve the Capital Financing statement detailed at Appendix D 
11.  Approve the Housing Investment programme for 2019/20 to 2021/22 detailed at 

section 6 of this report and as shown at Appendix D
12.  Approve the Capital Financing statement detailed at Appendix D 
13. To approve the movements in Revenue and Capital reserves and balances 

detailed at section 8 of this report and shown at Appendix E.
14. To approve the movements in HRA revenue and Capital reserves and balances 

detailed at section 8 of this report and shown at Appendix E.
15. To approve the fees and charges detailed at section 4 of this report and shown 

at Appendix F.
16. To approve the Treasury Management Strategy detailed at section 7 of this 

report and provided at Appendix G
17. To approve the Capital Strategy detailed at section 6 of this report and provided 

at Appendix H
18. To approve the Property Investment Policy detailed at section 6 of this report 

and provided at Appendix I

10



1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Council is required to set a balanced budget and agree the level of Council Tax for 

2019/20 and this report contains a summary of the proposals that have been considered 
for inclusion.  The proposals were considered and scrutinised in detail by the Budget Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 10 January 2019.  The draft proposals were 
considered at Cabinet on 17 January 2019 and consultation for the options for Council Tax 
setting was approved.  

1.2 Cabinet requested one amendment to the budget proposals and requested that budgetary 
provision be included for the post of a scrutiny officer to support the Overview and Scrutiny 
committees in fulfilling their scrutiny function and support the delivery of the respective 
work plans. 

1.3 This report is the final presentation to Cabinet of the budget proposals for 2019/20 and 
therefore contains a summary of the information that was included in the report presented 
to Cabinet on 17 January 2019. This report covers the following sections:

 The funding position for the General Fund (paragraph 4.1)
 The General Fund Budget Estimates (paragraph 4.2)
 Fees and Charges (paragraph 4.10)
 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) position (paragraph 4.11)
 The Capital Proposals 2019/20 to 2021/22 (paragraph 4.14)
 Treasury Management Strategy (paragraph 4.21)
 Reserves and Balances (paragraph 4.24)

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2.1 At the meeting on 10 January 2019 the Budget Joint OSC undertook a robust scrutiny of 
the budget proposals put forward by Cabinet and considered all aspects of the revenue 
and capital proposals for both General Fund and Housing Revenue Account.  A summary 
of the areas they considered and debated are identified below: 

 It was confirmed that Growth OSC undertakes budget monitoring during the financial 
year 

 The proposal for a £5 increase to the Council’s element of the Council Tax is the 
preferred option.

 It was noted that reserve balances are being reduced to support the funding of the 
growth ambitions and it was noted that the reduced level of reserves held by SKDC 
was still significantly more than reserves held by other local authorities. Projects such 
as the cinema were creating assets and would provide the Council with an income in 
the future.

 More information with respect to budgetary risks both from an internal and external 
perspective would be helpful to assess the volatility of the budget proposals.

 Further information with respect to previously budgeted savings built in for 2018/19 and 
the levels of budgeted savings for 2019/20.

 Discussion ensued on the proposals to include an allocation of £15m capital 
expenditure in the draft HRA capital programme or identifying and procuring 
appropriate strategic sites across the District for housing development. Some sites 

11



could potentially be adjacent to existing sites which could enhance the delivery of 
housing.

 Consideration of the financing options with respect to the £25m maturity loan for the 
HRA.

 A request that Growth OSC would receive details of options in respect of any 
proposals to re-finance the £25m maturity loan at the appropriate time.

 Discussion took place on the Pension Fund, the current use of an earmarked reserve 
in respect of employer contributions for members of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme and the proposal to revert back to budgeting the costs at service level from 
2020/21.

 Discussion also took place on the review of the scrutiny process that was currently 
being undertaken, and a request was made for funding provision to be included in the 
Budget Proposals 2019/20 for a Scrutiny Officer.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 The feedback received at 2 above has been considered and are included in this report as 

appropriate. 

4 Preferred Option
Provisional Finance Settlement 2019/20

4.1 The Council remains within the Government’s four-year funding deal after it had 
successfully submitted an Efficiency Plan. 2019/20 is the last year of the four-year deal 
and the period after this remains uncertain as the Government has yet to conclude the 
findings of the fair funding review, which was launched last year.  This review is intended 
to fundamentally challenge the current complex formula driven funding allocation to 
Councils and replace it with a simplified, more transparent formula.  At the time of writing 
this report no further information is known so the latter two financial years of the indicative 
budgets are currently compiled on a series of assumptions regarding funding levels.  As 
further information is known during the year the Council will be asked to consider a revised 
Medium Term Financial Strategy that provides a medium term financial framework 
incorporating the three themes of the newly approved Corporate Strategy.

Budget Estimates 2019/20
4.2 The overall General Fund position for 2019/20 is shown at table 1 below. The total budget 

requirement for 2019/20 is estimated at £14.632m.  

12



Table 1 – Summary of Proposed General Fund Estimates

Description 2018/19 
Adjusted 

Budget
£000

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

£000

2020/21 
Indicative 

Budget
£000

2021/22 
Indicative 

Budget
£000

Commercial 6,359 5,457 5,567 6,014
Growth 6,940 7,108 6,466 6,493
Resources 6,054 7,807 7,098 7,399
HRA Recharge 0 (2,470) (2,513) (2,556)
Net Cost of Service 19,353 17,902 16,618 17,350
Interest Payable and Receivable (198) 100 123 120
Minimum Revenue Provision 247 308 502 496
Depreciation (3,400) (3,619) (3,766) (4,170)
Parish Grant allocation - LCTSS 22 0 0 0
Net Budget Requirement 16,024 14,691 13,477 13,796
Funding and Resources:
Council Tax (7,146) (7,475) (7,815) (8,170)
S31 Grants 0 (118) 0 0
Revenue Support Grant 0 0 98 0
Retained Business Rates, s31 
Grant & Pooling Gain

(5,109) (5,154) (4,132) (3,974)

New Homes Bonus (2,086) (1,957) (1,576) (1,490)
Rural Grant 0 (295) 0 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 321 (1,390) 0 0
Total Funding (14,020) (16,389) (13,425) (13,634)
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves

(2,004) 1,698 863 1,016

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 915 1,178

4.3 The table above shows the forecast increase in business rates income and the Collection 
Fund surplus is anticipated to be received following the reduction of the appeals provision 
from 4.7% to 2%.  This reduction has been applied following careful analysis of the actual 
appeals received and upheld to date and the trajectory anticipated for 2019/20.  This 
surplus has been applied to the volatility reserve (£1.336m) and the invest to save reserve 
(£500k).  This allocation is to provide further financial resilience to the anticipated 
fluctuations in funding arising from the national fair funding and business rates review.  In 
respect to the invest to save reserve, this is increased to provide funding to pump prime 
initiatives that will deliver longer term savings.

4.4 The service costs shown above include the capacity and savings proposals that are 
shown in further detail at Appendix B & C.  Table 1 currently shows a deficit from 2020/21 
cumulatively increasing to £2.093m in 2021/22.  This deficit is partly due to the absence of 
any accurate funding predictions due to the uncertainty of the national funding review and 
consequently no growth assumptions have been shown in funding projections.  However, 
it is anticipated that during 2019 funding information will be available to enable the Council 
to model more accurately funding projections.  In response to these challenges the 
Council has developed commercial and transformation programmes as set out in the 
Corporate Strategy and is implementing these initiatives in order to reduce operating costs 
and increase income streams over the medium term.  The principle objective being to 

13



ensure that the Council will be financially autonomous by 2025 as set out in the Corporate 
Strategy. 

Council Tax Setting Proposals
4.5 The provisional settlement announcements made on 13 December 2018 confirmed that 

for 2019/20 Council Tax increases for district councils were permissible for up to 3% or £5 
(whichever is higher) above the authority’s relevant basic amount of council tax for 
2018/19 without triggering a referendum.  It is currently understood that this increase limit 
will be the final year under the Council’s 4-year deal that has been in place since 2016/17.  
The Medium Term Financial Plan has been modelled based on the assumption that the 
Council would take the opportunity to increase by the maximum level.  The financial 
implication of setting a lower increase has been previously provided in the Cabinet report 
presented at the meeting on 17 January 2019 and also to the Budget – Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 10 January 2019.

4.6 At the meeting held on 17 January 2019, Cabinet considered the options available and 
approved a consultation launch in order to receive feedback from the community with 
respect to the options outlined above.  The consultation ran for the period 21 January – 3 
February 2019 and was promoted via the Council’s website, local media and business 
community groups. An analysis of the consultation findings will be presented to Cabinet at 
the meeting.

4.7 The draft budget proposals are based on a working assumption that Council Tax levels will 
be increased by £5 for 2019/20 for the district element.  Should Cabinet make a 
recommendation that varies to this assumption then an adjustment will be required in 
order to maintain a balanced position.

Council Owned Companies
4.8 The 2019/20 financial year is the first full financial year that includes the first full trading 

year of the Council companies:

 Invest SK
 Environment SK

4.9 The budget proposals include the funding allocations to enable the companies to deliver 
the outcomes that Council has set out.  The proposed funding levels are:

Table 2 – Invest SK

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Core Funding* 800 800 800
Arts & Heritage 350 350 350
Skills (capacity bid) 110 105 75
Economic 
Development

108 108 107

Total 1,368 1,363 1,332
* core funding includes the general running costs such as staffing, premises plus the funding of the 
visitor economy programme.

14



Table 3 – Environment SK

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Core Funding – General Fund 302 307 307
Core Funding – Housing Revenue Account 328 328 328
Core Funding – Special Expense Areas 318 328 328
Total 948 963 963

Fees and Charges
4.10 The draft fees and charges proposals for 2019/20, which are set out in Appendix F, have 

been compiled with inflationary increases being applied where appropriate.  A summary of 
these are provided in the table below:

Table 4 – Fees and Charges
HEADING PROPOSED 19/20 FEE EFFECTIVE DATE 

CHANGE (OR LAST 
INCREASE DATE)

Car parking charges No increase 01/04/2010
Car parking penalty charge 
notices

No increase 01/04/2013

Bus stations No increase 01/04/2014
Building control charges No increase 01/02/2017
Markets No increase 01/04/2016
Arts Centres Mainly inflation increase 01/04/2019
Green waste No increase 01/04/2018
Supply of new or replacement 
bins

No increase 01/04/2016

Domestic refuse collection e.g. 
bulky waste

No increase 01/04/2015

MOT Fees No increase 01/04/2010
Fees for Scrap Metal dealers, 
tattooing, acupuncture, control 
of dogs, caravan parks etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Houses of Multiple occupancy, 
Immigration inspections, 
contaminated land enquiries & 
Sampling of water supplies

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Smoke free fixed penalty notices 
and smoke and carbon 
monoxide alarms for landlords

No increase 01/04/2016

Letting Agents Redress Scheme No increase 01/04/2017
Hygiene food safety, packs and 
energy efficiency standards

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Air Quality No increase 01/04/2017
Hackney Carriage, Animal 
licenses and sex establishments 
etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Alcohol licensing No increase 24/11/2005
Bingo premises, betting 
premises etc

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Gambling Licensing- Gaming 
machines and lottery licenses

No increase 31/01/2007

15



HEADING PROPOSED 19/20 FEE EFFECTIVE DATE 
CHANGE (OR LAST 
INCREASE DATE)

Fixed Penalty Notices- Nuisance 
parking/ Waste Transfer Offence 
etc

Maximum penalty as per 
regulations – no increase

01/04/2017 & 
01/04/2018

Fixed Penalty Notices – 
Littering/Fly posting

Default penalty as per 
regulations – no increase

01/04/2018

Outdoor recreation Inflation increase 01/04/2019
Cemetery charges Inflation increase 01/04/2019
Leisure Centres set by leisure provider 01/04/2019
Local Land Charge fees Inflation increase on land 

charges, CON29R increased 
to match other local 
authorities

01/04/2019

Planning fees set by 
Government

No increase 17/01/2018

Planning and pre-planning 
charges set locally

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Community rooms & guest 
rooms

Inflation increase 01/04/2019

Housing Revenue Account
4.11 The HRA revenue summary is shown at Appendix A and incorporates the proposals that 

are detailed in the report presented to Cabinet and Growth OSC in January.  As part of the 
budget formation there are a number of additional items of expenditure and these are 
detailed as;

 The post of Assistant Chief Executive for Housing Delivery as approved by the 
Employment Committee on 13 November 2018.  This new post is identified as being 
pivotal to supporting the delivery of the Council’s housing growth ambitions by utilising 
its’ role as a major social landlord and by also engaging with other housing providers to 
develop strategic partnering opportunities.  To support this ambition a proposed annual 
budget of £500K is incorporated into base budgets from 2019/20.

 An increase in the HRA proportionate share of central support and democratic costs of 
£300k to reflect increased activity in respect of communications and public relations, 
transformation and innovation and customer facing services.

Housing Revenue Account 2019/2020 – Rent Proposals
4.12 The main element of policy relating to the HRA for 2019/20 is the setting of rents. The 

Council’s policy prior to the Chancellor’s announcements in the summer 2015 was to keep 
in line with the Government’s guidance on rent restructuring seeing annual increases of 
CPI+1% following rent convergence being achieved.  Government has required all social 
landlords to reduce their rents by 1% every year starting in 2016/17 for four years rather 
than previous policy of CPI +1%.  Therefore, the 2019/20 budgets have been compiled on 
this premise with rental budgets reverting back to previous rent setting guidance from 
2020/21 onwards.   

4.13 This decrease in rent will see the annual budgeted rental income reducing from £24.439M 
in 2018/19 to £24.408M in 2019/20.  For 2019/20 the average weekly rental decrease for 
individual property will be £0.81.  The average rent in 2019/20 will be £77.62 with a 

16



minimum of £51.48 and a maximum of £119.77.  Garage rents are proposed to increase in 
line with inflation (2.5%) and service charges are proposed to increase in accordance with 
the fees and charges.  The summary position of the HRA revenue is shown in full detail at 
Appendix A.

Capital Investment Proposals 2019/20 – 2021/22
4.14 The capital focus over the medium term will be on delivery through the acquisition, 

facilitation and development of strategic sites and buildings to stimulate inward investment 
and regeneration. This will lead to the creation of jobs and economic growth.  Different 
opportunities will bring a different range of risks and types of return.  There are potential 
local economic and social returns as well as capital and income returns. The strategic aim 
will be to create a balanced portfolio with clear investment or regeneration objectives. The 
supporting business case will develop these criteria in more detail to enable an informed 
decision to be taken.

4.15 To deliver this ambition the draft capital programme includes an allocation of £10m for 
2019/20.  The associated borrowing will be financed in the short term from the 
Regeneration Reserve on the basis that the asset will be sold within a defined period 
(ordinarily no more than 3 years but with flexibility depending on the business case) in 
order to repay the borrowing and re-invest any profit gain into future acquisitions.  As an 
approximation based on current borrowing costs, for every £1m borrowed, there is a £20k 
Minimum Revenue Provision cost (over a 50-year period) and a £30k interest cost (over a 
30-year period).

4.16 The governing framework for delivering this ambition is detailed in the Property Investment 
Policy at Appendix I which sets out a framework for investing in property assets, via direct 
ownership, joint ventures and to make investments for the benefit, improvement or 
development of the area, through a balanced investment of acquisition, retention and 
management of good quality investments. 

4.17 The capital proposals also include the priorities of the Council by providing the resources 
to support the delivery of the Grantham cinema project, investment in the Council’s assets 
and continuing to invest in fleet to support key services including Street Scene.

4.18 It is important to ensure that there is a robust framework that supports the development 
and delivery of the capital programme and ensure that capital investment decisions are 
taken in line with the Council’s corporate strategy and strategic growth ambitions.  
Therefore, a capital strategy has been developed and is provided at Appendix H which 
provides a robust framework which will be adhered to when formulating the capital 
programme over the medium term. 

4.19 Both the Capital Strategy and the Property Investment Policy will be presented to Growth 
OSC at their meeting on 13 February 2019 in order for the Committee to review the 
documents ahead of Council on 1 March 2019.

4.20 A summarised capital programme is shown below and a detailed capital programme 
included in Appendix D (General Fund & HRA).

17



Table 5 – General Fund

Directorate 2018/19 
Slippage
£000

2019/20 
Updated 
Base £000

2019/20 
Original
Budget 
£000

2020/21 
Indicative 
Budget 
£000

2021/22 
Indicative 
Budget 
£000

Commercial 1,973 1,973 1633 1841
Growth 1,479 10,462 11,941 50 0
Resources 65 235 300 0 0
Total Budget 1,544 12,670 14,214 1,683 1,841
Financing:
Borrowing (10,000)
Capital Receipts (500) (400) (100)
Grants (862) (797) (797)
Reserves (2,852) (486) (944)
Total Financing (14,214) (1,683) (1,841)

  Table 6 – HRA

Heading 2018/19
Slippage
£000

2019/20
Updated 
Base
£000

2019/20
Original 
Budget
£000

2020/21
Indicative 
Budget
£000

2021/22
Indicative 
Budget
£000

HRA 2,225 14,264 16,489 15,113 13,796
Financing:
Borrowing (2,775)
Capital Receipts (5,270) (1,200) (500)
Reserve (11,219) (13,913) (10,521)
Total Financing (16,489) (15,113) (13,796)

Treasury Management Strategy 
4.21 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 

raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management 
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available 
when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially 
before considering investment return.

4.22 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can 
meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.

4.23 It has been detailed in section 6 above that the Council will be embarking on external 
borrowing during 2019/20 in order to provide funding for the capital investment ambitions.  
The Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) shown at Appendix G provides the necessary 
borrowing levels and these are shown in the recommended prudential indicators.  It is 
clear that significant levels of borrowing carry a level of financial risk and affordability, 
sustainability and prudence need to be considered in order to ensure the Council can 
maintain the level of debt repayment.  The methodology and governance of this is detailed 
in the Capital Strategy and the Property Investment Policy.  The proposals for 2019/20 

18



also include the Council exploring the opportunities provided by the removal of the HRA 
borrowing cap and the proposals include a £15m new build programme for the HRA (from 
reserves) for social and affordable housing and the framework for further external 
borrowing if necessary.  

Reserves and Balances
4.24 Reserves are held for three main purposes:

 To ensure the Council has sufficient funds available to meet its cash flow requirements 
and avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of the working balance

 To protect services against unforeseen events that have a financial consequence and 
are not included in the budget framework – this forms part of the working balance

 A means of building up funds to meet known or predicted liabilities –these are known 
as earmarked reserves

4.25 The appropriate levels of the reserves are entirely for the Council to determine and based 
on the risk appetite and other considerations including the level of long term revenue 
ambitions and consideration of the affordability of its capital plans.  In order to assess the 
adequacy of unallocated general reserves when setting the budget, the Council should 
take account of the strategic, operational and financial risks facing the authority. The 
assessment of risks should include external risks, such as economic uncertainty, as well 
as internal risks, for example, the ability to deliver planned efficiency savings. 

4.26 Based on a high level analysis of all district councils, it has been confirmed that the 
coverage ratio of average net spend to reserves is 0.86 compared with 1.44 for South 
Kesteven District Council.  This highlights that the Council is above the family average for 
reserve levels.

Working balance – the minimum level required
4.27 The Council maintains a working balance in order to meet unforeseen expenditure that 

may arise during the year that is not included in the annual budget framework.  The 
proposed minimum balance is set at a level that reflects the financial risk the Council is 
currently exposed to.  In previous years the target has been £1m, but a higher actual 
balance is being maintained and it is proposed to retain the working balance at £2.5m due 
to the anticipated financial volatility over the medium term including the uncertainty of 
future funding from Government.  The current balance is £2.8m, so the target is marginally 
exceeded.  This will be reviewed again as part of the year end work at 31 March 2019.

Earmarked reserves
4.28 Earmarked reserves are used as a means of building up funds to meet known or predicted 

liabilities. The proposed movements built into the budget proposals are shown below:  

19



Table 7 – Reserves Summary
Reserve Heading 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Reason

£’000 £’000 £’000
Revenue Financing

Festivals 93 Gravity & Georgian
Invest to Save 168 101 101 Transformation & 

Innovation
Pension Reserves 933 192 60 Pension Costs
Local Priorities 
Reserve

500 0 0 Deliver SK

ICT 112 22 22 PSN Compliance
Regeneration 418 160 160 Barnack Road
Various projects < 
£50K

53 0 0

TOTAL REVENUE 
BUDGET FUNDING

2,277 475 343

Capital Financing
General Fund Capital 700 0 0 Vehicle 

Replacement
Useable Capital 
Receipts

315 350 100 Vehicle 
Replacement

Useable Capital 
Receipts

15 0 0 Guildhall Arts 
Centre lighting

Useable Capital 
Receipts

50 50 0 Tourism signage

Useable Capital 
Receipts

65 0 0 Meres Leisure 
Centre Boilers

Useable Capital 
Receipts

103 0 0 LED Screen

SEA Reserve 99 0 0 Xmas Lights and 
Park Improvements

Local Priorities 
Reserve

300 0 0 Public Realm

Local Priorities 
Reserve

1,400 0 0 Gravitas Housing 
scheme

Local Priorities 
Reserve

14 0 0 Pool Car Keyless 
Entry system

Local Priorities 
Reserve

80 0 0 ICT infrastructure

Local Priorities 
Reserve

24 24 24 Trade Waste bins

Local Priorities 
Reserve

100 100 100 Wheelie Bins

Local Priorities 
Reserve

65 0 0 ICT infrastructure

Local Priorities 
Reserve

115 0 0 ICT infrastructure

Local Priorities 
Reserve

40 0 0 ICT infrastructure

Local Priorities 
Reserve

29 0 0 Market Stall Covers

Local Priorities 
Reserve

50 0 0 Car Park Barriers

Local Priorities 
Reserve

362 820 Vehicle 
Replacement

20



Reserve Heading 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Reason
£’000 £’000 £’000

Revenue Financing
Working Balance 65 0 0 Shop Front 

Scheme
TOTAL CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 
FUNDING

3,629 886 1,044

GRANT & 
CONTRIBUTIONS 
FUNDING

2,560 960 459

RESERVE 
MOVEMENTS

(2,122) (1,619) (1,431)

CONTRIBUTION TO 
RESERVES FROM 
BUSINESS RATES 
INCREASE

(1,836) Allocated to Invest 
to Save (500) and 
volatility reserve 
(1,336)

TOTAL NET  
MOVEMENT

2,231 227 72

4.29 In respect of the HRA, there are a number of specific reserves to assist in the delivery of 
the HRA Strategy and are used to fund both revenue and capital expenditure.  In addition 
the HRA has a specific working balance which provides financial support to the HRA 
should any significant unforeseen costs arise during the financial year.   Full details of the 
proposed reserve movements are shown at Appendix E and a summary is provided 
below.

Table 8 – HRA reserves summary
Reserve 
Heading

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

Reason

Pension 
Reserve

262 199 - Employer 
contributions 

Improvement 
Reserve

250 250 - Revenue 
contribution 
towards housing 
delivery ambition

Property 
Development 
Reserve

5,000 5,000 2,225 Funding of new 
build capital 
programme

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

3,902 (380) (1,257) Balancing of HRA 
receipts to fund 
capital programme 
as necessary

Major Repairs 
Reserve

(661) Balancing of HRA 
receipts to fund 
capital programme 
as necessary

5 Reasons for the Recommendations(s)
5.1 It is a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget for each financial year.  The 

procedure for doing so is set out in the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as 
amended).

21



6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 The budget proposals are currently being consulted upon with the community and 

stakeholders. The final decision will be made by the Council on 1 March 2019.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 These are considered throughout the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - 
Resources

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 Where a council is making a calculation of budget requirement in accordance with s.32 of 

the Local Government Finance Act 1992, Members should have regard to the comments 
of the Strategic Director – Resources as the Council’s Chief Financial Officer. These 
comments are set out in section 17 above and are made in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2003.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken and is provided at Appendix J.  No 

specific issues are arising from the assessment.

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 Financial Risk - The Budget proposals contained in the report have been compiled using 

the latest forecasting and external sources of information.  There are a number of factors 
that are outside of the Council’s control or influence that can have a detrimental impact on 
the budgets including changes in inflation rates, interest rates, user demand, business and 
trading volatility, collection rates, supply chains and market unpredictability.  It has been 
stated in the report that the Council’s working balance is proposed to be increased in order 
to provide a financial cushion against significant levels of financial instability.  The Council 
will be undertaking more frequent forecasting and modelling during the financial year to 
assess, anticipate and respond to volatility and inform members accordingly.  A risk 
commentary from the Chief Finance Officer is provided below.

Risk Commentary – Chief Finance Officer
10.2 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires me to report on the adequacy of 

reserves and the robustness of estimates.  Additionally, it is best practice that I identify 
risks associated with the budget.

10.3 Given the national financial context for the public sector, and more specifically Local 
Government, it is inevitable that the budget carries significant risk.  This is particularly so 
in the medium term.

10.4 The 2019/20 budget proposals incorporate ambitious but achievable transformation 
savings within the budget framework that will need to delivered in order to maintain a 
balanced financial position.  Robust planning and project management will be undertaken 
in order to ensure this is delivered.

22



The longer terms risks to the budget are:

 The outcomes and implications of the fair funding review will need to be carefully 
considered and modelled to assess the impact and the strategic response.  In 
readiness for this the Corporate Strategy sets out the framework in which the Council is 
working to ensure financial autonomy.

 Resources have been incorporated into the budget to ensure there is sufficient 
capacity to drive forward the changes and initiatives to deliver significant savings over 
the medium term

 The Council has discretionary earmarked reserves in place that can be called upon if 
necessary.  

 a minimum balance of circa £2.5m reserves (working balance) will be maintained.  This 
is an increase compared to previous years to reflect the uncertainty around future 
years funding.

10.5 Subject to the above comments, I am of the opinion that the Council’s general and 
earmarked reserves are adequate. I am also of the opinion that the estimates made in 
preparing the budget are robust based on information available.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 There are none. 

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 There are no other significant implications.

13 Background Papers
13.1 Budget – Joint OSC 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3727&Ver=
4

13.2 Cabinet 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3629&Ver=
4

14 Appendices
 Appendix A– Revenue summary – General Fund (GF) & Housing Revenue Account 

(HRA)
 Appendix B – Capacity Bids – GF
 Appendix C – Saving proposals - GF
 Appendix D – Capital Programme and financing – GF and HRA
 Appendix E – Reserves – GF and HRA
 Appendix F – Fees & Charges 
 Appendix G - Treasury Management Strategy
 Appendix H – Capital Strategy
 Appendix I – Property Investment Policy (to follow)
 Appendix J - Equality Impact Analysis

23

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3727&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3727&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3629&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3629&Ver=4


Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

26 July 2018

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 17 January 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  1 March 2019

24



Appendix A  

Description

2018/19 - 

Original 

Budget

2019/20 - 

Original 

Budget

2020/21 - 

Indicative 

Budget

2021/22 - 

Indicative 

Budget
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

INCOME

1 Dwelling Rents (24,439) (24,408) (24,613) (25,448)

2 Non Dwelling Rents (311) (319) (327) (334)

3 Charges for Services and Facilities (622) (662) (681) (692)

4 Other Income (67) (67) (67) (67)

5 TOTAL INCOME (25,439) (25,455) (25,687) (26,541)

EXPENDITURE

6 Repairs and Maintenance 7,907 8,110 8,243 8,205

7 Supervision and Management - General 2,783 3,201 3,228 3,268

8 Supervision and Management - Special 1,097 1,326 1,342 1,353

9 HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 460 421 419 417

10 Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 3,431 3,620 3,731 3,843

11 Debt Management Expenses 35 35 35 35

12 Provision for Bad Debts 245 245 493 509

13 Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit) 225 272 315 367

 

14 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 16,183 17,230 17,806 17,997

15 NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (9,256) (8,225) (7,881) (8,544)

16 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,718 2,736 2,638

17 Interest and Investment Income (228) (219) (138) (161)

18 NET POSITION BEFORE RESERVE MOVEMENTS (6,668) (5,726) (5,283) (6,067)

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

19 (Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 6,668 5,726 5,283 6,067

20 Other Revenue Movements (pension, setasides) 225 262 199

21 Repayment of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) (3,222)

22 Major Repairs Reserve Transfer (3,101) (2,523) (2,465) (1,943)

23 Housing Revenue Account Balance at start of Year 2,489 3,059 3,302 3,098

24 Housing Revenue Account Balance at end of Year 3,059 3,302 3,098 4,000

25 Major Repairs Reserve Balance at Start of Year 10,328 12,646 13,307 11,446

26 Depreciation & MRR Transfer 6,532 6,630 6,802 6,498

27 Capital Financing & Loan Repayment (4,214) (5,969) (8,663) (8,296)

28 Major Repairs Reserve Balance at End of Year 12,646 13,307 11,446 9,648

HRA REVENUE SUMMARY 2019/20

25



Appendix A

Description

2018/19 - 

Original 

Budget

2018/19 - 

Adjusted 

Base

2019/20 - 

Original 

Budget

2020/21 - 

Indicative 

Budget

2021/22 - 

Indicative 

Budget
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Commercial 6,051 6,359 5,457 5,567 6,014 

Growth 6,773 6,940 7,108 6,466 6,493 

Resources 4,337 6,054 7,807 7,098 7,399 

HRA Recharge 0 0 (2,470) (2,513) (2,556)

Net Cost of Services 17,161 19,353 17,902 16,618 17,350 

Interest Payable & Investment Income (198) (198) 100 123 120 

Minimum Revenue Provision 247 247 308 502 496 

Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (3,619) (3,766) (4,170)

LCTSS 22 22 0 0 0 

Net Budget Requirement 13,832 16,024 14,691 13,477 13,796 

Funding & Resources:

Council Tax (Excluding Parishes) (7,146) (7,146) (7,475) (7,815) (8,170)

S31 Grants 0 0 (118) 0 0 

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 98 0 

Retained Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (5,154) (4,132) (3,974)

Pooling/Pilot Gain (250) (709) 0 0 0 

New Homes Bonus (2,086) (2,086) (1,957) (1,576) (1,490)

Rural Grant 0 0 (295) 0 0 

Collection Fund Deficit 321 321 (1,390) 0 0 

Total Funding (13,561) (14,020) (16,389) (13,425) (13,634)

Tfr to/from reserves:

Business Rates Volatility Reserve (397) (397) 1,336 0 0 

Events and Festivals (160) (160) (93) 0 0 

Regeneration Reserve 0 0 (718) (417) (369)

NHB Transfer to Reserves 2,086 2,086 1,957 1,576 1,490 

Building Control Reserve 22 22 31 41 23 

Invest to Save (332) (488) 332 (101) (101)

Pensions Reserve - Former Employees (70) (70) (56) (58) (60)

Pensions Reserve - Current Employees (727) (727) (877) (134) 0 

Special Expenses 49 49 49 49 49 

Individual Electoral Registration 0 0 (21) 0 0 

ICT Reserve 0 0 (112) (22) (22)

Member Training and Development 0 0 (11) 0 (1)

Apprenticeships (65) (65) 0 0 0 

Ward Member (56) (56) 0 0 0 

Economic Development and Growth - Local Plan (120) (120) 0 0 0 

Community Fund (150) (150) (42) 0 0 

Local Priorities Reserve (200) (864) 215 0 0 

Service Improvement Reserve 0 (710) 0 0 0 

SAC Bequest 0 (33) 0 0 0 

Grants (151) (321) (292) (71) 7 

Total Tfr to/fr Reserves (271) (2,004) 1,698 863 1,016 

NET BUDGET DEFICIT/(SURPLUS) 0 0 0 915 1,178 

26



Appendix B

2019/20  - 2021/22 Capacity Bids

Description
2019/20
Impact
£000

One off/
Recurring

Responsible
Cabinet Member

Recurring
Replacement website 32.5 £7.5k recurring Cllr Cooke
Replacement of intranet 19 £4k recurring Cllr Cooke
Closed churchyards 15 recurring Cllr Cooke
Play area improvements 30 recurring Cllr Cooke
Annual staff survey 10 recurring Cllr Cooke
Server and storage infrastructure 22 recurring Cllr Cooke
Estates surveyor post 29 recurring Cllr Cooke
Member services research and support assistant 29 recurring Cllr Cooke
Cabinet, members and development assistant 13(net) recurring Cllr Cooke
Fuel price increase 75 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Vehicle maintenance cost increase 34 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Pool car keyless entry system 26 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Shared Services - Lincolnshire Waste Partnership 9 recurring Cllr Dr Moseley
Biodiversity project along River Witham 60 recurring Cllr Robins
Parks community engagement and events officer 19 recurring Cllr Robins
Growing and retaining our talent programme (Invest SK funding) 110 recurring Cllr Smith

One-off
Land acquisition revenue costs 258 One off Cllr Cooke
Replacement of members ICT equipment 38.5 One off Cllr Cooke
Members training and development 11 One off Cllr Cooke
New market at Market Deeping – set up costs 10 One off Cllr Robins
Car park enforcement cost increase 25 One off Cllr Robins
TOTAL 875

27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                                                 Appendix C

HEADING  DETAILS ORIGINAL
18/19

ORIGINAL
19/20

UPDATED
19/20

Variance
for 19/20 Variance Comments

£'000 £’000 £’000 £'000

Savings CORPORATE CONSULTANCY CENTRALISATION (30) (30) 0 30 Savings to be identified
Savings SHARED SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES (150) (150) (50) 100 A number of planning officers are seconded to Rutland; additional opportunities to share have been discounted
Savings CHRISTMAS CLOSURE 0 (5) 0 5 Arrangements to be reviewed.
Savings GENERAL FUND UTILITIES INITIATIVE (50) (25) 0 25 Base budgets reduced in line with costs prior to this bid- no further savings available
Savings LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC STAFF REDUCTION (40) (40) (37) 3
Savings RESTRUCTURE SAVINGS (300) (300) (300) 0 Savings identified
Savings COMMUNICATIONS REDUCTION IN SUPPLIES & SERVICES BUDGETS (32) (32) (32) 0
Savings COMMUNICATIONS SAVINGS CENTRALISATION (10) (10) (10) 0
Savings REDUCTION OF MFDS 0 (20) (20) 0 Savings already built into the 18/19 base budget so no further savings available
Savings TRANSFORMATION PROCESS AUTOMATION 0 (70) (200) (130) Additional savings included from Transformation Programme 
Savings PLANNING SHARED BACK OFFICE 0 (50) 0 50 A number of planning officers are seconded to Rutland; additional opportunities to share have been discounted
Savings CHANNEL SHIFT SAVINGS 0 (70) (70) 0
Savings CORPORATE CALL OUT PAYMENTS (18) (18) 0 18 Savings are not achieveable due to the overtime requirements of frontline service areas
Savings MEDICAL INSURANCE SAVINGS 0 0 (20) (20) New savings proposed
Savings CORPORATE OVERTIME PAYMENTS (45) (45) 0 45 Savings are not achieveable due to the overtime requirements of frontline service areas
Savings CORPORATE USE OF AGENCY STAFF (75) (75) (75) 0
Savings CORPORATE REMOVAL OF VACANT POSTS (45) (45) 0 45 Vacant posts have been removed so this saving is not achievable
Savings CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS (50) (50) (50) 0 18/19 review of subscriptions level has proposed £25k savings to date
Savings COMMUNICATIONS ADMIN ASSISTANT (10) (10) (10) 0
Savings SERVICE REVIEW 2% REDUCTION ALL AREAS (50) (50) 0 50 Service reviews to be completed
Savings CUSTOMER SERVICES COST REDUCTION (60) (60) (60) 0
Savings REMOVAL OF ADMIN SUPPORT (28) (28) (72) (44) Additional efficiency savings identified
Savings ICT STAFF REDUCTION (40) (40) (40) 0
Savings ICT COMMS - NORTHGATE SAVINGS (20) (20) (20) 0 Licensing costs currently under review
Savings CORPORATE INCREASE OF VACANCY FACTOR (60) (60) (60) 0
Savings CORPORATE PROCUREMENT - LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT (70) (70) (70) 0
Savings CORPORATE PROCUREMENT SAVINGS (200) (300) (300) 0
Income Generation HRA - TRANSFER OF NON HOUSING ASSETS (100) (100) (25) 75 Initial properties now under review for potential development sites for affordable housing
Income Generation ST PETER'S HILL DEVELOPMENT (LETTING OF A3 & CINEMA) (30) (200) 0 200 Rephasing of the scheme and 'rent free periods' resulting in revenue income being received after 2019/20
Income Generation PROPERTY INVESTMENT COMMERCIAL 0 (200) 0 200 No additional property investment purchases have been identified in 18/19
Income Generation IDOX SHARED SERVICES (40) (40) (40) 0
Income Generation VALUATION ADVICE - RECOVERY OF ANNUAL COST (15) (15) (15) 0
Income Generation PLANNING POLICY & HERITAGE SUPPORT ADVICE TO PARTNERS (18) (60) (18) 42 £42k income fro Rutland has been built into base budgets. no further income has been achieved
Income Generation COMMERCIAL ADVERTISING ON WEB (10) (10) 0 10 Following a review of the original bid the decision has been made to not pursue this 
Income Generation LOCAL LOTTERY IN LIEU OF EXISTING GRANTS (20) (40) (10) 30 It has been estimated that £10k will be achieved in 19/20

SKILLS ACADEMY (30) 0 0 0
Income Generation GRAVITAS HOUSING - COMMERCIAL INCOME AND MANAGEMENT COSTS 0 (100) 0 100 This has not yet commenced, a reduced level of income has been budgeted in future years
Income Generation GRAVITAS HOUSING - SALE OF LEASE BACK FOR FORMER HRA PROPERTIES 0 (50) 0 50 This has not yet commenced, a reduced level of income has been budgeted in future years
Income Generation CAR PARKING FEES INCREASE - 50P INC PER TARIFF TO 20% (250) (250) 0 250 Car Park tariffs have not been increased
Income Generation TRANSFORMATION  - SALE OF WHITE SPACE APP 0 (140) 0 140 Following a review of the original bid the decision has been made to not pursue this 
Income Generation INCREASE IN MARKET STALLS (15) (15) 0 15 Options to provide additional stalls have been investigated, but an acceptable solution has not yet been found
Income Generation PLANNING FEES INCREASE (176) (176) (176) 0
Income Generation GREEN WASTE COLLECTION CHARGE (40) (58) (58) 0
Income Generation ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH INCREASES (6) (6) (6) 0
Income Generation COMMERCIAL WASTE (175) (374) (374) 0
Income Generation IN-HOUSE ENFORCEMENT INCOME (150) (150) (151) (1)

Income Generation ADVERTISING INCOME/ SPONSORSHIP (36) (72) 0 72 This post has not been recruited into achieving a saving of £36k which is offset by a reduction in the income expected
to be received from this bid of £72k

(2,494) (3,729) (2,369) 1,360

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

2019/20 - 2021/22 Capital Programme

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Description New Indicative Updated Base Slippage Updated Indicative Indicative

Bids Base Before Slippage Base Base Base

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Growth
1 Shop Front Scheme 130 - 130 - 130 - -
2 Grantham Christmas Lights 40 - 40 - 40 - -
3 Investment and Regeneration Strategy 10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000 - -
4 Local Authority Controlled Company - - - 1,400 1,400 - -
5  Guildhall Arts Centre - Theatre lighting & visual equipment - 15 15 - 15 - -
6 LED TV screen 103 - 103 - 103 - -
7  Tourism Signage - 50 50 - 50 50 -

8  Replacement of Gas Boilers at Meres Leisure Centre Grantham 65 - 65 - 65 - -
9  Replacement of Market Stall Covers - - - 29 29 - -

10  Car Park Barriers - - - 50 50 - -
11  Queen Elizabeth Park, Grantham - Provision of visitor car park 30 - 30 - 30 - -
12  Wyndham Park Grantham Car Park 29 - 29 - 29 - -

10,397 65 10,462 1,479 11,941 50 -

Commercial
13 Disabled Facilities Grant 797 - 797 - 797 797 797
14 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 310 - 310 - 310 57 260
15 Vehicle Replacement Programme 705 - 705 - 705 655 660
16 CCTV Matrix 23 - 23 - 23 - -
17 Pool Car Keyless Entry 14 - 14 - 14 - -
18 Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 - 100 - 100 100 100
19 Trade Waste Bins 24 - 24 - 24 24 24

1,973 - 1,973 - 1,973 1,633 1,841

Resources 
20  Sandbox Firewall - - - 65 65 - -
21  Server and storage infrastructure 115 - 115 - 115 - -
22  Payment Receipting System 40 - 40 - 40 - -
23  Government Digital Services Compliance Programme 80 - 80 - 80 - -

235 - 235 65 300 - -

24 TOTAL GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 12,605 65 12,670 1,544 14,214 1,683 1,841

25 GENERAL FUND FINANCED BY:

26 Borrowing 10,000 - -

27 Specfic Reserve - Capital 750 - -

29 Useable Capital Receipts 500 400 100

30 Capital Grants and Contributions
31      - Disabled Facility Grant 797 797 797
32      - Historic England 65 - -

33 Direct Revenue Financing
34      - Wyndham Park- SEA 59 - -
35      - Xmas Lights- SEA 40 - -
36      - S106 Monies 23 - -
37      - Shop Front Scheme 65 - -
38      - Local Priorities Reserve 1,915 486 944

39 TOTAL - GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME 14,214 1,683 1,841

31



Appendix D

2019/20 - 2021/22 HRA Capital Programme

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Ref Description Slippage New Updated Indicative Indicative

Bids Base Base Base
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Energy Efficiency Initiatives
1 Central Heating, Ventilation and boiler replacements - 1,514 1,514 1,769 1,526

- 1,514 1,514 1,769 1,526
Refurbishment and Improvement

2 New Build Properties - 6,800 6,800 5,200 4,500
3 Property Development 4,130 870 5,000 5,000 5,000
4 Re-roofing - 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
5 Re-wiring - 300 300 300 300
6 Kitchen & Bathroom Refurbishments - 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
7 Doors & Windows - 100 100 100 100
8 Sewage Refurbishment - 100 100 100
9 Communal Rooms - 70 70 70 70

4,130 10,440 14,570 12,970 12,170
ICT

10 Upgrade of Housing Management System - 250 250 250
- 250 250 250

Purchase of Vehicles
11 Repairs Vehicles - 155 155 124 100

- 155 155 124 100

12 TOTAL - HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 4,130 12,359 16,489 15,113 13,796  

HRA FINANCED BY:

13 Major Repairs Reserve 5,969 8,663 8,296
14 Property Development Reserve 5,000 5,000 2,225
15 HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 5,270 1,200 500
16 HRA Improvement Reserve 250 250 -
17 Borrowing - - 2,775

18 TOTAL - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 16,489 15,113 13,796

32



                                                                                                                                          Appendix E

2019/20 - 2021/22 GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT

Name Purpose

Balance
as at

31/3/18

Forecast
change
in Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/19

Forecast
change
in Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/20

Forecast
change in

Year

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/21

Forecast
change
in Year

Forecast
Balance

as at
31/3/22

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Discretionary Reserves

1 Stamford Arts Centre Bequest 33 (33) 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 Training and Development Member training 15 0 15 (11) 4 0 4 (1) 3
3 Events and Festivals 233 (140) 93 (93) 0 0 0 0
4 Apprenticeships Develop Mgt Training 36 (36) 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 Waste and Recycling initatives Fuel duty increases 156 (80) 76 0 76 0 76 76
6 ICT investment 173 147 320 (112) 208 (22) 186 (22) 164
7 Economic Development & Growth Local Plan 169 (120) 49 0 49 0 49 49
8 Service Improvement Reserve 1,065 (1,065) 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 Community Fund 150 (108) 42 (42) 0 0 0 0

10 Local Priorities Reserve 10,921 (3,470) 7,451 (1,543) 5,908 1,090 6,998 546 7,544
11 Regeneration 0 1,213 1,213 282 1,495 (417) 1,078 (369) 709
12 Invest to Save 802 198 1,000 332 1,332 (101) 1,231 (101) 1,130
13 Housing Delivery Unspent DFGs 347 0 347 0 347 0 347 347
14 Ward Members 56 (56) 0 0 0 0 0 0  
15 Property Maintenance 0 110 110 0 110 0 110 110
16 Food Waste 170 (170) 0 0 0 0 0 0

14,326 (3,610) 10,716 (1,187) 9,529 550 10,079 53 10,132
Governance Reserves

16 Insurance Reserve 337 (107) 230 0 230 0 230 230
17 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 466 (54) 412 (56) 356 (58) 298 (60) 238
18 Pensions Reserve - Current Employees 1,768 (757) 1,011 (877) 134 (134) 0 0
19 BR & CTS Volatility 1,729 (397) 1,332 1,336 2,668 0 2,668 0 2,668
20 Building Control (7) 25 18 31 49 41 90 23 113
21 Football 3G Pitch Grant condition 25 0 25 0 25 25 25
22 SEA Reserve 260 (49) 211 (50) 161 49 210 49 259

4,578 (1,339) 3,239 384 3,623 (102) 3,521 12 3,533

23 Total General Revenue Reserves 18,904 (4,949) 13,955 (803) 13,152 448 13,600 65 13,665

Homelessness 21 (21) 0 0 0 0
New Burdens Grant 111 (23) 88 88 88 88
Neighbourhood Planning Grant 74 1 75 7 82 7 89 7 96
Garden Towns & Villages 90 90 90 90 90
Custom Build 30 30 (23) 7 7 7
Planning Delivery 90 (14) 76 (76) 0 0 0
DHP top  up 7 7 7 7 7
Individual Electoral Registration 118 (16) 102 (21) 81 (7) 74 74
LGA Commercial 6 6 6 6 6
Garden Village 385 (114) 271 (200) 71 (71) 0 0
Historic England 57 57 57 57 57
Grantham Growth 69 69 69 69 69

24 Government Grants Received 1,058 (187) 871 (313) 558 (71) 487 7 494

25 TOTAL Earmarked Revenue Reserves 19,962 (5,136) 14,826 (1,116) 13,710 377 14,087 72 14,159

26 Working Balance 2,835 (247) 2,588 (65) 2,523 0 2,523 2,523

27 Total Revenue Reserves 22,797 (5,383) 17,414 (1,181) 16,233 377 16,610 72 16,682

Capital Reserve
28 LAMS Reserve Residual scheme liability 304 (286) 18 0 18 0 18 18
29 St Peters Hill Development 2,607 (2,607) 0 0 0 0 0 0
30 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,171 (447) 724 (700) 24 0 24 24
31 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,794 (1,581) 2,213 (350) 1,863 (150) 1,713 1,713
32 Total Capital Reserves 7,876 (4,921) 2,955 (1,050) 1,905 (150) 1,755 0 1,755

34 Total General Fund Reserves 30,673 (10,304) 20,369 (2,231) 18,138 227 18,365 72 18,437

33



Appendix E

2019/20 - 2021/22 HRA RESERVES STATEMENT

Balance
as at

31/3/2018

Forecast
change  in

Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/2019

Forecast
change  in

Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/2020

Forecast
change  in

Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/2021

Forecast
change  in

Year

Forecast
Balance as
at 31/3/2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue Reserves
Insurance Reserve 200 200 200 200 200
Service Specific Funds (Pension) 686 (225) 461 (262) 199 (199) 0 0
HRA Improvement Reserve 561 561 (250) 311 (250) 61 61
Loan Repayment Reserve 16,350 (15,000) 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
Property Development Reserve 0 14,130 14,130 (5,000) 9,130 (5,000) 4,130 (2,225) 1,905
Working Balance 2,489 570 3,059 242 3,301 (203) 3,098 902 4,000

Total HRA Revenue Reserves 20,285 (525) 19,760 (5,270) 14,490 (5,652) 8,838 (1,323) 7,515

HRA Capital Reserve
HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 3,332 577 3,909 (3,902) 7 380 387 1,257 1,644
Major Repairs Reserve 10,328 2,318 12,646 661 13,307 (1,861) 11,446 (1,798) 9,648

Total HRA Capital Reserves 13,660 2,895 16,555 (3,241) 13,314 (1,481) 11,833 (541) 11,292

Total HRA Reserves 33,946 2,370 36,316 (8,511) 27,805 (7,133) 20,672 (1,864) 18,808

34



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

CAR PARKS - GRANTHAM 

1 SHORT STAY (EXCEPT WHARF ROAD)

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included

Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included

Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included

Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 4.00 4.00 Included

SHORT STAY Wharf Road Grantham

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included

Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included

Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included

Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 6.00 6.00 Included

Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 8.00 8.00 Included

2 LONG STAY 

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included

Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 2.50 2.50 Included

All day 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

3 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS

 (Monday to Friday)

Per quarter 01/04/2010 99.00 99.00 Included

Per 6 months 01/04/2010 190.00 190.00 Included

4 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS

 (Monday to Saturday)

Per quarter 01/04/2010 120.00 120.00 Included

Per 6 months 01/04/2010 230.00 230.00 Included

Season Ticket Discount Offer Purchase

4 1

8 2

15 5

5 PENALTY CHARGE NOTICES

Failure to display 01/04/2013 70.00 70.00 O/Scope

Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Parking for longer etc 01/04/2013 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Detail VAT

Additional Tickets Free

35



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

CAR PARKS - STAMFORD

1 SHORT STAY

Up to 30 mins 01/04/2010 0.50 0.50 Included

Up to 1 hour 01/04/2010 0.80 0.80 Included

Up to 2 hours 01/04/2010 1.30 1.30 Included

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included

Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

Over 4 hours 01/04/2010 4.00 4.00 Included

2 LONG STAY

Up to 3 hours 01/04/2010 1.80 1.80 Included

Up to 4 hours 01/04/2010 2.50 2.50 Included

All day 01/04/2010 3.00 3.00 Included

3 COACH PARKING (ALL DAY)

Cattle Market 01/04/2010 10.00 10.00 Included

4 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS

 (Monday to Friday)

Per quarter 01/04/2010 99.00 99.00 Included

Per 6 months 01/04/2010 190.00 190.00 Included

5 LONG STAY SEASON TICKETS

 (Monday to Saturday)

Per quarter 01/04/2010 120.00 120.00 Included

Per 6 months 01/04/2010 230.00 230.00 Included

Season Ticket Discount Offer Purchase

4 1

8 2

15 5

6 PENALTY CHARGE NOTICES

Failure to display 01/04/2013 70.00 70.00 O/Scope

Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Parking for longer etc 01/04/2013 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

Fine after discount for Payment in 14 days 01/04/2013 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Detail VAT

Additional Tickets Free

36



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

BUS STATION - GRANTHAM

1 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

2 Minimum Charge

1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

BUS STATION - STAMFORD

3 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

4 Minimum Charge

1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

BUS STATION - BOURNE

5 Per Departure 01/04/2014 0.77 0.77 Included

6 Minimum Charge

1-75 departures per annum 01/04/2014 51.00 51.00 Included

Detail VAT

37



415.00 83.00 498.00 415.00 83.00 498.00

200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

260.00 52.00 312.00 260.00 52.00 312.00

Building Control - Detail

Category of work

Full Plans Application Building Notice Applications

Plan Charge Building Notice Charge

Net Charge 

£

VAT

£

Gross 

Charge £

Net Charge 

£

VAT

£

Gross 

Charge £

348.00

Extension or loft conversion where floor area 

exceeds 10m2 but does not exceed 30m2 380.00 76.00 456.00 380.00 76.00 456.00

Extension or loft conversion where the floor area 

does not exceed 10m2 290.00 58.00 348.00 290.00 58.00

588.00

Erection or extension of a domestic garage or carport 

up to 60m2 290.00 58.00 348.00 290.00 58.00 348.00

Extension or loft conversion where the floor area 

exceeds 30m2 but does not exceed 80m2 490.00 98.00 588.00 490.00 98.00

294.00

Renovation of a thermal element to a single existing 

dwelling (eg Re-roofing, Re-plastering, Floor/Wall 

Insulation)
200.00 40.00 240.00 200.00 40.00 240.00

Conversion of a domestic garage into a habitable 

room(s) 245.00 49.00 294.00 245.00 49.00

Work for which the estimated cost is over £2,000 

and up to £5,000

Replacement of windows in domestic dwelling 

(individual quote for commercial) 165.00 33.00 198.00 198.00

Electrical work involving the complete re-wiring of an 

existing dwelling

Installation of Controlled Fittings such as heating 

system, PV panels, solar heating systems and other 

such alternative systems

Work for which the estimated cost is up to £2,000

165.00 33.00

150.00

For any work not covered in the above table, please contact us on 01476 406187 or e-mail 

bcontrol@southkesteven.gov.uk for a quotation.

Forming a single structural opening
125.00 25.00 150.00 125.00 50.00

38



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

BUILDING CONTROL CHARGES

1 Administration Charges

Enquiries & searching of historic records  within 20 

working days 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope

Enquiries & searching of historic records within 48 hours 01/02/2017 90.00 90.00 O/Scope

Copy of completion certificate - within 20 working days 01/02/2017 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Copy of completion certificate - within 1 working day 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope

Copy of notice of decision - within 20 working days 01/02/2017 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Copy of notice of decision - within 1 working day 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 O/Scope

First issue of Completion Certificates 01/02/2017 75.00 75.00 O/Scope

Exemption Confirmation Letter 01/02/2017 45.00 45.00 O/Scope

Responses to Professional Letters for Commercial 

Purposes 01/02/2017 75.00 75.00 O/Scope

2 Additional Inspection Charges

Additional inspections for quality of building works 

including help with snagging list

01/04/2015

20% of 

original 

charge

20% of 

original 

charge 

Included

3 Other Charges

Pre-application advice - 1st hour free, thereafter, hourly 

rate applies 01/02/2017 45.00 45.00 Included

SAP and EPC Charges 01/02/2017 180.00 180.00 Included

Domestic structural design 01/02/2017 156.00 156.00 Included

Administration charge for dangerous structures, 

withdrawn applications, historic buildings etc. (per hour) 01/02/2017 60.00 60.00 Included

Fire Risk Assessments 01/02/2017 POA POA Included

Demolition Notice 01/02/2017 360.00 120.00 O/Scope

Detail VAT

39



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

MARKETS - GRANTHAM & MARKET DEEPING

1 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2012 21.50 21.50 Exempt

Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2015 24.30 24.30 Exempt

2 Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2012 20.00 20.00 Exempt

Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2015 21.20 21.20 Exempt

Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2015 24.30 24.30 Exempt

3 Vehicles parked for storage

Cars and light vans 01/04/2015 6.60 6.60 Included

Large vehicles 01/04/2015 10.10 10.10 Included

MARKETS - STAMFORD

4 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 23.85 23.85 Exempt

Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 27.30 27.30 Exempt

5 Pitch (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 21.30 21.30 Exempt

Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 24.15 24.15 Exempt

Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2016 27.30 27.30 Exempt

6 Craft fair - Table 01/04/2016 25.15 25.15 Exempt

7 Craft fair - Stall 01/04/2016 30.45 30.45 Exempt

8 Vehicles parked for storage

Cars and light vans 01/04/2016 6.80 6.80 Included

Large vehicles 01/04/2016 10.45 10.45 Included

MARKETS - BOURNE

9 Standard Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 19.30 19.30 Exempt

Standard Casual Stall (3.05m x 1.22m) 01/04/2016 21.00 21.00 Exempt

10 Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 16.25 16.25 Exempt

Casual Pitch (3.05m x 3.05m) 01/04/2016 16.75 16.75 Exempt

Hot food & drinks units 01/04/2016 21.00 21.00 Exempt

11 Vehicles parked for storage

Cars and light vans 01/04/2016 6.90 6.90 Included

Large vehicles 01/04/2016 10.45 10.45 Included

12 Hire of stall for private function (collection only)* 01/04/2016 11.05 11.05 Exempt

13 FOR ALL MARKETS

Farmers market - supply of stall cover 01/04/2007 1.00 1.00 Exempt

in addition to standard stall charge

Fruit and Veg Excessive Waste Surcharge (per stall) 01/04/2016 5.30 5.30 Included

* any associated costs with delivery and set up will be charged accordingly

Detail VAT

40



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

BOURNE LEISURE CENTRE

1 Swimming Pool

Swimming - full rate 01/04/2019 5.05 5.10 Exempt

Swimming - concession 01/04/2019 3.35 3.50 Exempt

Under 5's 01/04/2019 0.85 0.90 Exempt

Parent and toddler session 01/04/2019 5.10 5.20 Exempt

Exclusive pool hire (per hour) 01/04/2019 152.45 145.00 Exempt

LCC Schools (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.25 1.30 Exempt

2 Main Hall (per hour)

Sporting - full rate 01/04/2019 57.45 60.50 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

Badminton - full rate 01/04/2019 12.05 12.40 Exempt

Table tennis - full rate per hour 01/04/2019 6.90 7.10 Exempt

3 Fitness Room (per hour)

Individual use - full rate 01/04/2019 8.35 8.50 Exempt

4 Miscellaneous (per hour)

Activity room/meeting room - full rate 01/04/2019 25.40 26.15 Exempt

Spectator (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.25 1.30 Exempt

5 Hire of equipment

Rackets and balls 01/04/2019 2.30 2.35 Exempt

(all types of rackets and balls)

6 Membership

Adult member 01/04/2019 25.25 25.20 Exempt

Junior (U16) 01/04/2019 12.15 12.10 Exempt

Concessionary 01/04/2019 12.15 12.10 Exempt

Family membership 01/04/2019 52.15 58.20 Exempt

THE LIST OF CHARGES IS NOT DEFINITIVE AND ARE NON-MEMBER RATES

LOWER CHARGES ARE AVAILABLE FOR LEISURE CENTRE MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP RATES MAY VARY ACCORDING TO LOCAL PROMOTIONS

Detail VAT

41



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

DEEPINGS LEISURE CENTRE

1 Swimming pool

Swimming - full rate 01/04/2019 4.45 4.60 Exempt

Swimming - concession 01/04/2019 2.90 3.10 Exempt

Under 5's 01/04/2019 0.75 0.80 Exempt

Parent and toddler session 01/04/2019 4.60 4.70 Exempt

Exclusive pool hire (per hour) 01/04/2019 92.70 92.70 Exempt

2 Main Hall (per hour)

Sporting - full rate 01/04/2019 52.05 52.00 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

Badminton - full rate 01/04/2019 12.15 12.50 Exempt

Table tennis - full rate per hour 01/04/2019 7.10 7.60 Exempt

3 Squash Court (per 40 mins) - full rate 01/04/2019 8.50 8.00 Exempt

4 Second Hall (per hour)

Sporting - full rate 01/04/2019 25.45 25.40 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

5 Fitness Room (per hour)

Individual use - full rate 01/04/2019 7.25 7.40 Exempt

6 Miscellaneous (per hour)

Spectator (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.40 1.45 Exempt

Detail VAT

42



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

DEEPINGS LEISURE CENTRE

7 Hire of equipment

Table tennis bat/ball 01/04/2019 2.30 2.20 Exempt

Skate hire / shuttlecock 01/04/2019 2.30 2.20 Exempt

Badminton/tennis/squash racket 01/04/2019 2.30 2.20 Exempt

8 Synthetic Pitch (per hour)

Full synthetic pitch - full rate 01/04/2019 51.50 53.00 Exempt

Six-a-side - full rate 01/04/2019 20.50 21.10 Exempt

Floodlights (full pitch) - full rate 01/04/2019 20.65 21.70 Exempt

Floodlights (six-a-side) - full rate 01/04/2019 7.70 7.90 Exempt

9 Outdoor pitches

per pitch (2 hours) - full rate 01/04/2019 58.75 60.40 Exempt

Includes marking out and accommodation

THE LIST OF CHARGES IS NOT DEFINITIVE AND ARE NON-MEMBER RATES

LOWER CHARGES ARE AVAILABLE FOR LEISURE CENTRE MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP RATES MAY VARY ACCORDING TO LOCAL PROMOTIONS

Detail VAT

43



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

THE GRANTHAM MERES LEISURE CENTRE

1 Swimming pool

Swimming - full rate 01/04/2018 5.05 5.10 Exempt

Swimming - concession 01/04/2018 3.35 3.50 Exempt

Under 5's 01/04/2018 0.85 0.80 Exempt

Parent and toddler session 01/04/2018 5.20 5.30 Exempt

Exclusive pool hire (per hour) 01/04/2018 150.65 155.20 Exempt

LCC Schools (per individual) 01/04/2018 1.25 1.30 Exempt

2 Main Hall (per hour)

Sporting - full rate 01/04/2019 80.90 82.90 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

Badminton - full rate 01/04/2019 11.85 12.10 Exempt

Climbing wall - full rate 01/04/2019 8.15 8.40 Exempt

Table tennis centre hall 01/04/2019 60.00 61.40 Exempt

Table tennis - full rate per hour 01/04/2019 7.10 7.20 Exempt

3 Second Hall (per hour)

Sporting - full rate 01/04/2019 38.40 39.50 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

4 Fitness Room (per hour)

Individual use - full rate 01/04/2019 9.05 9.30 Exempt

5 Miscellaneous (per hour)

Meeting room - full rate 01/04/2019 16.80 17.70 Exempt

Activity Room - full rate 01/04/2019 17.75 16.80 Exempt

Spectator (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.35 1.40 Exempt

6 Hire of equipment

Table tennis bat/ball 01/04/2018 2.40 2.40 Exempt

Badminton/tennis/squash racket 01/04/2018 2.40 2.40 Exempt

Detail VAT

44



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

THE GRANTHAM MERES LEISURE CENTRE

7 Synthetic Pitch Pay and Play (per hour)

Full pitch (11v11) 01/04/2019 77.25 79.50 Exempt

Quarter pitch (5v5) 01/04/2019 25.75 26.50 Exempt

Half pitch (9v9) 01/04/2019 46.35 47.70 Exempt

8 Outdoor Facilities - (per hour)

Tennis court - full rate 01/04/2019 14.45 14.80 Exempt

Netball - full rate 01/04/2019 20.60 21.20 Exempt

9 Membership

Adult member 01/04/2019 29.90 25.20 Exempt

Junior (U16) 01/04/2019 12.65 12.10 Exempt

Concessionary 01/04/2019 12.65 12.10 Exempt

Family membership 01/04/2019 60.50 58.20 Exempt

THE LIST OF CHARGES IS NOT DEFINITIVE AND ARE NON-MEMBER RATES

LOWER CHARGES ARE AVAILABLE FOR LEISURE CENTRE MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP RATES MAY VARY ACCORDING TO LOCAL PROMOTIONS

Detail VAT

45



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

STAMFORD LEISURE CENTRE

1 Swimming pool

Swimming - full rate 01/04/2019 5.05 5.10 Exempt

Swimming - concession 01/04/2019 3.35 3.40 Exempt

Under 5's 01/04/2019 0.85 0.80 Exempt

Parent and toddler session 01/04/2019 5.25 5.40 Exempt

Parties - exclusive pool hire (per hour) 01/04/2019 152.45 160.00 Exempt

LCC schools (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.25 1.30 Exempt

Spectator (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.35 1.40 Exempt

2 Membership

Adult member 01/04/2019 26.25 24.50 Exempt

Junior (U16) 01/04/2019 12.65 12.10 Exempt

Concessionary 01/04/2019 12.65 12.10 Exempt

Family membership 01/04/2019 60.50 58.00 Exempt

THE LIST OF CHARGES IS NOT DEFINITIVE AND ARE NON-MEMBER RATES

LOWER CHARGES ARE AVAILABLE FOR LEISURE CENTRE MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP RATES MAY VARY ACCORDING TO LOCAL PROMOTIONS

Detail VAT

46



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

SOUTH KESTEVEN SPORTS STADIUM

1 Track Hire

Adult 01/04/2019 49.75 51.90 Exempt

Concession 01/04/2019 31.35 32.60 Exempt

Floodlights 01/04/2019 38.80 40.90 Exempt

Commercial 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

Non-sporting / Non-commercial 01/04/2019 59.60 57.40 Exempt

2 Individual use (per hour)

Adult 01/04/2019 4.30 4.40 Exempt

Concession 01/04/2019 2.75 2.90 Exempt

Spectator (per individual) 01/04/2019 1.35 1.40 Exempt

Hire of equipment (per booking) 01/04/2019 24.70 25.70 Exempt

Setting up time 01/04/2019 24.70 25.70 Exempt

3 Main football pitch hire

Pitch hire (up to 2 hours)

Adult 01/04/2019 137.85 146.30 Exempt

Concession 01/04/2019 82.85 95.80 Exempt

Floodlights (per match) 01/04/2019 78.05 79.30 Exempt

Commercial (per hour) 01/04/2012 Negotiable Negotiable Exempt

4 Individual room hire (per hour)

P.A./Meeting room 01/04/2019 15.15 15.50 Exempt

THE LIST OF CHARGES IS NOT DEFINITIVE AND ARE NON-MEMBER RATES

LOWER CHARGES ARE AVAILABLE FOR LEISURE CENTRE MEMBERS

MEMBERSHIP RATES MAY VARY ACCORDING TO LOCAL PROMOTIONS  

Detail VAT

47



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

STAGED PERFORMANCES

1 Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham

Theatre Hire

Performances - Commercial 01/04/2019 315.00 324.00 Exempt

Performances - Non Profit making 01/04/2019 252.00 259.00 Exempt

Dress rehearsals 01/04/2019 199.00 204.00 Exempt

Rehearsals (incl tech) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt

Lecture/demonstrations (Daytime) 01/04/2019 93.00 95.00 Exempt

Lecture/demonstrations (Evening) 01/04/2019 204.00 210.00 Exempt

Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt

2 Stamford Arts Centre

Theatre Hire

Performances - Commercial 01/04/2019 333.00 343.00 Exempt

Performances - Non Profit making 01/04/2019 279.00 287.00 Exempt

Dress rehearsals 01/04/2019 199.00 204.00 Exempt

Rehearsals (incl tech) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt

Lecture/demonstrations (Daytime) 01/04/2019 93.00 95.00 Exempt

Lecture/demonstrations (Evening) 01/04/2019 204.00 210.00 Exempt

Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 127.00 130.00 Exempt

Technical surcharge per hire 01/04/2019 55.00 56.50 Exempt

3 Bourne Corn Exchange

Theatre Hire - Main Hall

Performances 01/04/2019 120.00 123.50 Exempt

Dress Rehearsals 01/04/2019 94.00 96.50 Exempt

Rehearsals 01/04/2019 78.00 80.00 Exempt

Set up charge/technical support (max. 8 hours) 01/04/2019 120.00 123.00 Exempt

Hire conditions are available giving details of equipment and support offered; quotations provided on request.

Detail VAT

The theatres and ballrooms are available for hire for theatrical productions, concerts,

lectures, demonstrations, films and other performing arts events. Prices are below:

Performers Rights Society charges may be applicable in addition to the above rates

48



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

4 Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham

Casually let rooms (per hour)

Ballroom - hourly day rate up to 6pm 01/04/2016 33.50 33.50 Exempt

Ballroom - hourly evening rate 6 to 11pm - meetings & workshops 01/04/2019 55.00 33.50 Exempt

Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm parties 01/04/2019 299.00 307.00 Exempt

Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm concerts 01/04/2019 239.00 245.00 Exempt

Ballroom - (all day) Wedding rate 01/04/2019 465.00 477.50 Exempt

Ballroom - (all day) Wedding rate including setting

up charge previous evening 01/04/2019 770.00 790.00 Exempt

Use of ballroom kitchen per day 01/04/2016 55.00 55.00 Exempt

Meeting rooms (per hour)

Newton room 01/04/2016 27.50 27.50 Exempt

Studio 4* 01/04/2018 15.00 15.00 Exempt

5 Bourne Corn Exchange

Casually let rooms

Main hall - hourly rate 01/04/2019 36.55 37.50 Exempt

Main hall - Friday or Saturday whole evening 01/04/2019 271.00 279.00 Exempt

6pm-12pm incl prem rate

Main hall - (all day) 9am to 12pm excluding kitchen 01/04/2019 426.30 439.00 Exempt

Kitchen hire (use of kitchen area excluding equip)* 01/04/2019 64.95 67.00 Exempt

Kitchen hire (full use of kitchen and equipment

including crockery and cutlery etc)* 01/04/2019 121.80 125.50 Exempt

Room set up or clear down (as per hourly rate or

part thereof) 01/04/2019 36.55 37.50 Exempt

Room set up or clear down after midnight (as per

hourly rate or part thereof) 01/04/2019 51.75 53.00 Exempt

6 Stamford Arts Centre

Casually let rooms (per hour)

Ballroom - hourly day rate up to 6pm 01/04/2016 33.50 33.50 Exempt

Ballroom - hourly evening rate 6 to 11pm - meetings & workshops 01/04/2019 55.00 33.50 Exempt

Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm - parties 01/04/2019 455.00 467.50 Exempt

Ballroom - whole evening 6 to 11pm - concerts 01/04/2019 343.00 352.50 Exempt

Function ballroom/Blue room - all day wedding rate 01/04/2019 837.00 862.00 Exempt

Function ballroom/Blue room - wedding rate

including setting up charge previous evening 01/04/2019 1243.00 1280.00 Exempt

Meeting rooms - per hour

Blue Room* 01/04/2018 17.50 17.50 Exempt

Rehearsal* 01/04/2018 15.00 15.00 Exempt

Ireson/Burghley/Exeter Room 01/04/2018 12.00 12.00 Exempt

Additional cleaning for social functions 01/04/2019 60.00 61.80 Included

*access to kitchen up to 4 hours prior to event start time, additional earlier access will

incur additional hourly rate of £10

Room Hire

The Fees & charges above are listed as guide prices- Please call your respective arts centre for a specific hire quotation

Detail VAT

WEDDING RECEPTIONS, PARTIES AND OTHER ROOM HIRE

All three venues are available for wedding parties and similar functions. Packages are

available to include provision of bars and catering. Prices are below.

Performers Right Society charges may be applicable in addition to the above rates

49



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

1 Green Waste
Delivery of Green bin (or bins to same address) 01/04/2012 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Provision of green bin (all new or additional bins) 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (first bin) - Paid by telephone or face to 

face (not direct debit) 01/04/2018 35.00 35.00 O/Scope

Annual collection charge (first bin) - Paid online or by direct debit 01/04/2018 32.00 32.00 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (each subsequent bin) - Paid by telephone 

or face to face (not direct debit) 01/04/2016 16.50 16.50 O/Scope
Annual collection charge (each subsequent bin) - Paid online or by 

direct debit 01/04/2016 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

2 Other street care charges
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Additional Silver recycling bin 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Additional clear recycling sacks (pack of 15) 01/04/2010 1.25 1.25 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 240 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2010 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 140 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2016 15.00 15.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged 180 ltr wheelie bins* 01/04/2016 17.00 17.00 O/Scope
Replacement of damaged wheels and axles* 01/04/2010 20.00 20.00 O/Scope
Replacement of bin lid pegs* 01/04/2010 5.00 5.00 O/Scope

3 Additional bins for Landlords ( subject to qualifying criteria)
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
240 ltr bin 01/04/2016 26.00 26.00 O/Scope
360 ltr bin 01/04/2016 49.00 49.00 O/Scope
660 ltr bin 01/04/2016 116.00 116.00 O/Scope
1100 ltr bin 01/04/2016 149.00 149.00 O/Scope

4 Replacement (additional capacity) bins for Families (subject to qualifying criteria)
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
360 ltr bin 01/04/2016 49.00 49.00 O/Scope
660 ltr bin 01/04/2016 116.00 116.00 O/Scope
1100 ltr bin 01/04/2016 149.00 149.00 O/Scope

5 Developers charge for new developments
Delivery of bin (or bins to the same address) 01/04/2016 10.00 10.00 O/Scope
Set of bins (1 black 240 ltr & 1 silver 240 ltr) 01/04/2016 52.00 52.00 O/Scope

6 Domestic refuse collection
Bulk household items - first item 01/04/2015 12.00 12.00 O/Scope
 - each additional item 01/04/2015 6.00 6.00 O/Scope
White Goods collection 01/04/2015 12.00 12.00 O/Scope
Piano collection 01/04/2015 50.00 50.00 O/Scope
Ad Hoc Bulky collections (non standard items) - to be assessed by 

Supervisor, charged appropriately

7 Private street cleansing 01/04/2010 Based on cost recovery

8 Commercial waste collections (including bulky items) - please 

contact us by email; waste@southkesteven.gov.uk for a quotation 01/04/2016

*Where bins have been damaged by the resident

Detail VAT

50



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

MOT Testing

1 Classes 1 and 2

Motorcycles 01/04/2010 29.65 29.65 O/Scope

Motorcycles with sidecar 01/04/2010 37.80 37.80 O/Scope

2 Class 4

Cars (up to 8 passenger seats) and motor caravans 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Quads (max unladen weight 400kg - for goods

vehicles 550kg and max net power 15kw) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Dual purpose vehicles 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Private hire vehicles and PSVs (up to 8 seats) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Goods vehicles (up to 3,000 kg DGW) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Ambulances and Taxis (Taxis and private hire

vehicles may be subject to additional local

requirements) 01/04/2010 54.85 54.85 O/Scope

Private passenger vehicles and ambulances (9-12

Passenger Seats) 01/04/2010 57.30 57.30 O/Scope

3 Class 7

Goods vehicles (over 3,000kg up to 3,500kg DGW) 01/04/2010 58.60 58.60 O/Scope

NOTES

These are the maximum fees chargeable in accordance with Vehicle and Operator Standards Agency

Detail VAT

51



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

1 Premise/Business registration fees
Acupuncture 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Tattooing 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Electrolysis 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Cosmetic piercing 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Semi permanent skin colouring 01/04/2019 143.20 147.50 O/Scope
Additional activities (eg cosmetic piercing and
tattooing) per activity 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Amendment or replacement certificate 01/04/2019 22.45 23.00 O/Scope

2 Personal registration fees (Per activity)
Acupuncture 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Tattooing 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Electrolysis 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Cosmetic piercing 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Semi permanent skin colouring 01/04/2019 71.10 73.50 O/Scope
Amendment or replacement certificate 01/04/2019 22.45 23.00 O/Scope

3 Unsound food
Voluntary surrender certificate 01/04/2019 39.15 40.32 Included

4 Frozen food exports
Inspection and certification 01/04/2019 78.30 80.64 Included
Certification only 01/04/2019 28.75 29.58 Included

5 Food Hygiene Rating Scheme
Re-inspection/Re-visit 01/04/2018 150.00 150.00 Included

6 Control of dogs

Collecting and detaining stray dogs (statutory fine) 01/04/1996 25.00 25.00 O/Scope
Handling, Kennelling & Administration 01/04/2019 36.60 38.00 O/Scope
Kennelling per day or part of 01/04/2019 17.00 17.50 O/Scope

7 Scrap Metal
Dealer initial licence - 3 year licence Part A 01/04/2019 198.80 205.00 O/Scope
Dealer initial licence - 3 year licence Part B 01/04/2019 390.40 402.00 O/Scope
Collector initial licence 01/04/2019 153.50 158.00 O/Scope
Dealer licence renewal - Part A 01/04/2019 167.90 173.00 O/Scope
Dealer licence renewal - Part B 01/04/2019 390.40 402.00 O/Scope
Collector licence renewal 01/04/2019 122.30 126.00 O/Scope
Licence name change * 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 O/Scope
Copy of a licence 01/04/2019 11.45 12.00 O/Scope

* per individual

8 Caravan Sites & Park Homes
Application for a new site Licence - Fixed cost 01/04/2019 394.10 405.00 O/Scope
Transfer/amendments of up to 2 Licence conditions 01/04/2019 162.05 167.00 O/Scope
Significant amendments involving a site visit 01/04/2019 233.10 240.00 O/Scope
Annual Fee - per pitch 01/04/2019 10.40 11.00 O/Scope
Enforcement - Based on an hourly rate 01/04/2018 Variable variable O/Scope
Deposit of site rules 01/04/2019 56.45 58.50 O/Scope

NB Relevant fees as per the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 are now broken down into Part A and Part B. 
Part A is payable upon application, Part B is payable upon grant of license

Detail VAT

52



Detail Effective 2018/19 2019/20 VAT

Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

9 ENQUIRIES IN CONNECTION WITH CONTAMINATED LAND

Enquiries  01/04/2019 126.50 130.50 O/Scope

10 Private sector housing charges 01/04/2012 Hourly Rate Hourly Rate O/Scope

11 Food Hygiene/Health & Safety Charges 01/04/2018 Hourly Rate Hourly Rate Included

12 Immigration inspections 01/04/2019 103.00 106.00 O/Scope

13 Private Sector Housing Civil Penalties (Maximum 

penalty allowed by legislation £30,000 as alternative to 

prosecution) 01/04/2018 30,000.00 30,000.00 O/Scope

14 HOUSES OF MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

Initial/New Licence 01/04/2019 473.50 488.00 O/Scope

Renewal of licence 01/04/2019 168.30 173.50 O/Scope

15

Risk Assessment (each assessment) 01/04/2019 500.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope

Sampling (each visit) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope

Investigation (each investigation) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope

Grant of authorisation (each authorisation) 01/04/2019 100.00 Hourly Rate O/Scope

Analysing a sample:

Taken under Reg 10 (domestic) 01/04/2019 25.00 Variable O/Scope

Taken during monitoring of group A parameters 01/04/2019 100.00 Variable O/Scope

Taken during monitoring of Group B parameters and 

monitoring under regulation 11 01/04/2019 500.00 Variable O/Scope

16 SMOKE FREE FIXED PENALTY NOTICES

Smoking in smoke free designated premises, place, 

vehicle 01/04/2016 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

If paid within 15 days of issue 01/04/2016 30.00 30.00 O/Scope

Failing to display smoke free signage as per law 01/04/2016 200.00 200.00 O/Scope

If paid within 15 days of issue 01/04/2016 150.00 150.00 O/Scope

17 SMOKE AND CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS FOR RELEVANT LANDLORDS

Full cost recovery plus penalty charge for failure to 

comply 01/04/2016 700 - 4,500 700 - 4,500 O/Scope

 (Maximum penalty allowed by legislation £5,000) 

18 LETTING AGENTS REDRESS SCHEME

Penalty for failure to comply 01/04/2017 5,000.00 5,000.00 O/Scope

(Maximum penalty allowed by legislation £5,000 should

be considered the norm and a lower fine should only

be charged if there are extenuating circumstances

considered on a case by case basis)

*The Private Water Supplies (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 consultation has now concluded and new 

legislation has removed the maximum cap on charges. Charges will be based on cost recovery.

SAMPLING OF PRIVATE WATER SUPPLIES INTENDED FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION*

53



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

19 HYGIENE & FOOD SAFETY

New Business Advice Consultation 01/04/2019 N/A 195.00 Included

Food Hygiene Check-up 01/04/2019 N/A 150.00 Included

Food Safety Organiser 01/04/2019 N/A 29.70 Included

Food hygiene workshop (1 hour max 8 people) 01/04/2019 N/A 111.00 Included

Pocket guides 01/04/2019 N/A 21.00 Included

20 SAFER FOOD BETTER BUSINESS

Catering pack 01/04/2019 N/A 19.50 Included

Retail pack 01/04/2019 N/A 18.60 Included

Childminder pack 01/04/2019 N/A 12.00 Included

Residential care home supplement 01/04/2019 N/A 6.60 Included

6 month diary refill 01/04/2019 N/A 10.20 Included

12 month diary refill 01/04/2019 N/A 12.00 Included

21

MINIMUM ENERGY EFFICIENCY STANDARDS (PRIVATE 

RENTED PROPERTY) *

Letting substandard property (less than 3 months) 01/04/2019 N/A 2000.00 O/scope

Letting substandard property (3 months or more) 01/04/2019 N/A 4000.00 O/scope

Registering false or misleading information on the PRS 

Exemptions Register 01/04/2019 N/A 1000.00 O/scope

Failing to comply with compliance notice 01/04/2019 N/A 2000.00 O/scope

*These are subject to approval in the Private Sector 

Housing Enforcement Policy which is tabled for Cabinet in 

November

Detail VAT

54



Effective 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

Date

LAPPC Permits for Part B Installations, Mobile Plant and 

Solvent Emissions Activities

Application Fees

1 Standard Process (includes solvent emission activities) 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope
Standard Processes additional fee for operating without a 

permit 01/04/2017 1,188.00
O/Scope

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners 01/04/2017 155.00 O/Scope

PVR I & II combined 01/04/2017 257.00 O/Scope

Vehicle refinishers (VRs) and other reduced fees activities 01/04/2017 362.00 O/Scope
Reduced fee activities:  Additional fee for operating without a 

permit 01/04/2017 99.00

Mobile Plant (not using simplified permits) 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope

 - for the third to seventh application 01/04/2017 985.00 O/Scope

 - for the eighth and subsequent applications 01/04/2017 498.00 O/Scope

Where an application for any of the above is for a

combined Part B and waste application, add an

extra £297 to the above amounts

2 Substantial changes to permits

Standard Process 01/04/2017 1,050.00 O/Scope
Standard Process where the substantial change results in a new 

PPC activity 01/04/2017 1,650.00 O/Scope

Reduced Fee Activities 01/04/2017 102.00 O/Scope

3 Transfer and Surrender 

Transfer of a permit - Standard Process 01/04/2017 169.00 O/Scope
New operator at low risk reduced fee activity (extra one off 

subsistence charge) 01/04/2017 78.00 O/Scope

Partial transfer of a standard permit 01/04/2017 497.00 O/Scope

Reduced Fee Activities: Partial Transfer 01/04/2017 47.00 O/Scope

Reduced Fee Activates: Transfer 01/04/2014 0.00 O/Scope

4 Temporary transfer for mobiles

First transfer 01/04/2017 53.00 O/Scope

Repeat following enforcement or warning 01/04/2017 53.00 O/Scope

5 Annual Subsistence Charge

Standard Process - LOW 01/04/2017 772.00 (+103)* O/Scope

Standard Process - MEDIUM 01/04/2017 1,161.00 (+156)* O/Scope

Standard Process - HIGH 01/04/2017 1,747.00 (+207)* O/Scope

* The additional amount in brackets must be charged where a 

permit is for a combined Part B and waste installation

LOW MED HIGH

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners 01/04/2017 79.00 158.00 237.00 O/Scope

PVR I & II combined 01/04/2017 113.00 226.00 341.00 O/Scope

Vehicle refinishers and other Reduced Fees 01/04/2017 228.00 365.00 548.00 O/Scope

Mobile Plant for the first and second permits 01/04/2017 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope

for the third to seventh permits 01/04/2017 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

for the eighth and subsequent permits 01/04/2017 198.00 316.00 473.00 O/Scope

Late Payment Fee (8 weeks from date of invoice) 01/04/2017 52.00 O/Scope
* Where a Part B installation is subject to reporting under the E-

PRTR Regulation, add an extra £103 to the above annual 

subsistence amounts

NOTES

The above fees are those currently imposed by DEFRA, a full copy of which can be viewed on their website www.gov.uk

Detail VAT

55

http://www.defra.gov.uk/


Effective 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

Date £ £ £ £

6

LAPPC mobile plant charges (not using 

simplified permit)

Application

fee LOW MED HIGH

number of permits

1 01/04/2017 1,650.00 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope

2 01/04/2017 1,650.00 646.00 1,034.00 1,506.00 O/Scope

3 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

4 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

5 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

6 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

7 01/04/2017 985.00 385.00 617.00 924.00 O/Scope

8 and over 01/04/2017 498.00 198.00 316.00 473.00 O/Scope

7 LA-IPPC (Local Authority Element)

Application 01/04/2017 3,363.00 O/Scope

additional fee for operating without a permit 01/04/2017 1,188.00 O/Scope

Annual subsistence LOW 01/04/2017 1,446.00 O/Scope

Annual subsistence MEDIUM 01/04/2017 1,610.00 O/Scope

Annual subsistence HIGH 01/04/2017 2,333.00 O/Scope

Late Payment Fee 01/04/2017 52.00 O/Scope

Variation 01/04/2017 1,368.00 O/Scope

Substantial variation 01/04/2017 3,363.00 O/Scope

Transfer 01/04/2017 235.00 O/Scope

Partial transfer 01/04/2017 698.00 O/Scope

Surrender 01/04/2017 698.00 O/Scope

*Additional fee for payment of subsistence fees 

for LAPPC and LAIPPC by quarterly instalments 01/04/2017 38.00 O/Scope

** where 9(2)(a) or (b) applies under the Local 

Authority Permits for Part A(2) Installations and 

small waste incineration plan(Fees and Charges) 

(England) (Scheme) 2017

NOTES

The above fees are detailed in the Local Authority Permits for Part A(2) Installations and small waste incineration

plan (Fees & Charges) (England) (Scheme) 2017 in the currently imposed by DEFRA, a fully copy of which can be viewed

on their website www.defra.gov.uk

*

Detail VAT

Subsistence charges can be paid in four equal quarterly instalments paid on 1 April, 1 July, 1 October and 1 January.  

Where paid quarterly the amount payable to the authority will increase by £38

56

http://www.defra.gov.uk/


Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

LICENCES

1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire *
Driver's licence - 3 Year - Standard Licence Period 01/04/2019 247.10 254.50 O/Scope
Driver's licence - annual (conditions apply) 01/04/2019 90.25 92.95 O/Scope
Dual licence - supplementary charge 01/04/2019 14.05 14.45 O/Scope
Driver's badge - replacement 01/04/2019 13.40 13.80 O/Scope
Lost plate replacement 01/04/2019 40.40 41.58 Included
Replacement licence certificate 01/04/2019 11.25 11.55 O/Scope
Replacement bracket 01/04/2019 10.30 10.56 Included
Replacement of internal vehicle plate 01/04/2019 5.70 5.85 O/Scope
Transfer of vehicle ownership 01/04/2019 25.85 26.60 O/Scope
Knowledge test (initial and retest) 01/04/2019 42.45 43.70 O/Scope
Private Hire Operator Licence - 5 Year 01/04/2019 146.80 151.20 O/Scope
Change of registration number ie cherished number plates 01/04/2019 57.40 59.10 O/Scope

2 Annual vehicle licence *
Private Hire 01/04/2019 212.20 218.55 O/Scope
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2019 231.45 238.35 O/Scope
*20% reduction for LPG/Hybrid/Wheelchair vehicles: Private Hire 01/04/2019 169.75 174.85 O/Scope
*20% reduction for LPG/Hybrid/Wheelchair vehicles: Hackney 01/04/2019 185.10 190.65 O/Scope
Exemption from displaying Private Hire plate 01/04/2019 31.35 32.25 O/Scope
Exemption from displaying Private Hire plate (renewal fee) 01/04/2019 20.95 21.55 O/Scope

3 Refund for unexpired days due to change of vehicle * Daily
Private Hire 01/04/2018 0.60 0.60 O/Scope
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2018 0.65 0.65 O/Scope

4 One-off admin charge in respect of refund *
Hackney Carriage 01/04/2019 25.75 26.50 O/Scope
Private Hire 01/04/2019 25.75 26.50 O/Scope

5 Animal Licences **
Pre application/Re-inspections (where applicable) 01/04/2019 62.75 96.75 O/Scope
Dog Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 115.50 O/Scope
Dog Boarding - Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 85.50 O/Scope
Cat Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 115.00 O/Scope
Cat Boarding - Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 85.50 O/Scope
Dual Dog and Cat Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 130.00 190.50 O/Scope
Dual Dog and Cat Boarding - Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 138.00 O/Scope
Dog Day Care - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 115.50 O/Scope
Dog Day Care - Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 85.50 O/Scope
Home Boarding - Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 108.00 O/Scope
Home Boarding - Part B 01/04/2019 10.65 78.00 O/Scope
Arrangers 01/04/2019 N/A 51.00 O/Scope
Dog Breeding Establishments Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 123.00 O/Scope
Dog Breeding Establishments Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 93.00 O/Scope
Selling Animals as Pets- Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 115.50 O/Scope
Selling Animals as Pets- Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 85.50 O/Scope
Riding Establishments Part A 01/04/2019 90.00 115.50 O/Scope
Riding Establishments Part B 01/04/2019 25.75 85.50 O/Scope
Dangerous Wild Animals 01/04/2019 115.75 119.20 O/Scope
Transfer of licence 01/04/2019 N/A 91.15 O/Scope
Animals for exhibition (3 year Licence) Part A 01/04/2019 N/A 92.70 O/Scope
Animals for exhibition (3 year Licence) Part B 01/04/2019 N/A 91.15 O/Scope
Variation 01/04/2019 N/A 111.00 O/Scope

6 Zoo Licences
New Application (4 year) Part A 01/04/2019 391.40 403.10 O/Scope
New Application (4 year) Part B 01/04/2019 103.00 106.05 O/Scope
Renewal (6 year) Part A 01/04/2019 412.00 424.35 O/Scope
Renewal (6 year) Part B 01/04/2019 206.00 212.15 O/Scope
Transfer of Licence 01/04/2019 61.80 63.65 O/Scope

7 Sex Establishments
New Application/Renewal - Part A 01/04/2019 1,519.25 1,564.80 O/Scope
New Application/Renewal - Part B 01/04/2019 123.60 127.30 O/Scope

8 Street Trading
Stamford Pedestrian Precinct Per Day 01/04/2019 23.00 23.65 O/Scope
Other Locations per day from 01/04/2019 18.50 19.05 O/Scope
Other Locations- 4hrs or less per day 01/04/2019 10.00 10.30 O/Scope
Private Land per day 01/04/2019 10.00 10.30 O/Scope

NB Relevant fees as per the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 are now broken down into Part A and Part B. 
Vets fees where applicable are excluded from the fees as above
Part A is payable upon application, Part B is payable upon grant of license

Detail VAT

57



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

1 Licensed Premises
Grant of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 450.00 450.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 635.00 635.00 O/Scope

2 Variation of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 450.00 450.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 635.00 635.00 O/Scope
Minor Variation 30/06/2009 89.00 89.00 O/Scope

3 Annual Fee for Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 180.00 180.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 295.00 295.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 320.00 320.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 350.00 350.00 O/Scope

4 Grant of Premises Licence where alcohol is primary use
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 100.00 100.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 190.00 190.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 900.00 900.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 1,905.00 1,905.00 O/Scope

5 Annual Fee for Premises Licence where alcohol is primary use
Band A (Rateable Value £0 - £4,300) 24/11/2005 70.00 70.00 O/Scope
Band B (Rateable Value £4,301 - £33,000) 24/11/2005 180.00 180.00 O/Scope
Band C (Rateable Value £33,001 - £87,000) 24/11/2005 295.00 295.00 O/Scope
Band D (Rateable Value £87,001 - £125,000) 24/11/2005 640.00 640.00 O/Scope
Band E (Rateable Value £125,001+) 24/11/2005 1,050.00 1,050.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

Detail VAT

58



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

6 Grant of Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
Number of Persons
5,000 to 9,999 24/11/2005 1,000.00 1,000.00 O/Scope
10,000 to 14,999 24/11/2005 2,000.00 2,000.00 O/Scope
15,000 to 19,999 24/11/2005 4,000.00 4,000.00 O/Scope
20,000 to 29,999 24/11/2005 8,000.00 8,000.00 O/Scope
30,000 to 39,999 24/11/2005 16,000.00 16,000.00 O/Scope
40,000 to 49,999 24/11/2005 24,000.00 24,000.00 O/Scope
50,000 to 59,999 24/11/2005 32,000.00 32,000.00 O/Scope
60,000 to 69,999 24/11/2005 40,000.00 40,000.00 O/Scope
70,000 to 79,999 24/11/2005 48,000.00 48,000.00 O/Scope
80,000 to 89,999 24/11/2005 56,000.00 56,000.00 O/Scope
90,000 and over 24/11/2005 64,000.00 64,000.00 O/Scope

7 Annual Fee - Number of Persons
5,000 to 9,999 24/11/2005 500.00 500.00 O/Scope
10,000 to 14,999 24/11/2005 1,000.00 1,000.00 O/Scope
15,000 to 19,999 24/11/2005 2,000.00 2,000.00 O/Scope
20,000 to 29,999 24/11/2005 4,000.00 4,000.00 O/Scope
30,000 to 39,999 24/11/2005 8,000.00 8,000.00 O/Scope
40,000 to 49,999 24/11/2005 12,000.00 12,000.00 O/Scope
50,000 to 59,999 24/11/2005 16,000.00 16,000.00 O/Scope
60,000 to 69,999 24/11/2005 20,000.00 20,000.00 O/Scope
70,000 to 79,999 24/11/2005 24,000.00 24,000.00 O/Scope
80,000 to 89,999 24/11/2005 28,000.00 28,000.00 O/Scope
90,000 and over 24/11/2005 32,000.00 32,000.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

Detail VAT

59



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

ALCOHOL LICENSING

8 Other Charges - Licensing Act 2003
Personal Licence (Grant/ renewal) 24/11/2005 37.00 37.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a personal licence 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Duty to notify change of name or address 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Temporary Event Notice 24/11/2005 21.00 21.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a Temporary Event Notice 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of a premises licence or summary 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Application for a provisional statement where 
premises being built etc 24/11/2005 315.00 315.00 O/Scope
Notification of change of name or address 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope

Application to vary licence to specify individual as DPS 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope
Transfer of premises licence 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope

Interim authority notice following death etc of licence holder 24/11/2005 23.00 23.00 O/Scope
Theft, loss etc of certificate of summary 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope

Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Change of relevant registered address of club 24/11/2005 10.50 10.50 O/Scope
Right of freeholder etc to be notified of licensing
matters 24/11/2005 21.00 21.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

Detail VAT

60



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

GAMBLING LICENSING

1 Bingo Premises Licence

Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 727.20 749.00 O/Scope

Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 483.10 597.55 O/Scope

Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 767.35 790.35 O/Scope

Annual Fee 01/04/2019 511.95 527.30 O/Scope

Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 699.40 720.35 O/Scope

Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 585.05 602.60 O/Scope

Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 585.05 602.60 O/Scope

2 Adult Gaming Centre

Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.55 O/Scope

Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 441.35 O/Scope

Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.35 O/Scope

Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 463.65 O/Scope

Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.30 O/Scope

Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

3 Family Entertainment Centre

Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.55 O/Scope

Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 441.35 O/Scope

Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.35 O/Scope

Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 463.65 O/Scope

Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.30 O/Scope

Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

4 Betting Premises

Application Fee for Provisional Status 01/04/2019 669.50 689.55 O/Scope

Licence for Provisional Statement Premises 01/04/2019 428.50 441.35 O/Scope

Application Fee New Premises 01/04/2019 699.40 720.35 O/Scope

Annual Fee 01/04/2019 450.15 463.65 O/Scope

Variation of Licence 01/04/2019 647.90 667.30 O/Scope

Transfer Fee 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

Application for Reinstatement 01/04/2019 523.25 538.95 O/Scope

5 Miscellaneous

Change of Circumstances 01/04/2019 53.25 50.00 O/Scope

Fee for copy of licence 01/04/2019 26.10 25.00 O/Scope

Detail VAT

61



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

GAMBLING LICENSING

6 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres (10 year duration)

Gaming Machine Permit (no annual fee) 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

Renewal 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

Change of name 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

Prize Gaming Permit (no annual fee) 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

Renewal 31/01/2007 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

Change of name 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

7 Club Gaming Permit & Club Machine Permit (10 years duration)

New 31/01/2007 200.00 200.00 O/Scope

Renewal 31/01/2007 200.00 200.00 O/Scope

Annual Fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

Variation  31/01/2007 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

Copy of Permit 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

8 Gaming Machines

2 or less - One off fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

3 or more machines plus annual fee below 31/01/2007 150.00 150.00 O/Scope

Transfer 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Variation 31/01/2007 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

Change of name on a Gaming Permit (more than 2 

machines) 31/01/2007 25.00 25.00 O/Scope

Copy of Gaming Machine Permit (more than 2 machines) 31/01/2007 15.00 15.00 O/Scope

Annual Fee 31/01/2007 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

9 Small Lotteries

Registration 01/09/2007 40.00 40.00 O/Scope

Renewal 01/09/2007 20.00 20.00 O/Scope

Fees set by government

Detail VAT

62



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

NEIGHBOURHOODS

1 Fixed Penalty Notice - Community Protection Notice 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

2 Fixed Penalty Notice - Public Space Protection Order 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

3 Fixed Penalty Notice - Domestic Waste Offence 01/04/2017 80.00 80.00 O/Scope

4 Fixed Penalty Notice - Commercial Waste Offence 01/04/2017 110.00 110.00 O/Scope

5 Fixed Penalty Notice - Waste Transfer Offence 01/04/2017 300.00 300.00 O/Scope

6 Fixed Penalty Notice - Littering* 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

7 Fixed Penalty Notice - Fly Tipping 01/04/2018 400.00 400.00 O/Scope

8 Fixed Penalty Notice - Fly Posting/Graffiti* 01/04/2018 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

9 Fixed Penalty Notice - Abandoning a Vehicle 01/04/2017 200.00 200.00 O/Scope

10 Fixed Penalty Notice - Nuisance Parking 01/04/2017 100.00 100.00 O/Scope

11 REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF CCTV IMAGES

Legal Representative/Insurance Company 01/04/2016 50.00 50.00 O/Scope

12 Neighbourhood charges 01/04/2019 Hourly rate O/Scope

NB. The above fees are set at the maximum full penalty with the exception of those marked * which are set 

at the default penalty as determined in the Environmental Offences (Fixed Penalties) (England) Regulations

Detail VAT

63



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

OUTDOOR RECREATION

1 Pitches - Football/Rugby

Senior pitch letting (2 hrs), marking out and

changing accommodation included

Full rate 01/04/2019 47.00 48.24 Included

Concessions 01/04/2019 27.75 28.50 Included

2 Junior pitch (ages 11-16) letting (2 hrs) and marking out

Full rate 01/04/2019 20.95 21.48 Included

3 Mini pitch letting (ages 8-11) (1 hr) and marking out

Full rate 01/04/2019 12.50 12.84 Included

4 Tennis Court

Hard Courts Free Free Included

5 Cricket

Per Match 01/04/2019 43.80 45.00 Included

6 Wyndham Park Visitor Centre

Room hire per hour* 01/04/2019 N/A 15.00 Included

*Guide price - please call the Visitor Centre for a specific hire quotation

Detail VAT

64



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

GRANTHAM CEMETERY

TRADITIONAL BURIAL GROUND

1 Exclusive Right of Burial

(Not exceeding 50 years)

Standard grave space - Parishioners 01/04/2019 527.40 543.00 Exempt

2 Interment

Person aged 16 years or over - single depth 01/04/2019 537.70 554.00 Exempt

Person aged 16 years or over - double depth 01/04/2019 602.55 621.00 Exempt

Child below 16 years 01/04/2019 235.90 242.00 Exempt

Each additional coffin space 01/04/2019 188.50 194.00 Exempt

3 Licence for the Erection of Memorials

Headstone (not exceeding 3 feet in height) 01/04/2019 129.80 134.00 Exempt

Headstone (each additional 6 inches) 01/04/2019 129.80 134.00 Exempt

Metal faced tablet 01/04/2019 89.65 92.00 Exempt

Additional inscription 01/04/2019 50.00 51.50 Exempt

Kerbed memorial 01/04/2019 140.10 144.50 Exempt

4 Mausoleum

Single vault mausoleum plot 01/04/2019 676.75 697.00 Exempt

5 Re-Open Graves

Interment Fee - single depth 01/04/2019 459.40 473.00 Exempt

Interment Fee - double depth 01/04/2019 602.55 621.00 Exempt

Interment ashed into grave 01/04/2019 156.60 161.50 Exempt

6 Woodland Burial Ground

All inclusive charge covering standard grave space,

single depth interment, tree and plaque

- Parishioners 01/04/2019 1,209.25 1,245.50 Exempt

Please note there is a 50% additional charge for Non Parishioners (i.e. outside of

Grantham boundary) on items 1- Exclusive Right of Burial, 4- Re-open Graves and 6- Woodland Burial Ground

Detail VAT

65



Effective 2018/19 2019/20
Date £ £

LOCAL LAND CHARGE FEES

1 Registration of a Charge on Part II of Register 01/04/2019 83.75 86.00 O/Scope

2 Filing a Definitive Certificate of Lands Tribunal 01/04/2019 3.50 4.00 O/Scope

3 Filing adjustment etc. for variation -
cancellation of entry in Part II 01/04/2019 8.85 9.00 O/Scope

4 Inspection of documents filed under Rule 10 01/04/2019 3.50 4.00 O/Scope

5 Official search (including issue of certificate)
 - whole of register 01/04/2019 14.75 15.00 O/Scope

6 Office copy of entry in register 01/04/2019 13.60 14.00 O/Scope

7 Con 29 Part I enquiries*
 - one parcel of land, including the revised Con 29 questions 01/04/2019 134.52 135.00 Included
 - each additional parcel 01/04/2019 18.90 19.50 Included

8 Supplementary Part II enquiries*
 - each printed enquiry 01/04/2019 16.41 16.80 Included
 - Solicitor/Clients own enquiry 01/04/2019 21.39 21.90 Included
 - Question 22 common land 01/04/2019 21.39 21.90 Included

9 Commercial*
Basic search including official search and LLC1 01/04/2019 45.05 47.00 O/Scope

Con 29R 01/04/2019 134.52 135.00 Included

10 Expedited Search - 3 Day Turnaround 01/04/2019 33.80 35.00 O/Scope

CON 29R UNREFINED DATA CHARGES*

Building Regulations  Q1.1 (F to H) 01/04/2019 4.35 6.00 Included

Roads  Q2.1 01/04/2019 5.37 6.00 Included

PROWS   Q2.2 01/04/2019 8.91 6.00 Included

Land Requisitioned for Public Purposes  Q3.1 01/04/2019 1.32 6.00 Included

Roadworks   Q3.2 01/04/2019 1.32 6.00 Included

Drainage   Q3.3 01/04/2019 3.75 6.00 Included

Road Schemes   Q3.4 01/04/2019 3.12 6.00 Included

Nearby Railway Schemes  Q3.5 01/04/2019 0.12 6.00 Included

Traffic Schemes   Q3.6 01/04/2019 3.72 6.00 Included

Outstanding Notices  Q3.7 (A-D & F) 01/04/2019 0.54 6.00 Included

 Notices    Q3.7 E & G                                 01/04/2019 1.92 6.00 Included

Contravention of Building Regulations   Q3.8 01/04/2019 0.63 6.00 Included

Notices, Orders, Directions and Proceedings

             under Planning Acts  Q3.9 (A-N) 01/04/2019 1.23 6.00 Included

Community Infrastructure Levy  Q3.10 01/04/2019 0.24 6.00 Included

Conservation Area  Q3.11 01/04/2019 0.63 6.00 Included

Compulsory Purchase  Q3.12 01/04/2019 4.65 6.00 Included

Contaminated Land  Q3.13 01/04/2019 0.09 6.00 Included

Radon   Q3.14 01/04/2019 0.09 6.00 Included

Assets of Community Value    Q3.15 01/04/2019 0.03 6.00 Included

*The charges quoted above are the minimum charged, based on a standard timing. More complex queries taking 
longer to answer will incur a further charge based on an hourly rate of £47.28

Detail VAT

66



A. OUTLINE APPLICATIONS

£462 per 0.1 hectare for sites up to and

including 2.5 hectares

Not more than 2.5

hectares

£462 per 0.1 hectare

£11,432 + £138 for each 0.1 in excess of

2.5 hectares to a maximum of £150,000

More than 2.5

hectares

£11,432 + £138 per 0.1

hectare

Alterations/extensions to a single dwelling house, including 

works within boundary

Single dwelling house £206

C. FULL APPLICATIONS

(and First Submissions of Reserved Matters; or Technical 

Details Consent)

Alterations/extensions to two or more dwelling houses, 

including works within

boundaries

Two or more dwelling houses 

(or

two or more flats)

£407

New dwelling houses (up to and including 50) New dwelling houses

(not more than 50)

£462 per dwelling house

New dwelling houses (for more than 50)

£22,859 + £138 per additional dwelling house in excess of 

50 up to a maximum fee of £300,000

New dwelling houses (more 

than 50)

£22,859 + £138 per additional 

dwelling house

Gross floor space to be created by the development No increase in gross floor space 

or no more than

40 sq m

£234

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 40 sq m but no more 

than

75 sq m

£462

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 75 sq m but no more 

than

3,750 sq m

£462 for each 75sq m or part thereof

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 3,750 sq m £22,859 + £138 for

each additional 75 sq m in excess of 

3,750 sq m to a maximum of 

£300,000

Gross floor space to be created by the

development

Not more than 465

sq m

£96

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 465 sq m but not 

more

than 540 sq m

£462

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 540 sq m but not 

more than 4,215 sq m

£462 for first 540 sq m

+ £462 for each 75 sq m (or part 

thereof) in excess of 540 sq m

Gross floor space to be created by the development More than 4,215 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each 75 sq m (or 

part thereof) in excess of 4,215 sq m 

up to a maximum of £300,000

Erection of glasshouses (on land used for the purposes of 

agriculture)

Gross floor space to be created by the

development

Not more than 465

sq m

£96

Gross floor space to be created by the

development

More than 465 sq m £2,580

B. HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATIONS

Erection of buildings (not dwelling houses,  agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor machinery):

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural purposes)

* The fees above are set by Government 

67



Site area Not more than 5 hectares £462 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 5 hectares £22,859 + additional

£138 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof) in excess of 5

hectares to a maximum

of £300,000

Car parks, service roads or other

accesses

For existing uses £234

Site area Not more than 15 hectares £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £34,934 + £138 for each

0.1 hectare (or part thereof) in excess 

of 15 hectares up to a maximum of 

£78,000

Site area Not more than 7.5 hectares £508 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 7.5 hectares £38,070  + additional

£151 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof) in excess of 7.5 hectares up 

to a

maximum of £300,000

Site area Not more than 15 hectares £257 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £38,520 + additional

£151 for each 0.1 in excess of 15 

hectare up to a maximum of

£78,000

Site area Not more than 15 hectares £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part

thereof)

Site area More than 15 hectares £34,934 + additional

£138 for each 0.1 in excess of 15 

hectare up to a maximum of

£78,000

Site area Any site area £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof) up to a

maximum of £2,028

Existing use or operation Same as Full

Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any 

condition or limitation

£234

Proposed use or operation Half the normal

planning fee.

Other operations (not coming within  any of the above categories)

E. LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE

* The fees above are set by Government 

Erection/alterations/replacement of plant and machinery

D. APPLICATIONS OTHER THAN BUILDING WORKS

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of material remaining  after extraction or storage of minerals)

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working of oil or natural gas

Other operations (winning and working of minerals) excluding oil and natural gas

68



F. PRIOR APPROVAL

Agricultural  and Forestry buildings & operations  or 

demolition of buildings

£96

Communications (previously referred to as 

‘Telecommunications Code Systems Operators’)

£462

£96

£96

£96

£96

£96

£206

£96

£206

£96

£96

£206

£96

£206

£96

£96

£96

£96

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1) and Financial and 

Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops (Sui Generis Uses) to 

Assembly and Leisure Uses (Class D2)

Notification for Prior Approval for a Development Consisting of the Erection or Construction of 

a Collection Facility within the Curtilage of a Shop

Notification for Prior Approval for the Temporary Use of Buildings or Land for the Purpose of 

Commercial Film-Making and the Associated Temporary Structures, Works, Plant or 

Machinery required in Connection with that Use

Notification for Prior Approval for the Installation,  Alteration or Replacement of other Solar 

Photovoltaics (PV) equipment on the Roofs of Non-domestic Buildings, up to a Capacity of 1 

Megawatt

* The fees above are set by Government 

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Financial and 

Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui 

Generis Uses) to Restaurants and Cafés (Class A3), and  Associated Building Operations

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Shops (Class A1), Financial and 

Professional Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay Day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui 

Generis Uses) to Restaurants and Cafés (Class A3)

Proposed Change of Use to State Funded School or Registered

Nursery

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a State-Funded School or Registered 

Nursery

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a flexible use within Shops, Financial and 

Professional services, Restaurants and Cafes, Business, Storage or Distribution,

Hotels, or Assembly or Leisure

Proposed Change of Use of a building from Office (Use Class B1) Use to a use falling within 

Use Class C3 (Dwelling house)

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a Dwelling house  (Use Class C3), where 

there are no Associated Building Operations

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural  Building to a Dwelling house  (Use Class C3), and 

Associated Building Operations

Proposed Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) Use or a Mixed 

Retail and Residential Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwelling house), where there 

are no Associated Building Operations

Proposed Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2) Use or a Mixed 

Retail and Residential Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwelling house), and  

Associated Building Operations

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change Of Use from Storage or Distribution Buildings 

(Class B8) and any land within  its curtilage to Dwelling houses (Class C3)

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement  Arcades/Centres and 

Casinos, (Sui Generis Uses) and any land within its curtilage to Dwelling houses  (Class C3)

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement  Arcades/Centres and 

Casinos, (Sui Generis Uses) and any land within its curtilage to Dwelling houses  (Class C3), 

and  Associated Building Operations

69



G. RESERVED MATTERS

Application  for approval of reserved matters following  

outline approval grant of planning permission

Full fee due or if full fee already paid 

then £462 due

Application  for removal or variation  of a condition following 

grant of planning permission

£234

Request for confirmation that one or more planning 

conditions have been complied with

£34 per request for

Householder otherwise

£116 per request

Number  of dwelling houses Not more than 50

dwelling houses

£462 for each

Number  of dwelling houses More than 50 dwelling houses £22,859 + £138 for each in excess of 

50 up to a maximum of

£300,000

Other Changes of Use of a building or land £462

J. ADVERTISING

Relating to the business on the premises £132

Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from

the site, directing the public to a business

£132

Other advertisements £462

Applications in respect of householder developments £34

Applications in respect of other developments £234

Site area                                                                                                £402 for each 0.1 hectare (or part 

thereof)

H. APPROVAL/VARIATION/DISCHARGE OF CONDITION

I. CHANGE OF USE of a building to use as one or more separate dwelling houses,  or other cases

K. APPLICATION FOR NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENT FOLLOWING A GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION 

L. APPLICATION FOR PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE (valid from 1 June 2018)

* The fees above are set by Government 

70



Exemptions from payment

If the application is for a lawful development certificate, for existing use, where an application  for planning permission  for the same 

development would be exempt from the need to pay a planning fee under any other planning fee regulation

M. CONCESSIONS

For alterations,  extensions, etc. to a dwellinghouse for the benefit of a registered disabled person

An application  solely for the carrying out of the operations for the purpose of providing a means of access for disabled persons to or 

within  a building or premises to which members of the public are admitted

Listed Building Consent

Planning permission  for relevant demolition in a Conservation Area

Works to Trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or in a Conservation Area 

Hedgerow Removal

If the application is the first revision of an application  for development of the same character or description on the same site by the 

same applicant:

* For a withdrawn application:  Within 12 months  of the date when the application was received

* For a determined application:  Within 12 months of the date the application  was granted, refused or an appeal dismissed

* For an application where an appeal was made on the grounds of non- determination: Within 12 months of the period when the 

giving of notice of a decision on the earlier valid application  expired

If two or more applications  are submitted for different proposals on the same day and relating to the same site then you must pay the 

fee for the highest fee plus half sum of the others

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement following  either a withdrawal of an earlier application  (before notice of 

decision was issued) or where the application  is made following  refusal of consent for display of an advertisement, and where the 

application  is made by or on behalf of the same person

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement which results from a direction under Regulation 7 of the 2007 

Regulations, dis-applying deemed consent under Regulation 6 to the advertisement in question

If the application is for alternative  proposals for the same site by the same applicant, in order to benefit from the permitted 

development right in Schedule 2 Part 3 Class V of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted  Development)  Order 2015 

(as amended)

If the application relates to a condition or conditions on an application  for Listed Building Consent or planning permission  for 

relevant demolition in a Conservation Area If the application is for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Works to a listed building

Prior Approval for a Proposed Larger Home Extension

Reductions to payments

If the application is being made on behalf of a non-profit making sports club for works for playing fields not involving buildings then 

the fee is £462

If the application is being made on behalf of a parish or community council then the fee is 50%

If the application is an alternative  proposal being submitted on the same site by the same applicant on the same day, where this 

application is of lesser cost then the fee is 50%

In respect of reserved matters  you must pay a sum equal to or greater than what would be payable at current  rates for approval of 

all the reserved matters.  If this amount  has already been paid then the fee is £462

If the application is for a Lawful Development  Certificate for a Proposed use or development, then the fee is 50%

Where an application  crosses one or more local or district planning authorities, the Planning Portal fee calculator will only calculate a 

cross boundary  application fee as 150% of the fee that would have been payable if there had only been one application  to a single 

authority covering the entire site.

If the fee for this divided site is smaller when the sum of the fees payable for each part of the site are calculated separately, you will 

need to contact the lead local authority to discuss the fee for this divided site.

The fee should go to the authority that contains the larger part of the application site.

This is only a summary of scales of fees, listing only the most common types of application.

* The fees above are set by Government

71



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

PLANNING CHARGES

1 Charges in connection with land/property

transactions

Detailed queries on consents involving search 01/04/2019 28.85 29.70 Included

for relevant information*

Check involving site inspection** 01/04/2019 23.00 23.64 Included

*stated charge plus relevant copying charges

**stated charge plus mileage plus officer hourly rates

Detail VAT

72



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

PRE-PLANNING CHARGES

1 Householders

Charge for any pre-planning advice undertaken 01/04/2019 60.00 61.80 Included

2 Non-residential changes of use including siting

of caravans for sites

Under 1 ha or buildings under 1,000 sqm (gross) 01/04/2019 202.50 208.50 Included

of 1 ha or above or buildings under 1,000 sqm (gross) 01/04/2019 406.45 418.50 Included

3 Development of dwellings

1-9 dwellings including changes of use to

residential, for 1st dwelling 01/04/2019 268.65 276.60 Included

for each additional dwelling 01/04/2019 134.95 138.90 Included

10-49 dwellings including changes of use to

residential, for the 10th dwelling 01/04/2019 1,354.45 1,395.00 Included

for each additional dwelling 01/04/2019 67.40 69.30 Included

50 plus dwellings, including changes of use to

residential, for 1st dwelling 01/04/2019 4,863.70 5,009.40 Included

Residential development where number of dwellings

unknown - per 0.1 hectare 01/04/2019 195.70 201.30 Included

4 Non-residential development

Where no floor space is created 01/04/2019 101.80 104.82 Included

Up to 499 sqm floor area or 0.5 ha site area 01/04/2019 202.50 208.50 Included

between 500 and 999 sqm floor area, or between

0.51 ha and 1.0 ha 01/04/2019 334.85 344.88 Included

between 1,000 and 4,999 sqm floor area or between

1.1 ha and 2.0 ha 01/04/2019 677.45 697.74 Included

between 5,000 sqm or more or 2.1 ha or more* 01/04/2019 1,354.45 1,395.00 Included

*minimum fee for specified service and hourly

rate thereafter

5 Others

Variation or removal of condition 01/04/2019 101.80 104.76 Included

Advertising 01/04/2019 101.80 104.76 Included

Development that would require conservation

area consent 01/04/2019 67.40 69.36 Included

Non-householder works or alterations to a listed

building 01/04/2019 67.40 69.36 Included

Hazardous substances 01/04/2019 134.95 138.96 Included

Changes of use not falling within any of the above 

categories 01/04/2019 195.70 201.48 Included

Detail VAT

73



Effective 2018/19 2019/20

Date £ £

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT DISCRETIONARY CHARGES

1 Community Rooms

Residents weekly charge 01/04/2019 6.25 6.50 O/Scope

Voluntary agencies & organisations  usage

- up to 3 hours 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 Exempt

- more than 3 hours/all day 01/04/2019 31.40 32.50 Exempt

Charitable organisations  usage

- up to 3 hours 01/04/2019 5.15 5.50 Exempt

- more than 3 hours/all day 01/04/2019 10.30 10.50 Exempt

2 Communal Facilities

Residents weekly charge 01/04/2019 7.25 7.50 O/Scope

3 Guest Rooms

Double Room - per night * 01/04/2019 20.95 21.50 Included

Single Room - per night * 01/04/2019 15.70 15.96 Included

Folding bed - per night * 01/04/2019 5.20 5.40 Included

* 50% discount for persons over 60.

Detail VAT

74



Appendix H

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2019/20 – 2021/22
1. Strategic Vision and Ambitions
2. Purpose
3. Scope
4. Links to Other Key Strategies
5. Capital Expenditure

Long Term Capital Expenditure Plans
6. The Capital Budget Setting Process
7. Prioritisation of Capital Proposals Put Forward
8. Applying the Tests of Prudence, Affordability and Sustainability
9. Prioritisation of Projects – Annual Cycle

Member Approval Process
10. Developing the Capital Programme 

Detailed Project Bids
Preparing the Draft Capital Programme
Multi-Year Schemes

11. Framework for the Management and Delivery of the Capital Programme
12. Revenue Implications
13. Capital Financing

External Funding
Capital Receipts
Revenue Funding, Including Reserves
Prudential Borrowing
HRA Capital Receipts Reserve and Major Repairs Reserve
Pump Priming and Invest to Save Schemes
Leasing

14. Utilising Capital Funding
15. Overview of Asset Management Planning
16. Commercial Investments
17. Importance of Effective Treasury Management
18. Procurement and Value for Money
19. Partnerships and Relationships with other Organisations
20. Due Diligence and Risk Management 

75



Appendix H

1 Strategic Vision and Ambitions

1.1 South Kesteven District Council is making significant progress in its commitment to 
helping grow the local economy.

1.2 The Council has set out ambitious plans to deliver a programme of strategic 
projects that will grow its economy by a further £1.2 billion. These projects range 
from the creation of office space, to the building of new leisure centres and a 
cinema complex, to supporting arts, culture and heritage as part of a 
comprehensive place-making initiative delivered through investSK.

1.3 By focusing on the economy, SKDC is creating opportunities for new and existing 
businesses and residents, as well as options for the Council to facilitate, catalyse 
and directly-deliver growth-related projects.

 
1.4 With the fastest-growing economy in the county area of Lincolnshire, the council is 

now acting more commercially in the interests of the district, with the purchase of 
strategic land and properties to the launch of private companies wholly owned by 
SKDC including our growth and regeneration arm InvestSK and Gravitas Housing 
which provides small scale housing developments and supports local building 
expertise.  The most recent additions to the family of SKDC companies are 
DeliverSK and EnvironmentSK.

1.5 DeliverSK is a 50-50 co-investment partnership between the Council and a private 
company. DeliverSK will provide commercial, retail and employment space to meet 
business demands and create new markets.

 
1.6 EnvironmentSK will bring grounds maintenance services across the district back in-

house.

1.7 The companies will help to generate revenue that can be put back into our 
communities and the priorities they care about, taking place against a backdrop of a 
reduction in funding from central government.

1.8 The past year has also been about transformation. About getting the Council’s 
house in order by ensuring the authority has the right people with the right skills in 
the right roles to help make South Kesteven a place where people want to live, work 
and invest.

1.9 This is to ensure that not only are our 100 plus services the best they can be for our 
residents, but that SKDC is among the most innovative councils when it comes to 
determining how services are provided in the future.

1.10 The Capital Strategy sets out the governing framework for how the Council will 
develop and deliver its capital programme in the context of the aforementioned 
growth plans and its new companies.  

76



Appendix H

2 Purpose

2.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential 
Code requires local authorities to produce a capital strategy to demonstrate that 
capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with the Council’s 
corporate ambitions and service objectives and take account of stewardship, risk, 
value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. In addition, in February 
2018, the Government (MHCLG) issued new statutory guidance on local 
government investments. This guidance includes the requirement to include a 
number of additional disclosures for non-financial investments in the Capital 
Strategy to be approved by Council. The Government has also issued statutory 
guidance on the treatment of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) that took 
effect from April 2018 and which is covered more fully in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy.

2.2 The Capital Strategy sets out the long term context and forms part of the authority’s 
integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet planning. It provides a high level 
overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management 
decisions contribute to the provision of high quality services and the achievement of 
priority outcomes. It also provides a framework in which due consideration is given 
to risk and reward and the implications for future financial sustainability together 
with an overview of the governance processes for the approval and monitoring of 
capital expenditure.

2.3 The Capital Strategy will be reviewed and updated annually to ensure it maintains 
strong links to the Council’s developing priorities and to other key strategies which 
are set out below.

3 Scope

3.1 This Capital Strategy includes all capital expenditure and capital investment 
decisions, not only as an individual local authority but also those entered into under 
group arrangements, i.e. including companies set up by the Council, including 
Gravitas, InvestSK and DeliverSK. 

4 Links to Other Key Strategies, Policies and Procedures

4.1 The Capital Strategy is inextricably linked to the following:

 Corporate Strategy 2018 – 2025 – this sets out the Council’s vision for the future 
of the Council which exists to serve the best interests of its residents.

 Medium Term Financial Plan – this sets out the Council’s overall budgetary 
framework and interlinks with a number of key strategies that support the delivery 
of the Council’s ambitions. It looks at the Council’s plans over a 3-5 year period to 
finance its priorities and meet its spending commitments, having regard to the 
likely availability of revenue and capital resources.

77



Appendix H

 Treasury Management Strategy – this relates to the effective management of the 
Council’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

 Asset Management Plan– this is designed to achieve the most efficient and 
effective management of assets. There are strong linkages to the Capital Strategy 
and Capital Programme particularly relating to the Council’s building infrastructure 
and maintenance of the Council’s Housing Stock.

 Commercial Property Income and Regeneration Strategy sets out a framework for 
investing in property assets, via direct ownership, joint ventures and to make 
investments for the benefit, improvement or development of the area, through a 
balanced investment of acquisition, retention and management of good quality 
investments.

 30 Year Housing Business Plan – this is a long term plan for managing the 
authorities housing assets and financing ongoing capital investments.

  
 Economic Development Strategy – this addresses the key economic challenges 

facing the Council and sets a course to improve and develop South Kesteven as 
an economically prosperous place that attracts and supports business and 
enables local enterprise to flourish.  

 Council Standing Orders and Financial Regulations.

5   Capital Expenditure

5.1 Capital expenditure is incurred on the acquisition or creation of new assets, or 
expenditure which enhances or adds to the life or value of an existing fixed asset 
that is needed to provide services. Fixed assets are tangible or intangible assets 
that yield benefits to the Council for a period of more than one year, e.g. land, 
buildings, vehicles, equipment, information technology and commercial investment. 
This is in contrast to revenue expenditure which is spending on the day to day 
running costs of services such as employee costs and supplies and services. 

5.2 The summary of the latest Capital Programme set out in the table below is the 
authority’s plan of capital works for the next 3 years, including details on the funding 
of these schemes. In keeping with the Council’s plans to grow the local economy, 
there will also be major investment projects and requirements that have not yet 
been planned and these will need to be properly considered in the medium to long 
term having regard to sustainability and affordability.

78

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=3465&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=892&p=0


Appendix H

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22Capital 
Expenditure: Forecast

£m
Estimated

£m
Estimated

£m
Estimated

£m

General Fund 19.455 14.237 1.723 1.881
HRA 7.779 16.489 15.113 13.796
Total 27.234 30.726 16.836 15.677
Capital Financing:
Borrowing 7.999 10.000 2.775
Capital Reserves 13.677 17.239 15.113 11.021

Capital Receipts 0.788 0.500 0.400 0.100
Capital Grants 0.702 0.862 0.797 0.797
Direct Revenue 
Financing

4.068 2.125 0.526 0.984

Total 27.234 30.726 16.836 15.677

5.3 In recent years, the financing of the General Fund capital programme has been 
funded from reserves, and monies received in respect of the New Homes Bonus. 
Going forward capital financing will include borrowing which will incur revenue costs 
relating to the payment of interest and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), the 
latter being a provision or an amount set aside for the repayment of the debt.

Long Term Capital Expenditure Plans

5.4 To finance its capital programme, the Council faces a number of challenges, 
principal amongst which are the ability to maintain an adequate level of capital 
receipts and the risk that the monies received from the New Homes Bonus will 
reduce or cease altogether following the national spending review. 

5.5 Therefore, the Council needs robust plans to meet its funding needs for capital 
expenditure in the longer term in order to maintain a financially sustainable capital 
programme. The strategic aim is to provide a capital strategy that enables the 
Council to acquire, invest and ultimately dispose of assets in order to create a 
funding pipeline through the generation of capital receipts to fund future capital 
projects.  If capital were to be funded primarily from borrowing, it would increase 
revenue costs as a result of the interest charge and MRP. In the absence of other 
sources of capital, this essentially means that capital costs would be funded from 
revenue resources over time. To address this, the Council will need to pursue an 
active strategy of seeking, for example:

 Income from the sale of assets that are not required or are under-utilised
 Income generating investments
 Commercial partnerships where the costs, risks and rewards are shared

6   The Capital Budget Setting Process

6.1 Generally, capital resources are allocated in accordance with the Council’s 
corporate objectives, service priorities, customer needs and where appropriate, the 
discharge of legislative/mandatory requirements, including health and safety. These 

79



Appendix H

are set out in more detail in the relevant operational strategies and plans, e.g. Asset 
Management Plan, Investment Strategy, etc.

7 Prioritisation of Capital Scheme Proposals

7.1 For each annual budget setting cycle, the process starts with the Leader and 
Cabinet crystallising their vision, priorities and plans for the future in terms of 
strategic investment and by reference to the criteria set out in the previous 
paragraph. Currently, growing the economy is the number one priority and a 
number of related and other proposals are likely to come forward including:

 Property acquisition and investment and new initiatives to stimulate growth in the 
local economy – through DeliverSK, etc

 Maintenance of the essential infrastructure of the organisation, including the 
replacement of vehicles and equipment and IT hardware and software 
enhancements;

 Essential Health and Safety works;

 Recurring expenditure and mandatory schemes, including Disabled Facilities 
Grants and scheme costs contractually committed;

 Ring fenced schemes funded by s106 monies

 Match funded investment for regeneration projects;

 Invest to save schemes.

7.2 In addition, the need for capital investment may be identified by a Business or 
Service Area through one or more of the following processes. 

 Annual business planning process – to identify improvements and enhancements 
(ensuring that their objectives meet the overall aims and objectives of the 
Council); these must identify any capital investment needed to meet future 
business needs;

 The Asset Management Plan and supporting stock condition surveys to highlight 
deficiencies in the condition, suitability and sufficiency of the Council’s existing 
building stock and identify future areas of need;

 The Investment & Regeneration Strategy may identify suitable properties for 
acquisition or land for economic development;

 The Performance Management System may identify problem areas where capital 
investment is needed in order to improve service delivery and meet key 
performance targets;

 Reviews and external Inspections may also identify areas that need capital 
investment;

 The need to respond to Government initiatives and new laws and regulations;

 Delivery of the Transformation Programme – there is an ongoing need to deliver 
savings and identify additional sources of revenue income to contribute to the 
funding of services and this may involve capital expenditure. 

80



Appendix H

8 Applying the Tests of Prudence, Affordability and Sustainability

8.1 Once the list of key capital priorities has been identified by Members and officers, 
consideration is given to:

Prudence:

 Recognition of the capacity in the organisation and the knowledge and skills 
available to deliver such a programme;

 The approach to commercial activities including ensuring effective due diligence, 
expert advice and scrutiny, defining the risk appetite and considerations of 
proportionality in respect of overall resources;

 The approach to treasury management and the management of risk as set out in 
the Treasury Management Strategy.

Affordability:

 Revenue impact of the proposals on the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 
The business case will require the revenue implications to be identified and 
profiled;

 The level of reserves to support the financing of the capital programme;

 The borrowing position of the Council, projections of external debt and the use of 
internal borrowing to support capital expenditure;

 External debt - the authorised limit and operational boundary for the following year 
and subsequent years;

 Whether schemes are profiled to the appropriate financial year.

Sustainability:

 A long-term view of capital expenditure plans, where long term is defined by the 
aspirations in the Corporate Strategy, MTFP and other related strategies and 
plans

 The risks faced with reference to the life of the project/assets;

 Provision for the repayment of debt over the life of the underlying debt as set out 
in the Minimum Revenue Provision policy;

 An overview of asset management planning including ongoing maintenance 
requirements and planned disposals.

8.2 Possible sources of funding can then be considered for each of the proposed 
capital schemes. Each project will be considered in terms of revenue funding to 
cover the operational running costs of the asset and any borrowing repayment 
costs, and also how the asset will be funded in terms of capital expenditure.

81



Appendix H

9 Prioritisation of Projects – Annual Cycle

  9.1 A formalised corporate system for prioritising capital projects has been adopted by 
the Council. This has resulted in:

 Identifying essential capital investment for the next 3-5 years and with increasing 
focus on the medium to long term position as reflected in the Corporate Strategy;

 Utilising feasibility studies where needed;

 Adopting an “informal” Gateway Review approach for larger strategic schemes to 
enter the programme at the required time; 

 The ability to enter items into the capital programme during the budget setting 
cycle commensurate with any change in policy or approach;    

 Being mindful of the current level of the programme in relation to the capacity to 
deliver, the relevant financing of schemes and any other running costs.

9.2 This will result in a list of capital project proposals to be considered as part of that 
year’s budget approval process and a ‘waiting list’ of other capital project proposals 
that may be put forward for consideration later in the year or as part of the following 
year’s budget approval process.

Outline Member Approval Process

9.3 The first draft of the capital programme is reported to Cabinet Members in late 
autumn as part of the annual budget setting process, who then make 
recommendations on the overall capital programme, having regard to the method of 
financing, particularly where external funding and borrowing is required.

9.4 The Cabinet receive the final draft of the Capital Programme in January each year 
which is then subject to scrutiny via the relevant scrutiny committee. Then the 
Cabinet receive the updated Capital Programme in February each year and in turn 
make their recommendations to full Council in March.

9.5 Members approve the overall borrowing levels at the budget meeting in 
January/February each year when considering the latest Treasury Management 
Strategy Report.    

9.6 Once the Council has approved the capital programme, then expenditure can be 
committed subject to the normal contract procedure rules and the terms and 
conditions of funding.

9.7 Whether capital projects are funded from grant, contributions, capital allocations or 
borrowing, the revenue costs must be able to be met from existing revenue budgets 
or identified (and underwritten) by savings or demonstrable income streams.

10 Developing the Capital Programme 

10.1 There are two main categories of capital schemes that make up the Capital 
programme:

82



Appendix H

 ‘Ongoing’ allocations for annual spend such as Disabled Facilities Grants, 
Housing and General Fund property maintenance, vehicles, Capital Grants, etc.

 ‘One-off’ projects to deliver a particular scheme such as new/upgrade of ICT 
system, building or refurbishing assets, one off grant funding, etc.

Detailed Project Bids

10.2 As part of the business planning process, Heads of Service and Assistant Directors 
will identify a list of potential capital ‘bids’ for consideration and inclusion into the 
capital programme.  All capital bids should be submitted using the Council’s Project 
Management methodology which covers the following key areas:

 Project Details – basic summary of the project including location
 Identification of priority Area – links to priority themes
 Evidence of need – what are the objectives for delivering the project including 

links to consultation?
 Links to partnership – is there any third party support to deliver the project 

including financing?
 Identification of outputs and outcomes – to be achieved through delivery of the 

project?
 Affordability – what are the capital costs and associated revenue implications 

over the life of the scheme? 
 Level of risk – including the potential impact on overall financial sustainability for 

the Council
 Timescale – timescales for delivery including any planning, consultation, 

procurement, etc.

Preparing the Draft Capital Programme 

10.3 All capital bids are assessed by reference to the factors outlined above.

10.4 Schemes attracting partial or full external funding, such as grants, will be assessed 
in the same way as those schemes which require 100% funding from the Council 
and will only be included within the capital programme if they meet the Council’s 
needs, objectives and priorities.  

10.5 Cabinet will receive a draft capital programme together with a list of new bids for the 
following three years together with specific funding options and details of the capital 
financing proposals.  Cabinet will review the proposed programme and ensure the 
programme aligns and supports the delivery of the Council’s priorities and 
recommend the programme to Council to be incorporated into the budget 
framework proposals. 

10.6 Once detailed capital programmes have been approved by members, the financial 
spend is monitored on a monthly basis.  

83



Appendix H

10.7 To ensure each project is delivered, robust project management arrangements are 
undertaken with clearly defined areas of responsibility for each task set out.

Multi-Year Schemes

10.8 Payments for capital schemes often occur over many years, depending on the size 
and complexity of the project. Therefore, estimated payment patterns are calculated 
for each project so that the expected capital expenditure per year is known. 

10.9 The length of the planning period should be defined by the MTFP and the risks 
faced with reference to the life of the project/assets. For example some schemes 
may span two or more financial years whereas others may be over much longer 
timeframes (e.g. the 30 year business plan for the HRA decent homes programme). 

10.10The approval of a rolling multi-year capital programme assists the Council in a 
number of ways. It assists business managers, allowing them to develop longer 
term capital plans for service delivery. It also allows greater flexibility in planning 
workloads and more certainty for preparation work for future schemes. It will also 
allow greater integration of the revenue budget and capital programme. It also 
matches the time requirement for scheme planning and implementation since 
capital schemes have a considerable initial development phase.

11 Framework for the Management & Delivery of the Capital Programme

11.1 Following the approval of the capital programme it is important that projects are 
delivered on time and within budget and clear measurable outcomes are achieved. 
Therefore, delivery of the capital programme is closely monitored on a monthly 
basis through detailed forecasting reviews. On a quarterly basis a financial 
monitoring report is presented to members in order ensure member overview and 
scrutiny of the capital programme. 

11.2 A standard approach to project management is used across the Council which 
facilitates the management and monitoring of individual projects against initial plans 
and milestones. This process includes risk registers and project baselines, etc. A 
project manager is assigned to each project to oversee the planning, delivery, 
management and governance arrangements.

11.3 Close monitoring and reporting of slippage is undertaken to provide timely reporting 
which then allows for greater flexibility with capital spend and may allow other 
opportunities to be added to the programme.

11.4 With major procurements, including building works, etc. the Contract Procedure 
Rules set out the approach to be taken which is underpinned by the Council’s 
Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. 

11.5 Monitoring arrangements for delivering the Capital Programme are set out in the 
Financial Regulations and Guidance Notes and the Contract Procedure Notes.

84



Appendix H

12 Revenue Implications

12.1 Clearly, the revenue implications of capital investment must always be considered 
in investment decisions and the prioritisation of projects. These include revenue 
costs and potential savings implications as follows:

Costs:

 Interest and MRP
 Potential loss of investment income from the use of reserves and capital receipts
 Operating costs associated with any asset

Savings & Benefits:

 The positive impact of investment and economic growth on the Council’s tax base 
and business rates income

 Capital projects that generate income, revenue savings and/or efficiencies

13 Capital Financing

13.1 This section sets out the policies of the Council in relation to funding capital 
expenditure and investment.

External Funding, Including Government Grants

13.2 Business areas must seek to maximise external funding wherever possible to 
support capital schemes. This can be in the form of grants and contributions from 
outside bodies including central government, e.g. Disabled Facilities Grants. Other 
external funding options could be through non-specific S106 monies, developer 
contributions or third party support. However, business areas must be prepared to 
underwrite any cost overruns on externally funded schemes, i.e. where the costs 
exceed the available funding. In respect of match funding bids then the relevant 
manager must fully identify the necessary match funding resources from within 
existing service budgets.  

Capital Receipts

13.3 A capital receipt is an important funding source for the capital programme. This 
relates to money which is received from the sale of an asset. The monies received 
cannot be spent on revenue items unless the guidelines for flexible use can be 
applied. 

13.4 Identification of the disposal of assets is undertaken in accordance with the Asset 
Management Plan disposal strategy. The Council has a Useable Capital Receipts 
Reserve which is earmarked to fund future capital programme items and the current 
policy is to utilise all capital receipts to financially support the capital programme, 
enabling investment to be directed towards those schemes or projects with the 
highest corporate priority. Capital receipts may be also used to repay outstanding 
debt on assets financed from loans, as permitted by the regulations.

85



Appendix H

13.5 One of the elements to generate capital receipts relate to ‘Right to Buy’ housing 
sales.  Under the current rules these receipts are to be used within a 3 year period 
to fund up to 30% of the construction of purchase of new housing stock.

13.6 The Management Team will review annually the Council’s key property holdings 
against the aims and objectives of the Asset Management Plan.  

Revenue Funding, Including Reserves

13.7 Where appropriate, revenue funding may be used to fund capital expenditure. 
Contributions are made either from revenue or other reserve transfers and the level 
to which this is maintained or decisions regarding its usage are made both during 
the year end accounts closure process and during budget setting. In addition, 
monies that are received from New Homes Bonus funding has been utilised to 
funding some specific capital projects such as financing the new cinema complex..

Prudential Borrowing

13.8 Capital projects that cannot be funded from any other source can be funded from 
Prudential Borrowing. Services must be able to afford the borrowing repayment and 
interest charges on the loan from revenue budgets. Factoring in the cost of MRP 
and interest charges is key to the annual budget process and the development of 
the MTFP.  

13.9 Local Authorities can set their own borrowing levels based on their capital need and 
their ability to pay for the borrowing. The levels will be set using the indicators and 
factors set out in the Prudential Code. The borrowing costs are not supported by the 
Government so services need to ensure they can fund the repayment costs. This 
borrowing may also be referred to as Prudential Borrowing. 

13.10The impact of borrowing will be reported in the Treasury Management Strategy 
alongside the Prudential Indicators required by CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance.

HRA – Capital Receipts Reserve & Major Repairs Reserve

13.11These reserves can be used to fund capital expenditure. Contributions are made 
from the Housing Revenue Account or through the sale of assets and these are 
driven by the HRA Business Plan.

Pump Priming and Invest to Save Schemes

13.12Occasionally projects arise for which services require assistance with meeting the 
set up costs of projects which may bring long term service delivery improvements 
and/or cost savings. The initial set up costs may be of a revenue or capital nature. 
Assistance for these schemes must be considered on an individual basis by the 
Management Team and then Cabinet with consideration to the Council’s overall 
priorities and resources.

86



Appendix H

13.13For ‘invest to save’ schemes, assistance may be given for initial set up costs, but it 
is expected that in the longer term these schemes will produce savings and/or 
additional income that will as a minimum fund any additional operational or 
borrowing costs. If the additional savings/income do not cover the additional costs 
incurred, then the service will be required to fund the gap from their existing 
budgets (i.e. they will underwrite the savings/income).

Leasing

13.14The Council may enter into finance leasing agreements to fund capital expenditure 
on behalf of services. However, a full option appraisal and comparison of other 
funding sources must be made and it must be evidenced that leasing provides the 
best value for money method of funding the scheme.

13.15Under the Prudential Code finance leasing agreements are counted against the 
overall borrowing levels when looking at the prudence of the authority’s borrowing.

14 Utilising Capital Funding 

14.1 With reference to above, it is prudent to allocate funding streams in the order 
outlined below although this may be amended in order to deliver priority outcomes. 
Clearly, due to the higher costs associated with external borrowing, this sits low on 
the priority list and should be used as a last resort, particularly where the full 
ongoing costs of interest and MRP are not covered by income or cashable savings 
generated by the asset purchased or the investment made. 

1. Time limited funding
2. Ring fenced funding
3. Other external funding
4. Capital receipts and reserves
5. Direct revenue funding
6. Invest to Save
7. Borrowing
8. Leasing

15 Overview of Asset Management Planning

15.1 The Asset Management Plan (AMP) states how the Council’s current properties and 
land support the delivery of its strategic priorities. This influences the way the 
Council manages property and assets at a strategic level as well as on a day to day 
basis. The AMP also covers the arrangements in place governing the acquisition 
and disposal of assets. In addition, the Property Investment Strategy sets out how 
the Council will acquire or refurbish assets that meet its corporate objectives, 
including those set out in the MTFS as well as delivering economic benefits.

16 Commercial Investments

16.1 These are investments made outside the normal treasury management activity and 
are taken for mainly financial reasons. These may include:

87



Appendix H

 investments arising as part of business structures, such as shares and loans in 
subsidiaries or other outsourcing structures such as IT providers or building 
services providers. For the avoidance of doubt, this includes loans made by the 
Council to wholly owned companies, to a joint venture and to a third party.

 investments explicitly taken with the aim of making a financial surplus for the 
Council, e.g. establishing investment property portfolios.

16.2 The Council will set out the level of risk it is prepared to accept or be exposed to 
(risk appetite). Where there is a fundamental change in policy, for example where 
the Council wishes to pursue a more progressive approach, then provided the 
business case and risk assessment for the investment/project put the level of risks 
within acceptable and manageable margins, it can proceed.

16.3 The statutory guidance contained in the Local Government Act 2013 and the 
guidance issued in February 2018 sets out the following disclosures and reporting 
requirements that are being developed. 

 Limits for non-treasury investments
 Agreement on the types of loan to be made and self-assessed limit that cannot be 

exceeded for such loans
 Agreement of the types of property investments to be made and self-assessed 

limit for total exposure to these investments
 Definition of the types of contribution non-financial investments can deliver for the 

Council
 Processes and procedures for dealing with risk assessment, including security, 

debt recovery, liquidity and performance monitoring
 How the right balance is achieved between security, liquidity and yield
 Quantitative indicators to help measure total risk exposure in terms of 

proportionality
 Capacity, skills and culture, including policy on the use of external service 

providers

17 The Importance of Effective Treasury Management in Financing Capital 
Expenditure

17.1 Treasury management is defined by CIPFA as: “the management of the Council’s 
borrowing, investments and cash flows”. A vital part of the treasury management 
operation is to ensure that cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being 
available when it is needed, including the funding of the Council’s capital plans. 
These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, 
essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet 
its capital spending obligations.  

17.2 The Council will ensure that its capital investment plans and borrowing are prudent, 
affordable and sustainable. In doing so, it will take into account its arrangements for 
the repayment of debt and the consideration of risk and the impact on the Council’s 
overall fiscal sustainability. While prudential indicators are required to be set over a 
rolling three year period, these will, in future, be established in line with a capital 
strategy that is sustainable over the longer term.

88



Appendix H

17.3 The CIPFA Treasury Management Code recognises that organisations may make 
investments for policy reasons outside of normal treasury management activity. 
These may include commercial investments as described above.

17.4 The Council’s approach to Treasury Management is set out in detail in its Treasury 
Management Strategy which is reported to Council annually in March. This also 
features the Council’s arrangements for dealing with the Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP)

18 Procurement and Value for Money

18.1 Procurement is the purchase of goods and services, and the Council’s approach is 
aligned to the Lincolnshire Sustainable Procurement Strategy that has been 
developed to assist with the definition of quality standards and securing provision of 
the best possible services for local people for a given price. 

18.2 The Council uses the services of Lincolnshire Procurement for capital procurement 
and to help deliver efficiency savings and value for money. This ensures full 
compliance with EU procurement directives and the Council has adopted 
Lincolnshire’s Contract Procedure Rules.

18.3 The main aim is to hold ‘value for money’ as a key goal in all procurement activity to 
optimise the combination of cost and quality. Delivering the Council’s Capital 
Investment Programme should provide high quality, value for money public 
services. The Council recognises that best value is based on whole life costs and 
therefore the on-going revenue implications of capital spend are identified. These 
revenue costs are used to inform the revenue budget planning process and are 
considered alongside other priorities in the revenue budget when the overall budget 
is set. Costs to be assessed include the opportunity cost of using the resources, the 
interest earnings foregone by utilising reserves and capital receipts, and any 
additional revenue costs arising from the investment.

18.4 Effective performance management is central to all capital investment activities as a 
way of ensuring that value for money is being achieved.

19 Partnerships and Relationships with other Organisations

19.1 SKDC is an outward-looking Council that is keen to engage and partner with other 
public bodies and especially with external organisations to unlock private 
investment and deliver economic growth for the area. Also, to learn from partnering 
and networking in order to develop new ideas and innovation and deliver results on 
a shared risk and reward basis. 

20 Due Diligence and Risk Management

20.1 Risk management, due diligence and achieving value for money are the foundation 
for all aspects of capital investment and treasury management underpinned by 
effective management and control.

89



Appendix H

Due Diligence

20.2 For all capital investments, the appropriate level of due diligence will be undertaken 
with the extent and depth reflecting the level of additional risk being considered. 
Due diligence process and procedures will include:

 effective scrutiny of proposed investments by the Management Team and 
Cabinet;

 identification of the risk to both the capital sums invested and the returns;

 understanding the extent and nature of any external underwriting of those risks;

 the potential impact on the financial sustainability of the Council if those risks 
come to fruition;

 identification of the assets being held for security against debt and any prior 
charges on those assets; 

 where necessary, independent and expert advice will be sought.

Risk Management

20.3 To manage risk effectively, the risks associated with each capital project or capital 
investment need to be systematically identified, analysed, influenced and 
monitored.

20.4 It is important to identify the appetite for risk by each scheme and for the capital 
programme as a whole, especially when investing in capital assets held primarily for 
financial returns. Under the CIPFA Prudential Code these are defined as 
investments and so the key principle of control of risk and optimising returns 
consistent with the level of risk applies.

20.5 An assessment of risk should therefore be built into every capital project and major 
risks recorded in a Risk Register. It is important that risk assessment forms a key 
element of the both the capital expenditure and capital financing process.

20.6 The following have been defined as the main risks and these are explained more 
fully in the Treasury Management Strategy.

Credit Risk
20.7 The risk that the organisation with which the Council has invested capital monies 

has diminished creditworthiness or becomes insolvent and cannot meet its 
contractual obligations. 

Liquidity Risk
20.8 The risk that cash will not be available when needed.

Interest Rate, Exchange Rate & Inflation Risks
20.9 The risk that rates will move in a way that has an adverse effect on the value of 

capital expenditure or the expected financial returns from a project. 

90



Appendix H

Legal and Regulatory Risk
20.10  The risk that changes in laws or regulation make a capital project more expensive 

or time consuming to complete, make it no longer cost effective or make it illegal 
or not advisable to complete. 

Fraud, Error and Corruption
20.11 The risk that financial losses will occur due to errors or fraudulent or corrupt 

activities. 

91



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix I

PROPERTY INVESTMENT POLICY
February 2019

1. Background
As an integral part of the Council’s approach to commercialisation, this policy sets out 
a framework in order to make investments in property and strategic assets.  Under this 
policy the Council may (subject to a business case):

 Purchase tenanted property and carry out landlord functions;
 Build or develop property to be let to interested parties;
 Acquire land to be developed or make available for development;
 Develop existing land or property;
 Undertake any other investments for which it has legal powers

Investments made in share capital, fixed term deposit, government bonds and property 
funds are classified as Treasury Investments and are referenced in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy and therefore not covered as part of this policy. 

2. Objectives
Property Investments may be made to meet one of the following objectives:

i. Commercial investment - to acquire income-producing property in order to 
enhance Council revenue streams or to make investments in potential 
development sites and development schemes within the district.

This strategy provides a supporting framework for the acquisition of income 
generating assets which will yield future sustainable net revenue streams over 
the medium term for the Council after covering any borrowing costs.  To enable 
each investment proposal to be considered and evaluated, a business case 
detailing the capital and revenue implications, the financial return from the 
investment and the associated risk levels will be prepared and evaluated. 

ii. Economic Development/Regeneration – which deliver significant regeneration 
benefits to the area and wider district. 

Where the objective for the capital to be invested is to support and deliver 
economic regeneration and growth or to provide new and enhanced offer to the 
residents then any borrowing costs that are incurred will need to be assessed 
for affordability and if progressed, funded from a combination of revenue 
contribution, Council tax receipts and the use of the £10m capital budget 
identified.  

It may fund its share of the capital to be invested via Deliver SK (a joint venture 
with a Private Investor).

It may act as the finance provider, taking a charge over assets owned by a third 
party.

93



Appendix I

3. Commercial Investment

CIPFA guidance recommends that the security and liquidity of investments should take 
priority over yield.  This is reflected in the policy objectives below and in the Council’s 
approach:

  to ensure there is a diverse portfolio of properties, such diversification 
principally being across geographical location and the type of properties held.

 To acquire investments that provide long term investment in line with the 
Council’s Corporate Strategy;

 To maximise return while minimising risk through prudential management 
processes;

 To prioritise investments that yield optimal revenue streams and stable income 
to support the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 To protect capital invested
Location
The South Kesteven district, specifically Grantham, Stamford and Bourne, is the 
preferred location for acquisitions of investment properties, so that reinvestment is 
retained within the local economy and any additional capital expenditure is made in 
the local area. Therefore, all efforts will be directed to source suitable investments 
within South Kesteven.  However, it is recognised that there is a finite supply of 
property within the local area and of that supply, only a small proportion may be 
available for purchase at any time. 

Target assets
The following assets will be sought;

Type Desired Characteristics
Retail investments 1. Lot sizes of up to £5m

2. Good locations in town centres or in good 
out-of-town retail clusters/parks

3. Quality tenants on leases with a minimum of 
five years unexpired terms

Office investments  Lot sizes of up to £5m
 Modern specification, likely to be built since 

1990
 Good locations in town centre or in good 

out-of-town business parks
 Quality tenants on leases with a minimum of 

five years unexpired terms
 Multi-let properties to be considered with 

average unexpired lease terms of 3 years, 
subject to a spread of expiry dates

94



Appendix I

Type Desired Characteristics
Industrial/Warehouse 
investments 

 Lot sizes of up to £5m
 Modern specification with flexible standard 

layout
 Good locations on major road routes and 

good access to motorways
 Quality tenants on leases with a minimum of 

five years unexpired terms
 Multi-let properties to be considered with 

average unexpired lease terms of 3 years, 
subject to a spread of expiry dates

Investment in health and care 
facilities, opportunities to invest 
in land that would provide a 
commercial return, investment 
in different leisure opportunities 
such as public houses, 
restaurants and health & fitness 
centres with 

Similar characteristics as above.

Mixed-use investments would 
also be potentially suitable 
additions to the portfolio. These 
may include a mixture of 
commercial and residential uses, 
or a mixture of retail and office 
use. 

Similar characteristics as set out above for 
office investments will apply.

Criteria for Appraising Potential Investments
Each investment will be subject to a business case and will be appraised in line with 
the criteria set out within this section. 
Any investments that take the total investment above the £10m set out within the 
Budget Framework will require the approval of Full Council. 
The legal basis of all investments will be verified as part of the approval process set 
out in Section 5 of this policy. 
The following tests will be applied to each investment:
Yield Test – investments must demonstrate the best use of council money; this is to 
be measured typically by generating a suitable rate of return (net income) of at least 
3% when borrowing (after taking into consideration borrowing costs) and 5% when 
using reserves.
The rate of return takes into account the gross yield and deducts relevant costs such 
as borrowing costs, to arrive at a net income. 
Whilst rate of return is the primary measure of whether an investment is viable, other 
factors that will be considered include:

95



Appendix I

 Payback – the period over which the initial outlay will be repaid.  The shorter 
the payback the more attractive the investment

 Expected date of positive return – whilst an investment can have a rate of return 
over the life of the asset, it may not yield a positive return in the early years.  
This will be considered in the context of the overall asset portfolio and the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan

 Capital appreciation – investments in assets may lead to a significant increase 
in asset value thereby making an investment attractive even if the minimum 
yield target is not achieved.

Risk Test – investments must not expose the Council to an unacceptable level of risk 
and in particular the security and liquidity risks must be adequately managed. 
A rigorous assessment of all risks is required in each case of fresh investment in order 
firstly to value each property and then to check its suitability for inclusion in the 
portfolio. The risks fall into two categories, firstly property market risks in specific 
property market sub-sectors and locations and secondly asset-specific risks 

Asset specific risks can be measured and an assessment made of the likely future 
performance of the investment carried out to determine the ranges of likely future 
rental growth of the property and also the disposal price. 

The factors that will be considered when assessing asset specific risk are:
Income returns for property will depend principally on the following five main 
characteristics;

• Location of property
• Building specification quality
• Length of lease unexpired
• Financial strength of tenant(s)
• Rental levels payable relative to current open market rental values

Performance measurement
The financial performance of the investment property portfolio and of each property 
within the portfolio will be measured and reported on an annual basis. Performance 
measurement will be based on annual external revaluations of the properties. Reports 
will be presented to the Cabinet including analysis of the performance with a view to 
making recommendations concerning amendments or alterations to the adopted 
strategy to ensure that the main objectives continue to be achieved. Suitable 
benchmarking can be set up, as required, so that the performance of the property 
portfolio may be measured against a suitable peer group or against nationally reported 
indices of property investment performance. 
In the event of a failure to achieve the performance targets in the case of individual 
assets, the business plan for the property will be reviewed and amended as necessary 
to address the underperformance noted, or alternatively the asset can be disposed of.

Sourcing of investment property
Assistance will be sought from the Council’s wholly owned company, Invest SK, in 
order to identify investment opportunities aligned with the objectives of supporting the 

96



Appendix I

delivery of the Council’s ambitions, make recommendations for investments and 
provide assistance with respect to due diligence on any purchases.  
Staffing resources will need to be made available consisting of officers with the 
necessary experience of operating in the property investment market in order to 
source suitable property assets for acquisition that match the criteria set under the 
adopted strategy. This can be done either by recruitment into the existing Council 
property estates management team or by employing external expertise.

4. Economic Development/Regeneration
The Council also plans to invest in assets in the district for economic regeneration 
purposes with the aim of achieving the following outcomes:  

 Job creation or retention;

 Business rate growth;

 Local economic stimulus

 Provision when the private sector is not engaging

 Preventing Local Market failure;

  Opportunities that have strategic importance within South Kesteven, such as 
those that will improve key locations or address local deprivation issues 

These assets are unlikely to provide a net income stream and therefore will be 
financed by SKDC funding the borrowing to utilise the £10m capital budget so the 
interest costs and MRP associated with borrowing will need to be financed by creating 
headroom in the revenue budget (if possible) or utilising the Regeneration reserve.  
The balance of this reserve going forward will be maintained at the level necessary to 
fund the borrowing costs of the acquisitions.  It will be necessary to ensure that the 
balance remains adequate to cover any planned or contingency spending, as well as 
to cover any borrowing costs. These type of assets usually require further investment 
to bring forward the expected benefits and these costs need to be taken into account 
in the Business Case.  It is expected that, over time, these investments will increase 
council tax and business rates receipts.

In respect of regeneration investments, opportunities will be pursued where there is a 
clear business case demonstrating how it will contribute to the regeneration of the 
district.  Any surplus income after operating, interest and MRP costs will be transferred 
to the Regeneration reserve to support future regeneration schemes. 
Only proposals within the South Kesteven district will be considered for regeneration 
Investment opportunities.
The strategy for regeneration Investment opportunities does not expressly exclude 
residential property, although it does envisage that any residential opportunities are 
more likely to come forward as part of enabling development or hybrid schemes, for 
wider regeneration purposes. Any housing related based schemes will need additional 
legal and financial consideration.

97



Appendix I

The Strategy does permit opportunities for co-investment with partner organisations 
of good financial and reputational standing (known as joint ventures). 
Opportunities of any value will be considered for regeneration Investments, although 
consideration will always need to be given to the number of smaller investments held 
by the Council, in pursuance of this Strategy and the burden of administering each 
investment before a decision is taken. 
The physical use of an asset describes its asset class and a diversified portfolio of 
assets is preferable to mitigate risk to the capital invested. 

5. Governance and decision making

This policy is approved by Full Council as part of the Capital Strategy and Budget 
Setting.
Owing to the normal processes when a property comes to the market and is bought 
and sold, decision-making on property purchases needs to fit in to the due diligence 
processes and timetables usually followed by private sector property owners. 
A normal timetable in the purchase of commercial property would be a two to three 
week marketing period, followed by a week for submission of offers and confirmation 
by the seller of the preferred buyer and preparation of Heads of Terms, followed by a 
4-6 week period for due diligence investigations by the buyer and the buyer’s solicitor 
prior to exchange of binding unconditional contracts on the purchase. Completion will 
usually follow within a further four weeks.
It is therefore proposed that the following decision making process is followed:

 A brief outline appraisal will be prepared for consideration by the Portfolio 
Holder, prior to engaging in discussion/negotiations.  

 The Chief Executive (or an officer delegated by them) may enter discussions 
regarding prospective acquisitions without formally committing the Council to 
any agreement

 The maximum purchase/project commitment of the Council will not exceed 
£10m (or the balance remaining of the initial £10m allocation).

 Each potential development project or acquisition will be assessed by the  
Director for Growth in conjunction with Finance and Legal.

 A business case, including all costs, risk assessment and recommendation to 
be prepared by the Director for Growth and presented to the Leader, Deputy 
Leader, Chief Executive, s151 officer, relevant Cabinet member and the 
Monitoring Officer.  A non-key decision will then be formulated should the 
recommendation be made to proceed. 

6. Legal Considerations

The Council can make funds available for investments. The Council has the power to 
invest for the purpose of the prudent management of its financial affairs under the 
Local Government Act 2003. 
In applying this policy, the Council is relying on the following legal powers: 

98



Appendix I

 Section 120 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives councils the power to 
acquire property by agreement for the purpose of any of its functions or for the 
benefit, improvement or development of the area. 

  Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, known as the general power of 
competence, enables a local authority to do anything that an individual 
generally may do (subject to prohibitions, restrictions, and limitations in existing 
statute which are not applicable in the circumstances set out in the report). 
Further, that power enables the authority to do it anywhere in the United 
Kingdom or elsewhere, for a commercial purpose or otherwise for a charge, or 
without charge, and to do it for, or otherwise than for, the benefit of the 
authority, its area or persons resident or present in its area. 

The strategy proposes new investment acquisitions within South Kesteven if the 
supply or quality of investments is identified. In accordance with the Localism Act 2011 
the Council has the power to acquire property or land investments outside the county 
boundaries. 
DCLG issued guidance under section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 and 
effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 April 2018 stating that borrowing 
solely to invest in a yield bearing opportunity is borrowing in advance of need and not 
allowable. The Council’s policy is to invest in the district so is never solely about yield 
returns given the additional benefits that will accrue. 
As part of the evaluation of any potential capital investment, officers must understand 
and present the legal basis for decisions prior to approval.

7. Finance Considerations  

All opportunities for investment will be subject to high levels of due diligence and must 
have a robust business case demonstrating how the proposal will be financed.

All future acquisitions will be financed through prudential borrowing but the extent that 
MRP is accounted for will be determined on a case by case basis and be a function of 
the life and condition of the asset.  The Council is required to charge a prudent 
provision for debt repayment annually and in all cases statutory guidance will be 
adhered to. 

There are no overall limits on what a council can borrow but the overall Treasury 
Management function is governed by CIPFA’s Treasury Management and Prudential 
Codes. Under the latter the Council is required to set indicators that are designed to 
support and record decisions taken on affordability and sustainability.  There is also a 
requirement to impose limits on the Council’s treasury management activities to 
ensure decisions are made in accordance with professional good practice and risks 
are appropriate (These are included in the Treasury Management Strategy Report). 
The Chief Finance Officer monitors these and reports on them at appropriate times 
whilst the Council (this function is delegated to Governance and Audit Committee) can 
revise these indicators and limits at any time during the year.  

Increasing the levels of capital investment will have a significant impact on the 
Council’s prudential indicators and these will be updated as each borrowing is being 
considered in respect of the following:  

99



Appendix I

 An increase to the Capital Programme from 2019/20 
 An increase to the Authorised and Operational Limits 
 An increase to the Capital Financing Requirement  

 

Capital Prudential 
Indicators

2019/20
Revised  
£m 

2020/21
Estimate 
£m 

2021/22
Estimate  
£m 

2022/23
Estimate
£m

Forecast 
Capital Expenditure

14.237 1.723 1.881 2.055

Capital Financing
Requirement as at 31 
March   

120.82 117.096 113.377 109.664

100



Appendix J

South Kesteven District Council

Equality Analysis
(Stage 1)

General Fund Budget and 
Council Tax Setting 2019/20

and
HRA Rent Setting 2019/20

Lead officer:
Richard Wyles
Assessors:
Alison HallWright

Service Area:

Housing 

Neutral Assessor:
Jo Toomey

Date of Meeting:             
4 January 2019 

101



Appendix J

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy

General Fund Budget and Council Tax Setting 2019/20

The aim of the budget setting process is to establish the Council Tax base 
for the residents of South Kesteven for 2019/20. The Budget proposals are 
to financially support delivery of the Council’s stated priorities and to enable 
the authority to deliver on specific service policies.  The budget provides a 
financial framework for Council Tax setting purposes for the financial year 
2019/20 taking into account the council’s overall financial position and 
service delivery requirements. 

The Council is currently considering four options for annual Council Tax 
increases per a Band D property in 2019/20.  These options are detailed 
below:

 0% Council Tax Increase
 3% Council Tax Increase 
 £5 Council Tax Increase

Depending on the option chosen, the level of increase will vary dependent on 
the property type; the council tax increase in properties in bands A to C will 
be less than a Band D property while the increase in Bands E to H will be 
greater.

HRA Rent Setting 2019/20

HRA Rent Setting is set in line with Government Guidance.  The Government 
directive will see a majority of dwelling rents being reduced by 1%.  However 
this excludes the following rents in relation to garages, service charges and 
shared ownership where it is proposed to increase the charges.

Is this a new or existing policy? Annual

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed policy/service/ 
function/strategy could have any potential positive, or negative impacts on 
groups from any of the protected characteristics (or diversity strands) listed, 
using demographic data, user surveys, local consultations evaluation forms, 
comments and complaints etc.

102



Appendix J

General Fund Budget and Council Tax Setting 2019/20

Equality Group

Does this policy/service/ 
function/strategy have a 
positive or negative impact on 
any of the equality groups? 

Please state which for each 
group

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or negative.
If you consider this policy etc 
is not relevant to a specific 
characteristic please explain 
why  

Age Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
age is not a determinant in the 
introduction of the budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20

Disability Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
disability is not a determinant in 
the introduction of the budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20

Race Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
race is not a determinant in the 
introduction of the budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
gender reassignment is not a 
determinant in the introduction of 
the budgetary proposals for 
2019/20

Religion or Belief  Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
religion or belief is not a 
determinant in the introduction of 
the budgetary proposals for 
2019/20

Sex

  

Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
sex is not a determinant in the 
introduction of the budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20

Sexual 
Orientation

Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
sexual orientation is not a 
determinant in the introduction of 
the budgetary proposals for 
2019/20

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
pregnancy or maternity is not a 
determinant in the introduction of 
the budgetary proposals for 
2019/20

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership

Council Tax Freeze will have no 
impact.

Council Tax Increases will have a 
negative impact.

The protected characteristic of 
marriage and civil partnership is 
not a determinant in the 
introduction of the budgetary 
proposals for 2019/20

103



Appendix J

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices of 
multiple 
deprivation)

Low income

General 
comments

The local council tax support scheme will help mitigate the impact of 
increases to council tax. Council tax payers who fall within one of the 
groups identified under the scheme who are entitled to 100% support 
will have the full increase mitigated. The full impact of the increase will 
not be mitigated for customers who are not eligible for 100% support 
under South Kesteven’s scheme.  (The local council tax support 
scheme was itself the subject of a EIA and the issues arising from that 
have previously been considered).  

There will also be a negative impact on people who have low incomes 
that do not qualify under the local council tax support scheme

HRA Rent Setting 2019/20

Equality Group

Does this policy/service/ 
function/strategy have a 
positive or negative impact on 
any of the equality groups? 

Please state which for each 
group

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or negative.
If you consider this policy etc 
is not relevant to a specific 
characteristic please explain 
why  

Age Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/ increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Disability Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Race Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

104



Appendix J

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Religion or Belief  Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Sex

  

Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Sexual 
Orientation

Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership

Positive for most dwellings where 
there is a rental decrease.  

Where there are any increases in 
charges there is a potential for a 
negative impact.

Any rent decrease/increase has 
an impact on the individual 
however the requirement to 
review charges is not determined 
by protected characteristic.

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices of 
multiple 
deprivation)

Potential for negative where 
increases are applicable.

Inevitably social housing is 
generally occupied by people 
who receive lower levels of 
income who will therefore be 
impacted by any level of rent 
increase unless their rent is fully 
covered by the level of housing 
benefit received. 

To help mitigate this potential 
impact advice and support is 
available through the housing 
services and other agencies to 
assist tenants sustain their 
tenancies.

105



Appendix J

General 
comments

The Council is following Government guidance.  The actual rent is 
calculated on a property by property basis so it is possible to provide 
a specific comment as each impact will vary on an individual basis.

3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 
the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings)

General Fund Budget and Council Tax Setting 2019/20

Consultation is currently being undertaken on the proposals to increase 
Council Tax with the local community using local media and website 
promotion.

HRA Rent Setting 2019/20

We hold equality and diversity information on all our tenants.

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed?

None identified

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 

Please check one of the options:  

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken

If you have checked option a) you will need to complete a Stage 3 
analysis when your policy/service/function/strategy has been 

implemented

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality. 

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2 

c) Adverse impact but continue

106



Appendix J

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful

b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts?

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.  

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy.

General Fund Budget and Council Tax Setting 2019/20

Council Tax freeze will have no impact on the taxpayer but any increases will have 
a negative impact.

The Local Council Tax Support Scheme mitigates the impact on those residents 
considered to be most vulnerable.  As the payments for Council Tax support is 
demand-led the Local Scheme the Council has adopted does not limit the number 
of awards if residents are eligible for benefit.  

HRA Rent Setting 2019/20

There is a potential for a negative impact for a small number of tenants who will be 
affected by the increases.  For the majority of tenants there will be a positive 
impact as their rents will decrease.  The Council is required to follow the 
requirements of the Government’s Welfare Reform Bill.

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

Signed (Lead Officer):  Richard Wyles

107



Appendix J

(Name and title) Assistant Director Finance

Date completed: 04 January 2019

Signed (Neutral Assessor): Jo Toomey
 (Name and title) Principal Democracy Officer

Date signed off:  

108



APPENDIX G 

Treasury Management Strategy

to follow

109



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet
7 February 2019

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

        

Matters referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 

This report highlights any matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council or by the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 17 January 2019, as set 
out in Appendix 1.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support 
Assistant 30 January 2019

Approved by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance 29 January 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council 30 January 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of the report and the 
matters referred to in Appendix 1

111

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
Council:

1.1 No matters have been referred to Cabinet by Council since Cabinet’s last meeting on 17 
January 2019. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees:
1.2 The Council operates the Executive decision-making arrangements as set out in the Local 

Government Act 2000, which means it is required to have at least one scrutiny committee 
in place. The Council currently has five Overview and Scrutiny Committees. They meet 
regularly (and may hold additional meetings as necessary) to discuss items within their 
remit.  

1.3 Any recommendations made, or an overview of the topics discussed, by the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the last meeting of Cabinet are contained in 
Appendix 1.

1.4 Where an Overview and Scrutiny Committee has met after the publication of this Cabinet 
agenda, any outstanding recommendations to the Cabinet will be provided in an 
addendum to the Cabinet meeting if the matter relates to an item on the Cabinet’s agenda, 
or a synopsis provided with the agenda for the next Cabinet meeting.

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No other options 

were considered.

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
3.1 Where an item has been considered as part of pre-decision scrutiny, the 

recommendations of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee will either be captured 
within the Cabinet report or, where time does not permit, as part of a verbal update made 
during the Cabinet meeting.

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - 
Resources

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 This report offers the Cabinet an opportunity to consider matters which have been raised 

by other Members at meetings of the Council and committees that operate within the 
executive function of the Council.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report.

7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were identified in 

its production.

112



8 Community Safety Implications 
8.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report.

9 Other Implications (where significant) 
9.1 There are no other implications arising from this report.

10 Background Papers
10.1 There are no background papers to this report.

11 Appendices
11.1 Appendix 1: Matters referred from Council (Part 1) and Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

(Part 2)

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 17 January 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

113



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

MATTERS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL AND 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

PART A: MATTERS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

There are no matters referred by the Council to the Cabinet on this occasion.

PART B: MATTERS REFERRED FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES

BUDGET OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 10 January 2019
Chairman of Meeting: Councillor Robert Reid

The items discussed at that meeting and referred to Cabinet are summarised below.

Budget Proposals 2019/2020

Considerations

 Report number CFM482
 In-year monitoring of the 2018/19 Budget by the Growth Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
 Options available for Council Tax setting. A £5 increase was noted as the 

preferred option.
 The Government’s indication that future Business Rate pilot schemes would be 

awarded to areas not previously involved and subsequent return to pooling 
arrangements

 The current levels of reserves and the forecasted reductions as well as when and 
how it would be replenished

 Proposed fees and charges
 National issues including Great Britain’s exit from the European Union and the 

implementation of universal credit
 Progress against proposed corporate savings for 2018/19
 Discussion on an allocation of £15m capital expenditure in the draft HRA capital 

programme for identifying and procuring appropriate strategic sites across the 
District for housing development

 Considerations on how and when the £25m maturity loan would or could be re-
financed

 Housing proposals and Right to Buy criteria and exemptions
 The Pension Fund, the current use of an earmarked reserve in respect of 

employer contributions for members of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
and the proposal to revert to budgeting the costs at service level from 2020/21

115

Appendix 1



 The review of the scrutiny process that was currently being undertaken which 
identified the need for a Scrutiny Officer

Outcomes

 That the Growth OSC should receive details of options in respect of any 
proposals to re-finance the £25m maturity loan during 2019/20.

 For the Final Budget Proposals 2019/20 to include details of indicative income 
generated by the Council’s Assets.

Recommendations

(a) Following in-depth review and consideration of the Budget proposals for 2019/20, 
the Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee supported the proposals in 
the report in respect of the:

 General Fund – Revenue and Capital
 Housing Revenue Account – Revenue and Capital

      
(b) After consideration of the options available, the Committee supported the £5 

increase in Council Tax.

(c) The Committee also requested that financial provision is included in the Budget 
Proposals 2019/20 for a Scrutiny Officer.

Link to relevant papers:

 Report CFM482
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21946/CFM482Budget%2
0OSC%20-%20020119bb.pdf 

 Report CFM482 – Appendix A
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21942/CFM482%20Appen
dix%20A%20Capacity%20Bidsv2.pdf 

 Report CFM482 – Appendix B
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21961/Updated%20CFM4
82%20Appendix%20B%20Fees%20Charges%20V2a.pdf 

 Report CFM482 – Appendix C
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21944/CFM482%20Appen
dix%20C%20Capital%20Programme%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf 

 Report CFM482 – Appendix D
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21945/CFM482%20Appen
dix%20D%20HRA%20capital%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf 

116

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21946/CFM482Budget%20OSC%20-%20020119bb.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21946/CFM482Budget%20OSC%20-%20020119bb.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21942/CFM482%20Appendix%20A%20Capacity%20Bidsv2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21942/CFM482%20Appendix%20A%20Capacity%20Bidsv2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21961/Updated%20CFM482%20Appendix%20B%20Fees%20Charges%20V2a.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21961/Updated%20CFM482%20Appendix%20B%20Fees%20Charges%20V2a.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21944/CFM482%20Appendix%20C%20Capital%20Programme%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21944/CFM482%20Appendix%20C%20Capital%20Programme%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21945/CFM482%20Appendix%20D%20HRA%20capital%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21945/CFM482%20Appendix%20D%20HRA%20capital%20and%20reserves%20statement.pdf


COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There are no matters referred by the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to Cabinet on this occasion.

CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 24 January 2019
Chairman of Meeting: Councillor Linda Wootten

The items discussed at that meeting and referred to Cabinet are summarised below.

Cultural Strategy Engagement – Progress and Consultation

Considerations

 Report iSK0011
 The launch of the “Big Conversation” and the positive response from attendees
 The engagement and range diversity of those taking part in the “Big 

Conversation” Event
 The practicalities and consideration of how best to enable engagement with 

people in rural areas 
 The event trailer and how it could be used to help engage with rural communities
 The Council being seen by those in attendance at the “Big Conversation” event 

as an enabling platform in respect of coordinating and facilitating the groups who 
want to be involved

 Consideration of the use of a “Place App” for the District
 The terminology used “A Decade of Adventure”
 The aims of the questionnaire, how the formatting could be enhanced, whether 

hard copies would be available and how it would be published
 When the feedback from the questionnaire consultation would be presented to 

the Committee
 Access to the Heritage Grants that were available 
 The revised timetable set out in the report for the Cultural Strategy and ensuring 

that as much information was gathered to inform the strategy   

Outcomes

 Tapping into the knowledge of Members with experience of formatting 
questionnaires.

 Feedback would be provided at the end of the four week consultation period
 The Committee looks forward to receiving an update on the feedback from the 

consultation on the Cultural Strategy.

Conclusions:

Following consideration of the questionnaire, the Committee welcomed and supported 
the progress of the Cultural Strategy and noted that a Member had volunteered to work 
with the Head of Arts in respect of enhancing and formatting the questionnaire. 

117



Link to relevant papers: 

 Cultural Strategy Engagement – progress and consultation report: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22066/ISK0011_Cultural%
20Strategy%20ConsultationandEngagement.pdf

 Appendix 1: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22067/Appendix%201_Cul
tural%20Strategy%20Questionniare%20Draft%20Copy%20for%20Review.pdf 

Scoping Sports Development Activities

Considerations

 The national position regarding physical activity, obesity and engaging with young 
people in particular

 The appointment of a Sports Development Officer, whether one would be 
sufficient and the parameters of the role

 Would work with young offenders be undertaken
 The leisure facilities and activities currently available in the District
 Proposals to build new leisure facilities
 Liaising with established clubs and sports facilities and becoming a network point 

/platform to encourage further engagement with groups and users

Outcomes

 The role of Sports Development Officer would be monitored by InvestSK

Conclusions:

The Committee welcomed the scoping work being undertaken in respect of Sports in 
relation to the development of the Culture Strategy.  It was also noted that the work 
would be undertaken by the Sports Development Officer over the next two year period 
and would potentially add value to other areas of the Council’s work.

Link to relevant papers: 

 Scoping sports development activities report: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22068/ISK0010_ScopingS
portsDevelopmentActivities2019.pdf 

Visitor Economy Activities

Considerations

 Advertising at Kings Cross Station for events in the District
 The launch of the “Discover South Kesteven” Brochure and how businesses have 

been contacting InvestSK requesting inclusion in future brochures
 The points of distribution and showcasing

118

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22066/ISK0011_Cultural%20Strategy%20ConsultationandEngagement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22066/ISK0011_Cultural%20Strategy%20ConsultationandEngagement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22067/Appendix%201_Cultural%20Strategy%20Questionniare%20Draft%20Copy%20for%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22067/Appendix%201_Cultural%20Strategy%20Questionniare%20Draft%20Copy%20for%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22068/ISK0010_ScopingSportsDevelopmentActivities2019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22068/ISK0010_ScopingSportsDevelopmentActivities2019.pdf


 Targeting of overseas experimental travelers as well as nationally

Conclusions:

The Committee acknowledged and welcomed the hard work undertaken in respect of 
development of the “Discover South Kesteven” Brochure and endorsed the work plan 
for the Visitor Economy Team for the forthcoming year.

Link to relevant papers: 

 Visitor economy activities report: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22069/ISK0012_Visitor%2
0Economy%20OSC%20Report%2024.01.2019.pdf 

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2019
Chairman of Meeting: Councillor Mike Exton

The items discussed at that meeting and referred to Cabinet are summarised below.

DEFRA Resources and Waste Strategy

A presentation was given highlighting the alignment between DEFRA’s Resources and 
Waste Strategy and the Lincolnshire Joint Municipal Waste Strategy.

Grounds Maintenance

An update was given on the current position.

Food Waste

An update was given on the current position.

GROWTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There are no matters referred by the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
Cabinet on this occasion.

RURAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 23 January 2019
Chairman of Meeting: Councillor Bob Sampson

The items discussed at that meeting and referred to Cabinet are summarised below.

119

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22069/ISK0012_Visitor%20Economy%20OSC%20Report%2024.01.2019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22069/ISK0012_Visitor%20Economy%20OSC%20Report%2024.01.2019.pdf


Transformation and Innovation Report

Considerations

 Transformation themes, the aim to improve access to services and service 
delivery through improved technology 

 The work being undertaken in respect of the service reviews, achievements to 
date and improvements to IT infrastructure platforms

 Enhancing the experience of customer services by considering the potential to 
combine services from other organisations by creating a Public Sector Hub. This 
was being viewed by the Local Government Association as an innovative way 
forward

 Providing appropriate accommodation and facilities in order that Public Sector 
Hubs could be considered further

 Consultation on new proposals such as an accessible Public Sector Hubs and 
the changes as a result of the Public Realm works

 Providing Public Sector Hubs accessibility for residents in rural areas, without 
technology through the potential use of the Visitor Economy Trailer as an SKDC 
point of contact on a regular basis

 The phasing of the overall transformation programme, and the proposals to save 
£200k and whether this saving would be recurring

 Whether the work plan for the areas to be reviewed included details of potential 
impacts?

Outcomes

 That the Deputy Leader would be happy to provide the Committee with a regular 
overview of the Transformation and Innovation progress at future meetings

Conclusions:

The Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted the content of the report and 
supported the ongoing transformation journey.  The Committee also looked forward to 
receiving updates on the progression of the ongoing transformation journey at future 
meetings.

Link to relevant papers: 

 Transformation and Innovation report: 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22058/ACEX011%20-
%20Services%20Transformation%20and%20Change%20-
%20v5%20AR%20amends.pdf 

Update from the Armed Forces Officer

Considerations

 Background to the Armed Forces Discount Card Scheme and how it was 
currently implemented in Rutland 

 The provisions within the Armed Forces Covenant and the definition of “families”

120

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22058/ACEX011%20-%20Services%20Transformation%20and%20Change%20-%20v5%20AR%20amends.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22058/ACEX011%20-%20Services%20Transformation%20and%20Change%20-%20v5%20AR%20amends.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22058/ACEX011%20-%20Services%20Transformation%20and%20Change%20-%20v5%20AR%20amends.pdf


 InvestSK breakfast meeting briefings on what was involved in taking the 
Discount Scheme forward and enchancing local business participation. 

 Guidance Businesses notes,  templates and business interaction with the 
scheme and increased footfall locally

 The Launch of the scheme both online and through visiting other organisations 
and providing details of the scheme onto all barracks in the District

 Uptake of the scheme to date 
 The possibilities for additional recipients for the scheme such as immediate 

relatives
 Work being undertaken to engage with potential participants living outside the 

area of work placement

Outcomes

The Committee to receive progress updates at future meetings

Recommendations
The Committee recommends to the Cabinet Member for Housing that South Kesteven 
District Council introduce an Armed Forces Discount Card Scheme as set out in 
Appendix 1 of this report

Link to relevant papers: 

 Update report from the Armed Forces Officer:
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22054/ACEX009%20-
%20Armed%20Forces%20Discount%20Card%20Report%20-%20v4.pdf 

 Appendix 1 – Armed Forces Discount Card:
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22057/Appendix%201_Armed%20Force
s%20Discount%20Card%20-%20Scheme%20proposal.pdf 

Bourne CiCle Festival

Considerations

 The event was being run under the British Cycling’s umbrella and had been 
moved forward due to conflicts with other national cycling events

 Some Members were disappointed that the route for the races did not include 
Stamford

 Safety issues, car parking, toilet facilities and whether this event had been 
approved by the Safety Advisory Group or the County Cabinet Member at Lincoln 
CC 

 Potential changes to the route following consultation with the Safety Advisory 
Group

 The Consultation process and whether all District Councillors, parish councils and 
the farming community had been contacted

 What recourse there would be should cyclists inadvertently damage street 
furniture in villages as they went through

 What advertising for the event was being undertaken
 How long the road closures would last and that it would be a rolling road closure 

and the road would be open again once the peloton had passed through

121

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22054/ACEX009%20-%20Armed%20Forces%20Discount%20Card%20Report%20-%20v4.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22054/ACEX009%20-%20Armed%20Forces%20Discount%20Card%20Report%20-%20v4.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22057/Appendix%201_Armed%20Forces%20Discount%20Card%20-%20Scheme%20proposal.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s22057/Appendix%201_Armed%20Forces%20Discount%20Card%20-%20Scheme%20proposal.pdf


 How the event had been chosen and what input Bourne Town Council had in the 
decision making process

Outcomes

 The Committee felt that such events should be an item on future all Councillor 
Briefing, and that the Bourne CiCLE event could be delivered at the next all 
Councillor Briefing

Recommendations

The Committee recommends to the Cabinet Member for Housing that South Kesteven 
District Council introduces an Armed Forces Discount Card Scheme as set out in 
Appendix 1 of this report

122



Cabinet
7 February 2019

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

        

Decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members

This report provides an overview of decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet on 17 January 2019.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support 
Assistant 30 January 2019

Approved by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance 29 January 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council 30 January 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the decisions taken by individual Cabinet 
Members in the period since the last Cabinet meeting held on 17 January 2019.

123

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Under the strong Leader model of governance, the Leader can allocate decision-making 

power to the Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members. Decisions of the Cabinet will be 
made during Cabinet meetings while individual Cabinet Members may make decisions at 
any time in accordance with the relevant regulations.

1.2 All of the decisions made by individual Cabinet Members since the Cabinet last met are 
attached as appendices to this report. Both the report on which the decision was based, 
and the decision notice are attached. 

1.3 Since the Cabinet met on 7 January 2019 the following decisions have been made:

 Grantham, Wyndham Park. Application for Centenary Fields status
Non-key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy on 14 
January 2019
Date decision effective: 23 January 2019 (subject to call-in)
Report FM0010 and decision notice attached as appendix 1

 Council Tax for long-term empty dwellings
Non-key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Finance on 21 January 2019
Date decision effective: 30 January 2019 (subject to call-in)
Report CFM488 and decision notice attached as appendix 2

1.4 Any decisions made after the publication of the agenda will be reported at the next 
meeting of the Cabinet.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 Consultation and feedback received in respect of the matters to which the decisions listed 

in this report relate is captured in the report that is presented to the decision-maker.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No other options 

were considered 

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - 
Resources

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 The provisions relating to the Cabinet, its Members and delegations by the Leader are as 

set out at Article 8 of the Constitution. The Strong Leader and Cabinet model to carry out 
executive functions was adopted by the Council in accordance with the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Local Democracy, Economic 
Regeneration and Construction Act 2009.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive, 
Transformation and Change

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 This report provides an overview of decisions that have been made. Each individual report 

on which a decision is based will consider any equality or safeguarding implications.

124



7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were identified.

8 Community Safety Implications 
8.1 This report has no community safety implications.

9 Other Implications (where significant) 
9.1 This report has no other significant implications.

10 Background Papers
10.1 None; relevant background papers are listed on the report for each decision.

11 Appendices
11.1 Appendix 1: Grantham, Wyndham Park. Application for Centenary Fields status

11.2 Appendix 2: Council Tax for long-term empty dwellings

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 17 January 2019

Report Timeline: 

Decision date  Not applicable

125



This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET PORTFOLIO MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: 

REPORT AUTHOR:           Paul Stokes – Corporate Operations 
Lead

REPORT NO.        FM0010

DATE:         2nd January 2019 

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

Grantham, Wyndham Park. Application for Centenary 
Fields status  

PRIORITY THEME: Cultural Services
CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

None

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

N/A

Full impact assessment 
required?

N/A
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS:

N/A

(1) PURPOSE OF REPORT

To obtain consent to complete registration of Wyndham Park as a Centenary Field – 
under the national Fields in Trust scheme. 

(2) RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy approves 
the registration of Wyndham Park as a Centenary Field and authorises the completion 
of the Deed of Dedication.

Councillor Nick Robins: Cabinet 
member for Retail and Visitor 
economy 

127

Appendix 1

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


(3) REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

Background

The Centenary Fields programme was launched in 2014 by Fields in Trust President 
HRH The Duke of Cambridge.

The Centenary Fields programme aims to protect at least one green space in every 
local authority area across England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland to 
commemorate the centenary of World War I (WWI). Protected sites could be war 
memorial parks or recreation grounds, memorial gardens, parks and recreation 
grounds that contain war memorials or other valued green spaces. Safeguarding 
these sites will create a living UK-wide legacy in commemoration of the sacrifice 
made by those who lost their lives in WWI. 

Landowners across the UK are being encouraged to dedicate a recreational space 
as a Centenary Field. Suitable spaces include war memorial playing fields and 
recreation grounds, memorial gardens, parks or recreation grounds that contain a 
war memorial and other valued green spaces that have some significance to WWI, 
either existing or planned.

Wyndham Park with its unique heritage features including Post WW1 memorial 
buildings became the Town War Memorial ground during 1924.

With the capital works element of our Heritage Lottery Funded improvement project 
delivered during 2018, registration of the site as a Centenary Field is a natural 
progression, endorsed by the Wyndham Park Forum.

By dedicating land through the Centenary Fields programme we can ensure that 
Wyndham Park is protected as a living remembrance to those who fought and lost 
their lives in World War I.
Benefits

Dedicating a Centenary Field is a fitting way for landowners to mark the centenary of 
WWI by commemorating the sacrifice of those who lost their lives in the conflict and 
ensuring that their communities benefit now and in the future from protected green 
spaces. 
On completion of the registration we will receive a commemorative plaque to display 
at Wyndham Park.

Costs

The costs are as follows:

 As the bulk of the legal costs are covered by Fields in Trust the cost of 
installing the commemorative plaque – which will be provided free of charge.

 The cost of registering the resulting restrictions with the Land Registry - 
currently £80 for up to three titles.

128



Risks, restrictions and safeguards

Fields in Trust acknowledge that on rare occasions communities change and land 
use changes accordingly. Parts of sites, or very rarely, whole sites can therefore be 
disposed of provided the disposal is of clear advantage to, and in the best interests 
of, the community from a recreational perspective. The criteria which Fields in Trust 
applies to replacement facilities are that they should be of:

 at least equal size

 better quality

 serving the same community in terms of catchment area
Additionally, and very importantly, any disposal should apply as much of the 
proceeds as necessary to replacement sport, recreation and/or play facilities, with 
priority given to outdoor before indoor facilities.
Process

Application for Centenary Fields status was made during 2015 and a draft Deed of 
Dedication has been prepared in anticipation of consent to proceed with registration. 

Other points to note

Fields in Trust and the Green Flag award scheme work together to safeguard green 
spaces and ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

Membership of Fields in Trust at £95.00 per annum is optional.

Wyndham Park is situated within the Grantham St Anne’s conservation area.
Application for protection under the scheme was proposed by the Wyndham Park 
Forum during 2015. 

(4) COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Costs will need to be met from existing revenue budgets.

(5) COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

To dedicate land requires the completion of the Deed of Dedication referred to in this 
report. The conditions imposed by the Deed of Dedication are set out at clause 3 of 
the Deed. The conditions restrict future use. The Council must ensure that all its 
activities to be carried out in the future will comply with these conditions. The consent 
of the National Playing Fields Association will be required for any disposal of any of 
the land dedicated in this way. Once completed, the Deed of Dedication would be 
registered at HM Land Registry with a restriction as set out in the Deed of Dedication.

 

129



(6) OFFICER CONTACT

           Paul Stokes, Corporate Operations Lead  
           01476 406080 ext: 6410 p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk

Steve Frisby, Parks Contract Manager, Corporate Operations
01476 406080 ext: 6016 s.frisby@southkesteven.gov.uk

(7) DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:

If decision taken on Monday 14 January the date that the decision will be 
effective will be Wednesday 23 January 2019 subject to no call-in being 
received.

130

mailto:p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:s.frisby@southkesteven.gov.uk


CABINET MEMBER 
DECISION

Decision:   

That approval is granted for the registration of Wyndham Park as a 
Centenary Field and that the completion of the Deed of Dedication 
is authorised.

(1) Details of Decision

To obtain consent to complete registration of Wyndham Park as a Centenary 
Field – under the national Fields in Trust scheme. 

(2) Considerations/Evidence

The Centenary Fields programme was launched in 2014 by Fields in Trust 
President HRH The Duke of Cambridge.

The Centenary Fields programme aims to protect at least one green space in 
every local authority area across England, Wales, Scotland and Northern 
Ireland to commemorate the centenary of World War I (WWI). Protected sites 
could be war memorial parks or recreation grounds, memorial gardens, parks 
and recreation grounds that contain war memorials or other valued green 
spaces. Safeguarding these sites will create a living UK-wide legacy in 
commemoration of the sacrifice made by those who lost their lives in WWI. 
Landowners across the UK are being encouraged to dedicate a recreational 
space as a Centenary Field. Suitable spaces include war memorial playing 
fields and recreation grounds, memorial gardens, parks or recreation grounds 
that contain a war memorial and other valued green spaces that have some 
significance to WWI, either existing or planned.

Wyndham Park with its unique heritage features including Post WW1 
memorial buildings became the Town War Memorial ground during 1924.

With the capital works element of our Heritage Lottery Funded improvement 
project delivered during 2018, registration of the site as a Centenary Field is a 
natural progression, endorsed by the Wyndham Park Forum.

By dedicating land through the Centenary Fields programme we can ensure 
that Wyndham Park is protected as a living remembrance to those who 
fought and lost their lives in World War I.

131



(3) Reasons for Decision:

Dedicating a Centenary Field is a fitting way for landowners to mark the 
centenary of WWI by commemorating the sacrifice of those who lost their 
lives in the conflict and ensuring that their communities benefit now and in the 
future from protected green spaces. 
On completion of the registration we will receive a commemorative plaque to 
display at Wyndham Park.

The costs are as follows:

 As the bulk of the legal costs are covered by Fields in Trust the cost of 
installing the commemorative plaque – which will be provided free of 
charge.

 The cost of registering the resulting restrictions with the Land Registry 
- currently £80 for up to three titles.

Fields in Trust acknowledge that on rare occasions communities change and 
land use changes accordingly. Parts of sites, or very rarely, whole sites can 
therefore be disposed of provided the disposal is of clear advantage to, and 
in the best interests of, the community from a recreational perspective. The 
criteria which Fields in Trust applies to replacement facilities are that they 
should be of:

 at least equal size

 better quality

 serving the same community in terms of catchment area
Additionally, and very importantly, any disposal should apply as much of the 
proceeds as necessary to replacement sport, recreation and/or play facilities, 
with priority given to outdoor before indoor facilities.

Application for Centenary Fields status was made during 2015 and a draft 
Deed of Dedication has been prepared in anticipation of consent to proceed 
with registration. 

Fields in Trust and the Green Flag award scheme work together to safeguard 
green spaces and ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

Membership of Fields in Trust at £95.00 per annum is optional.

Wyndham Park is situated within the Grantham St Anne’s conservation area. 
Application for protection under the scheme was proposed by the Wyndham 
Park Forum during 2015. 

132



Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Nick Robins
Cabinet Member for Retail & Visitor Economy

Date of Decision: 14 January 2019

Date of Publication of Record of Decision:  15 January 2019

Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups):

23 January 2019

133



This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

REPORT AUTHOR: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources

REPORT NO. CFM488 

DATE: 14 January 2019

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

COUNCIL TAX FOR LONG TERM EMPTY DWELLINGS

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT: COUNCILLOR ADAM STOKES

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

Not Applicable

Full impact assessment 
required?

No
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS: N/a

(1) PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek approval to amend the Council Tax chargeable amounts in respect of long 
term empty dwellings accordance with legislative changes contained in Rating 
(Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018.  The 
legislation makes changes to the premium levels for empty properties that are 
introduced over the next 3 financial years. 

135

Appendix 2

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


(2) RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Cabinet member for Finance is asked to approve the following changes in respect 
of long term empty dwellings:

2019/20 increase premium charge from 50% to 100% for long term empty dwellings 
over 2 years

2020/21 increase premium charge to 200% for long term empty dwellings over 5 years

2021/22 increase premium charge to 300% for long term empty dwellings over 10 
years

(3) REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(including any alternative options considered and rejected)

Billing authorities in England have the power to increase council tax in respect of 
dwellings which have been ‘unoccupied and substantially unfurnished’ for a long period 
of time. This is known as the ‘empty homes premium’. It is for the billing authority to 
decide whether to levy an empty homes premium.

In England, billing authorities can currently charge up to 150% on dwellings which have 
been unoccupied and substantially unfurnished for over two years. New legislation has 
been introduced that allows increases from 2019-20 onwards. 

Currently a discount of 100% (i.e. no Council Tax charge) is awarded for the first month 
on any unoccupied and substantially unfurnished property, followed by a 25% discount 
for a further five months. After this a full 100% charge applies if it remains unoccupied 
and substantially unfurnished.  Any dwelling that remains unoccupied for more than 
two years then incurs a premium charge of 50% Council Tax. 

New legislation is now introduced that comes into effect from 2019/20 financial year 
that allows the following:

 100% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings empty for 2-5 
years

 200% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings empty for 5-
10 years (commencing in 2020/21) 

 300% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings empty for 10+ 
years (commencing in 2021/22)

For information the table below shows the number of properties in SK that as at the 
time of the report fall into one of the above categories. 

Empty period Number of empty dwellings
2-5 years 100
5-10 years 31
10+ years 28

136



The primary objective of the premium charge is to encourage the property owners to 
proactively seek occupancy of the residential property in order to help maximise 
occupancy of the housing stock in the district.  Introducing premiums to our Council 
Tax charges is one tool in delivering this objective.

It is recognised that applying the charge is a discretion that the Council has and in 
specific circumstances officers will take into consideration the Government guidance 
which is contained at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-
homes-premium.

The necessary communication and notifications will be issued to property owners in 
advance of the new charging arrangements in order to ensure those affected by the 
change are given notice.

(4) COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

These are included in the report. 

(5) COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

These are included in the report. 

(6) OFFICER CONTACT

Richard Wyles
Assistant Director Resources
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

(7) DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:
If decision taken on Monday 21 January 2019 the date that the decision 
will be effective will be Wednesday 30 January 2019 subject to no call-in 
being received.

137

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-homes-premium
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-homes-premium
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER 
DECISION

Decision:   

That approval is granted for the following changes in respect of 
long term empty dwellings:

2019/20 increase premium charge from 50% to 100% for long term 
empty dwellings over 2 years

2020/21 increase premium charge to 200% for long term empty 
dwellings over 5 years

2021/22 increase premium charge to 300% for long term empty 
dwellings over 10 years

(1) Details of Decision

To seek approval to amend the Council Tax chargeable amounts in respect 
of long term empty dwellings accordance with legislative changes contained 
in Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax (Empty 
Dwellings) Act 2018.  

(2) Considerations/Evidence

The Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax (Empty 
Dwellings) Act 2018 makes changes to the premium levels for empty 
properties that are introduced over the next 3 financial years. 

(3) Reasons for Decision:

Billing authorities in England have the power to increase council tax in 
respect of dwellings which have been ‘unoccupied and substantially 
unfurnished’ for a long period of time. This is known as the ‘empty homes 
premium’. It is for the billing authority to decide whether to levy an empty 
homes premium.

In England, billing authorities can currently charge up to 150% on dwellings 
which have been unoccupied and substantially unfurnished for over two 
years. New legislation has been introduced that allows increases from 2019-
20 onwards. 

139



Currently a discount of 100% (i.e. no Council Tax charge) is awarded for the 
first month on any unoccupied and substantially unfurnished property, 
followed by a 25% discount for a further five months. After this a full 100% 
charge applies if it remains unoccupied and substantially unfurnished.  Any 
dwelling that remains unoccupied for more than two years then incurs a 
premium charge of 50% Council Tax. 

New legislation is now introduced that comes into effect from 2019/20 
financial year that allows the following:

 100% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings 
empty for 2-5 years

 200% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings 
empty for 5-10 years (commencing in 2020/21) 

 300% premium (i.e. extra) for substantially unfurnished dwellings 
empty for 10+ years (commencing in 2021/22)

For information the table below shows the number of properties in SK that as 
at the time of the report fall into one of the above categories. 

Empty period Number of empty dwellings
2-5 years 100
5-10 years 31
10+ years 28

The primary objective of the premium charge is to encourage the property 
owners to proactively seek occupancy of the residential property in order to 
help maximise occupancy of the housing stock in the district.  Introducing 
premiums to our Council Tax charges is one tool in delivering this objective.

It is recognised that applying the charge is a discretion that the Council has 
and in specific circumstances officers will take into consideration the 
Government guidance which is contained at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-homes-
premium.

The necessary communication and notifications will be issued to property 
owners in advance of the new charging arrangements in order to ensure 
those affected by the change are given notice.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).
NONE

140

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-homes-premium
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-tax-empty-homes-premium


Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Date of Decision: 21 January 2019

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 22 January 2019

Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups):

30 January 2019

141



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet
7 February 2019

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

        

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 1 February 2019 to 
31 January 2020

This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s forward plan for the period 1 February 2019 to 31 
January 2020 for decision or recommendation.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support 
Assistant 30 January 2019

Approved by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance 29 January 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council 30 January 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of the report.

143

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 sets out minimum requirements for publicity in connection 
with key decisions. The Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly 
publication of its Forward Plan on the Council’s website.

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make recommendations to 
Council or review the contents and take any necessary actions. Whilst it is not a 
requirement to publish this information in the Forward Plan, it is the Council’s practice to 
do so.

1.3 To help Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, items for 
consideration have been included in the Cabinet’s Forward Plan (attached as Appendix 1 
to this report). The Forward Plan also includes details of items scheduled for each of the 
Council meetings due to be held within the plan period.

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No other options 

have been considered. 

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
3.1 The Forward Plan is published each month of the Council’s website. Cabinet Members will 

work with their officers to direct the timeline for each matter, taking account of 
opportunities to consult with the Council’s overview and scrutiny committees where 
appropriate. 

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - 
Resources

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements to which Councils must 
adhere. Councils may use their discretion to publish information that exceeds the 
minimum requirements.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive, 
Transformation and Change

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 This report provides an overview of the work that the Cabinet will be undertaking. Where 

appropriate, analyses in respect of equalities and safeguarding relevant to its decisions 
will be presented to Cabinet with reports as individual issues come forward.

7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified.

144



8 Community Safety Implications 
8.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report.

9 Other Implications (where significant) 
9.1 There are no other implications arising from this report.

10 Background Papers
10.1 Section 9 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/regulation/9/made)

11 Appendices
11.1 Appendix 1 - Cabinet Forward Plan: 1 February 2019 to 31 January 2020

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 17 January 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

145

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/regulation/9/made


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET FORWARD PLAN
 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet 

1 February 2019 to 31 January 2020

At its meetings, the Cabinet may make key decisions and non-key decisions. They may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework.

A key decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely:

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard 
to the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards.

A non-key decision is one that is not a key decision.

The Forward Plan

The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council.

147

A
ppendix 1



Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council 

Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Cabinet - 7 February 2019

Budget proposals 2019/20 (Budget framework - recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Final Budget 
Proposals for 2019/20

7 Feb 
2019

To approve the Cabinet’s 
budget proposals and 
recommend them to Council

Budget
10 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Capital Strategy including the Asset, Investment and Regeneration Strategy (Recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Capital 
Strategy including the and 
the Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

7 Feb 
2019

To make recommendations to 
Council on the Capital Strategy 
including the Asset, Investment 
and Regeneration Strategy

Growth
13 February 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Treasury Management Strategy (Recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 

7 Feb 
2019

To make recommendations to 
Council regarding the Treasury 
Management Strategy for 
2019/20

N/A – Governance & 
Audit Committee

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Council – 1 March 2019

Budget 2019/20 and Council Tax Setting (Budget and Policy Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Budget 
for 2019/20 proposed by the 
Cabinet

1 Mar 
2019

To set Council Tax and agree 
a Budget for 2019/20

Budget
10 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

148

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Capital Strategy including the Treasury Management Strategy and Asset, Investment and Regeneration Strategy (Policy Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Capital 
Strategy including the 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 and the 
Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

1 Mar 
2019

To approve the Council’s 
Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2019/20 and the 
Asset, Investment and 
Regeneration Strategy

N/A – Governance & 
Audit Committee

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Pay Policy Statement (Policy Framework)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider the draft Pay 
Policy Statement for 2019/20

1 Mar 
2019

To approve the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for 2018/19

N/A – Employment 
Committee

Elaine Pepper
Tel: 01476 40 61 32
E-mail: e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Arrangements for the operation of the Council’s Committees from May 2019
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council

To consider the 
recommendations of the 
working group set up to 
review the operation of the 
committees of the Council

1 Mar 
2019

To agree arrangements for the 
operation of the Council’s 
Committees in preparation for 
2019 municipal year

N/A – Governance 
working group

Ben Bix
Tel: 01476 40 65 15
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – 7 March 2019

Statement of Community Involvement (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

Consideration of the draft 
Statement of Community 
Involvement in the context of 
feedback received during the 
public consultation period

7 
March 
2019

To adopt a Statement of 
Community Involvement 

Growth

Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Rectory Farm Supplementary Planning Document (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

To consider the Rectory 
Farm Supplementary 
Planning Document following 
consultation on a draft 
document

7 Mar 
2019

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in respect 
of Rectory Farm 

Growth
13 February 2019

Kevin Cartwright
Tel: 01476 40 63 90
E-mail: k.cartwright@southkesteven.gov.uk

149

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:k.cartwright@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Leisure Offer (Key Decision)
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the 
Council

The provision of new and 
enhanced leisure centres 
across South Kesteven

This report may include 
information that is exempt 
under paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as 
amended)

7 Mar 
2019

To consider provision of new 
and enhanced leisure centres 
across South Kesteven

Culture & Visitor 
Economy

Paul Thomas
Tel: 01476 40 61 62
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – 4 April 2019

Asset Management Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider the draft Asset 
Management Strategy

4 Apr 
2019

To adopt an Asset 
Management Strategy

Growth
To be confirmed

Jane McDaid
Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

Council – 23 May 2019

Appointment of Independent Person (Council Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council

To consider the 
recommendations of the 
Employment Committee in 
respect of the appointment of 
an Independent Person

23 May 
2019

To appoint an Independent 
Person for the Council

N/A – Employment 
Committee

Lee Sirdifield
Tel: 01476 40 65 24
E-mail: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Cabinet – June 2019

Proposed development brief for land at Stamford North (Key Decision)
To consider a draft 
development brief for land at 

Not 
before 

To agree a draft development 
brief for land at Stamford North 

Growth Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

150

mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Stamford North for 
consultation

1 June 
2019

for consultation Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – December 2019

Council Tax Base 2020/21 (Recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To agree the Council Tax 
base for 2020/21, which will 
form the basis of the Budget 
proposals for the year

Not 
before 
1 Dec 
2019

To determine the Council Tax 
Base to form the basis of the 
2020/21 Budget proposals to 
be recommended to Council

Budget

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Draft Budget proposals
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Draft Budget 
proposals for 2020/21

Not 
before 
1 Dec 
2019

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for 2020/21 for 
consultation 

Budget

Debbie Muddimer
Tel: 01476 40 63 01
E-mail: 
debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk

Other items – dates pending

St. Peter’s Hill Re-development – office remodelling  (Key Decision and recommendation to Council)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

To consider proposals for the 
refurbishment of the offices 
at St. Peter’s Hill, following 
the first phase of works to 
provide high quality public 
realm through to the new 
cinema 

Not 
before 
1 Mar 
2019

To approve proposals and 
seek budget approval from 
Council

Growth

Jane McDaid
Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

Information relating to this 
decision is exempt under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 

Not 
before 
1 Mar 

Growth

Paul Thomas

151

mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended because it 
contains information which 
relates to the financial or 
business affairs of an 
individual or organisation

2019 Tel: 01476 40 61 62
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Cultural Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the 
Council

To consider the draft Cultural 
Strategy for South Kesteven

Not 
before 
1 Mar 
2019

To adopt a Cultural Strategy 
for South Kesteven

Culture & Visitor 
Economy
12 July 2018 Michael Cross

Tel: 01476 40 61 29
E-mail: 
michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Local Plan (Policy Framework Proposal)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Communications

Consideration of the revised 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
following examination and 
notice of modifications

Council 
Not 
before 
1 May 
2019

To adopt the revised Local 
Plan for South Kesteven

Growth

Roger Ranson
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

152

mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2019
	4 Budget proposals 2019/20 (Budget Framework - recommendation to Council)
	Appendix A GF and HRA Revenue Summary
	Appendix B Capacity Bids
	Appendix C savings - final
	Appendix D and E Capital Prog and reserves GFHRA
	Appendix F Fees & Charges
	Appendix H Capital Strategy
	Appendix I Property Investment Policy
	Appendix J EIA GF-HRA
	APPENDIX G Treasure Management Strategy to follow

	5 Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny Committees
	OSC_App1

	6 Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.
	FM0010 Wyndham Park - Non Key - Centenary Fields application
	NR FM0010 14.01.19
	CFM488nonkey Council Tax empty (002)
	AS CFM488 21.01.19

	8 Cabinet Forward Plan
	1 Feb 2019 to 31 Jan 2020


